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The design of this annual report mainly takes certain raw materials used
in beer brewing as the background with simple colours to highlight the
Group's vision of “brewing excellence” in terms of production quality,
supporting the premiumization development of the Group. By putting the
“Craftsmanship” bottled product, the newly-packaged “Snow Opera Mask”
canned product, together with the Heineken products in the middle of the
design, it showcases that both parties’ collaboration is unleashing its full
potential in their concerted effort to move towards premium.
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Design and Production : Solomon Financial Press Limited
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COMPANY PROFILE AND GROUP STRUCTURE
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China Resources

CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY
LIMITED

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
00291), is a beer listed subsidiary company of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"). The Group focuses on the
manufacturing, sales and distribution of beer products. China
Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. In 2019, the Group has completed
the transaction and commenced the strategic partnership with the
Heineken Group.

As a member of China Resources Group, we are dedicated to
leading the business progress and building a better life together
with our consumers, shareholders, staff and business partners,
and make the Group a trusted and beloved beer enterprise.

(Holdings) Company Limited

100%*

100%*

ARARLT

Commotra Company Limited

0.24%

&iAelHRAT

Heineken Brouwerijen B.V.

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

| 60% |
|

40%

#iHEE (BE) FRAT

CRH (Beer) Limited
| 51.67%
SAENE (EIR) BIRAE
China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited
(291.HK)
100%
* RERA

Indirectly held

LHEREERRAT

China Resources Snow

F-ET-NF+-A=1+—H
As at 31 December 2019

Breweries Limited
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MAJOR FIGURES IN 2019
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ANNUAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY ..ooveeeeeereeeeeeneranen 20.5 sn+amiLuon ke
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GROSS PROFIT MARGIN........covtrerrrrceserncsesanesenns 36.8 =aux %
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2019

B K 5 g

MAJOR STRATEGIES

RN E&EHF SHeineken S H ERX TR H - #E
2 78 & B8R 7= B9 S R 4B 90 kR K B BT
SE -

The Group has completed the transaction
with Heineken Group, which enabled the
Group to promote to a new high level on
its development of premium segments.

ANE B FF A ER S Rl St KT <
WD Sm  REARIFEEEH
RERK=ZFKRNIFEL - NG -
IR aEEl -

An internal strategy and business planning
meeting of the Group was held which
defined the Group’s new management
theme of “Quality Development for Success
in High-end Segment”, and pointed out
the focus of development through “new
idea and initiatives for new targets and
opportunities” in the next three years.

EXITEZR

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
AERASZRENZEARBNEITH RS AR —HARIFEZNERASEDE - FreN80H T+ -
The Group entered into a co-operation agreement with the Huaiyuan Government of Anhui Province for carrying
out relocation and phase one construction of the brewery in Bengbu with annual production capacity of 0.8mKL.

 ARHSRINTELXEITEEERDN  RASEHDARMI0Z TR B8 R T @B
BHAREXEKR °
The Group entered into a framework agreement with Shenzhen Bao’an District for establishing headquarter
and building craft beer brewery with total investment of approximately RMB10 billion, aiming to drive the
development of the Greater Bay Area.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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MEMREKRMSIED 277/
NEW PRODUCTS AND MAJOR MARKETING ACTIVITIES \ <
[ELFRIRIFEBENT D12 FmEEK

RABEL] BIHE+H S+ MiE+

FEEARIMRZRE B MED - &

B E7,0000 AR ©

An event under the theme “Jiang Xin Lunar

New Year's Eve Dinner” was held to clearly

identify our brand proposition of “It's Jiang

Xin Time” and interact with about 70

million audience through four major social

media platforms: Wechat, TikTok, Weibo

and News Media.

(SRS RETGEE | A0 [ RHFEE
DRI ET o[BS DRENGRE | N
REFFE =T HENZLE 5T
W EERSERL  mEL -
ST 0 SIAFEIFT X
H 4T 3& &9 [0 3& 77 = [8) M.SPACE]
AL B R R 2617 0 LA
Mo AE N BRSNS .

“SNOW MARRSGREEN BEER” and “Léwen White Beer” were both launched. “SNOW MARRSGREEN BEER” is
the third core high-end beer product of the Group which targets young, trendy and high-end market and leads
new trends. A showcase called “M.SPACE” was held in The Place, Beijing aiming to convey our brand spirit of
modernity and creativity.

(BB R Esuperx| B AH X Bt 2 HFE2) 2% B0 -
VAIT60{Z R E - FREFT & Dk S AN B &) G b8 N 1 ©
The Reality Show “Street Dance of China” Season 2,
title sponsored by “Brave the World superX” was
launched, with nearly six billion views, which continues
to fashion our challenging and cool brand.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2019

3A

Mar

48
Apr

(I ER) =
Corporate Governance Asia

2018F I il b lle
BaRAAR

Corporate Governance Asia
Recognition Awards 2018
o Wil EREAST
Asia’s Icon on
Corporate Governance
2018 FEL M WES
KRR
Corporate Director of the
Year Award 2018
e WM WES
Asian Corporate Director

BRARFEFEERZRPEDW
AR BREFHE
Tsinghua SEM China Business
Research Center, National
Business Daily
20197 EE Y ETRA R R MNMEEETOP30
2019 Brand Value of China Listed
Liquor Companies TOP 30
o E={I

Ranked 3rd

BREZFHE - REBER - LEHE
National Business Daily, Chengdu
Economic Daily, Red Star News
FREE G RRE B
Golden Goblet Awards Ceremony
of China Liquor Industry
e MEVEXBEF M - £EASERA
[EbEE]
Star product among China’s
alcoholic drinks — China Resources
Snow Breweries (Craftsmanship)

MerComm, Inc.
Mercury Awards

o 2017 F 4R - BRI -
HEMAR - EFR
Annual Report 2017 — Overall
Presentation: Consumer Goods —
Honors Winner

o 2017 F Rk - HME IRt -
WhH/ @A - LRFE
Annual Report 2017 — Cover Design:
Places/Products — Honors Winner

CYEHEFI) 275
Yazhou Zhoukan
PEAM W EEBRS
HATHE
(2017 - 2018 %)
Mainland Chinese
Enterprises Listed in
Hong Kong (2017 -
2018)

e BEAMERMBILAR
The Largest Food and
Beverage Company Award

ERRAEXRADE 6R
Hong Kong Investor Relations Jun
Association
FLEEBRTAEXRRAR
HKIRA 5th Investor Relations
Awards
o BERREXNRAA - KBRK
Best IR Company — Large Cap
e RERREAR(BLRS)
- RERR
Best IR in Corporate Transaction
— Large Cap
¢ RERARELWN - RER
Best Investor Meeting — Large Cap
o BERAEHENME - RER
Best Investor Presentation Material
— Large Cap
o RIEFHR - KRERK
Best Annual Report — Large Cap
o HERREXRHAMN - KERK
Best IR Team — Large Cap
s RERREAXRERNITE)
- RERR
Best IR by CEO — Large Cap
s ZRERAEXZR(ERMSE)
- RERG
Best IR by CFO — Large Cap
e BRERAEXRRELTR
- RE R
Best IRO — Large Cap
7R
|

u

BRRZZFERZRAEDS
L BREFHE
Tsinghua SEM China Business
Research Center, National
Business Daily
20199 E LA MmN EE
Chinese Listed Companies By
Brand Value 2019
e SE5TOP100

Top 100

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

(M EAEE) &
Corporate Governance Asia
20195 E M S RMRIHAR
Asian Excellence Recognition
Awards 2019
o BRERAREXRREW

Best Investor Relations Company
e THEZEEFENITEURAERR)
Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)
e THEEBREMSEURAERR)
Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)
¢ RERAEXRRZAR
Best Investor Relations Professional

(MERE) FE
Fortune China
RE50038 M)
Fortune China 500
o H5IE27401

Ranked 274th

XEEFETWERE
League of American
Communications Professionals
LLC (LACP)
2018 FRMBE R
2018 Vision Awards Annual Report
Competition
o SHEM - A& R RE RS
Ae®
Consumer Consumables — Food/
Beverage/Tobacco Category:
Platinum Award
o £ 1R100% - 45fz
Ranked 45th in Top 100 Winners
Reports — Worldwide
o I KXFIR5058 - 221z
Ranked 22nd in Top 50 Winners
Reports — Asia-Pacific Region
o X EFR805E
Top 80 Chinese Reports
e TAXZABERER
Most Creative Report in Asia-Pacific
Region



8H
Aug

(MR TE) *E
Institutional Investor
2019 BTN A B EEFRAAZE
2019 All-Asia Executive Team
survey
e RXEHEMUE—F
(BB EFEmMITLL)

Most Honored Company (first place)

(Consumer staples sector)

s ZERAEBEXRRIEE A
(MFTHEFEmMITL)
Best Investor Relations Program
(first place) (Consumer staples
sector)

o HEGWABE-—F
(MFTHEEmMITL)
Best Corporate Governance (first
place) (Consumer staples sector)

o HERE  HLRER ML
RERKEIRE B
(M FTHEFEmMIT L)
Best ESG SRI Metrics (first place)
(Consumer staples sector)

s ZEERENITEE A
(T HFTEmMIT )
Best CEO (first place)
(Consumer staples sector)

e REARUFEE R
(BFEEERTL)
Best CFO (first place)
(Consumer staples sector)

s HERREXRRAAE A
(KFTHEEmMITAL)

Best Investor Relations Professional

(first place)
(Consumer staples sector)

s ZERREXRRAAE R
(MFTHEFEmMIT L)

Best Investor Relations Professional

(second place)
(Consumer staples sector)

MerComm, Inc.
EIRRARCEFHR AR
International Annual Report
Competition (ARC) Awards
o BE HEEZUBHES K
(R &)
Beer/Wine/Spirits: Bronze Award
(Interior Design)
o FlERDHAR KRR
(G F )
Manufacturing & Distributing
Category: Honors Award
(Traditional Annual Report)

9A
Sep

108
Oct

ZF - JuAE R o B R

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2019

(MR T E) &

Institutional Investor

20195 E M XA R EEHRA

2019 All-Asia Executive Team

o BIREERILER
Overall Best Corporate Governance

e RXERM UL (MFHEFZMTL)
Most Honored Company
(Consumer staples sector)

e BRKMR - REBRMSE
Special Achievement — Best CFO

IR Magazine

2019£FIR Magazine£ 3R

IR Magazine Global Awards 2019

s BRERRBREXR - UTHEM
Best in sector — consumer staples

CEEIRD
The Mirror

F\BEAHEWHLTER

The 8th Outstanding Corporate

Social Responsibility Award

e RHBUHLTAER
Outstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility Award

MerComm, Inc.

EFfRGalaxy3R M

International Galaxy Awards

o FIR BRI &£ HER
53 5 1R F 4 Bl 4R R
Bronze Award for Annual Reports —
Print: Beer Manufacturing, Sales &
Distribution

o FIR-EIR:R& BERAT
5%
Honors Award for Annual Reports
— Print: Food/Packaged Goods

12R IR Magazine

Dec” ¢ MagazineXR 15 — 2019F K%
X
IR Magazine Awards — Greater
China 2019

o BEBMRAERRZAK(RERCI)
Best overall investor relations (large cap)
e MERERAERRZAR
Best in region: China
e RERAERRZAR HETM
Best in sector: Consumer
e BRERAERRZAARK
(RE L)
Best investor relations officer
(large cap)

(EF—A) &&
Economic Digest
2019F EFEBAH B WKL
Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprises Parade 2019

o BERH EMmAL

Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award
e EABLARR

Excellence Award

(RAXER) &

CAPITAL WEEKLY

A EdRllK2R2019

The Listed Enterprise Excellence
Awards 2019

o WHERINAK
Excellent Performance Award

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

H
|.H
bl
bid
=
>
@
o
c
S
=
T
m
Q
Ed
[e]
c
o

Go 1)

SY4IATOHIYVHS 4NO OL ¥

B

1VHOdYC

IDNVNYIAOD

£ 5 i

WNILVLS TVIDONVNIA

SIN



10

“JUAE R BB

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2019

LHERGEGRLT

China Resources Snow Breweries Limited

MR ERESRETRAMRTS KK
ZRIFKFEELDLME=ZF—I\F
ERNFZERA#S_FER]-

The “Research and Practice of Highly
Efficient Operation Technology for
Beer’s Packaging Line” was granted the
“Scientific and Technological Progress
Award (Second Prize) 2018” by China
Alcoholic Drinks Association.

H(PEE)FELRR  PES &he
BS LEM EHoBKEENNRE
FME Elik 8405 - REHFEN
TEEZERERETFI+RAMERZ
AW [EE X EsuperX] = xRk RE
REEWHOPEEERE] -

Mr. Hou Xiaohai, Chief Executive Officer
of the Group, was awarded the “Most
Influential People from the Top 10
Brands”, and the product (“Brave the
World superX”) was awarded the “Most
Influential Original Brands in China”,
in the 40th Anniversary Celebration
for Reform and Opening up and the
Reinstatement of Advertising Industry,
which was promoted by China Advertising
magazine and directed by China Advertising
Association, with joint support of Shanghai
Advertising Association.

AR E I T o 2 &0 X AR AT B A
RARKSEZRFITH R R 53 A4
MHEHRBEREZACHER FIHRRE
WoEHREINRS -

Liu Yousong and his team (from the can-
packaging department of our brewery
in Sichuan) were granted the title of
"Outstanding Team from State-Own
Enterprises (“SOEs”)” in the Award
Ceremony for Outstanding Teams and
Model Workers from SOEs held at the Great
Hall of the People in Beijing.

SREBTELSREEE
RERSENINENELER
REERE]-

The “Research and Application of Efficient Operation Technology for High-speed
Packaging Line of Canned Beer and Protection System on Product Diversification”
was granted the “Best QIC-V Award”, which was the top award in the
Fourth National Quality Innovation Competition organized by the China Quality
Association.

P EHUREERRATSNBIRFATE
B FT K ZEFT 0 & 1) & & R I [QIC-V R K

[m]
A

=

=:8

CHSEEEN =R —IBFIAAFFINE RKRKFE AL L BAAE (Chinese
Sooety for Talent Development)EEj] HIEEZEIRITAEERE—FR]
LAERBAIEFRATEER R ARXBERBKEE D - (BHEEFLITFIE)F X
W B A ERTHRE AT E IEZO19$1‘H.$JQI 2]

The “Three Level Leaders” training program of CRSB was granted “1st Place
in Gold Award in the National Learning and Design Competition”
organized by Chinese Society for Talent Development. The project also won
the “Model Mechanism Award in the China Talent Management Event
2019", which was jointly organized by Beisen Research of Talent Management,
Business School of Renmin University of China and in strategic co-operation
with Harvard Business Review Chinese Edition.

HeR AR S£BEAWPPEFZAQARIEH
R %4 [Brandz 2019% E M EH E & #10058 | HE 17
B ARERAMSEBITILE— -

WPP, a major global advertising and communications
group and Kantar, a consultancy company have jointly
introduced “BrandZ: Top 100 Most Valuable Chinese
Brands 2019”. The Group topped the list in the
category of beer industry.

458 F 7 8 5 3k B Chnbrand (FR 1 @ 41) 91 & /9 [H E TBV £ T M@ 1 &
BEHAR]| [CCSIFER AR ME]IXIALL-STARZHERBIAX -

CRSB won the honors of “China Total Brand Value Management Grand
Awards”, “China Customer Satisfaction Index Customers’ (C-CSI) Most
Satisfying Brand” and “The Brand of ALL-STAR” organized by Chnbrand.

HCFSHREMKZES XML FTHLALEFTEMREL XTI
Z AR 29T « L HESXRBERRKN019FEL WS ﬁ&éﬁéﬁur*@
BRtliHs=EFLRE]-

The “2019 Global Business Conference and China Finance Summit Winter Forum”
conducted by China Finance Summit took place in Beijing, where CRSB won the
honor of “Most Socially Responsible Award 2019” and “Gold Award in
Social Responsibility in Chinese Food Companies”.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



408 E TE R SR 3R B R R AL 1T 18 ) FR SRR
KEH2019F EIYUEB B | SRB R -
CRSB won special award in the “Young,
Useful, Effective (YUE) Management
2019” organized by the Harvard Business
Review Chinese Edition.

2HRERENMETGNAERRERE=
K ERBEERR - 4055880 RR
[HPEREFEKRENO.(EFTIL)IFSH
[PERE+AEWIREE—R] [ELE
EFmRR[FEREFERRRBEEHEK
2]

The World Brand Lab, a large global consulting
institute of brand valuation, introduced the
Chinese Brand Annual Award, where CRSB won
the title of “Chinese Brand Annual Award
No.1 in Beer Industry” and got the “First
Place in the Top 10 Most Influential Chinese
Beer Brands”, whilst the “Craftsmanship”
products won *“Best Brand Marketing
Award".

[ /O EIE | 7= SR %k B AP [ [ Br RO Bk B 2%
PE2ED HERMABIULHRE -
KBEEMESR2ERKAEMRFL £
RE(ER) X EREBRABKEHES - F
EBE bt = 46 5 &9 CBC H B H Br )% Bk A 2%
[ZEXER(&R)]-

The “Craftsmanship” products were awarded
“Tian Lu Award Gold Prize (3 Stars
Award)” in the China International Beer
Challenge which was organized by China
International Beer Challenge Organizing
Committee, directed by China Alcoholic
Drinks Association and jointly hosted by
China National Research Institute of Food and
Fermentation Industries, International Joint
Research Center of Quality and Safety of
Alcoholic Beverages, and Huaya Sky (Beijing)
Cultural Development Co., Ltd.

SE R B R
AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2019

[BEI R EsuperX KX 2 HEDRIIRIRAEHRRRT L EERGHE
HYRAERTZEBETRMEDERAEAXRMN OB -HEH
ARRERFEHEG] -

The marketing campaign of “Street Dance of China” Season 2 with its title
sponsor “Brave the World superX” won the “Kotlere New Marketing Model

Platform Award - Outstanding Marketing Case”, introduced by New
Marketing Magazine, a leading media of marketing, along with Kotler Marketing
Group, global consulting firm on marketing strategy.

EEIBEX EsuperX T BEHEPEHBRILITHELTWRZERE
M.SPACE /& XM B i i S5 M TR AN B R - 4 S EEEH 5 IK A

(RNEHE)IEEMNANFEAFEHTLRAR - amRBER]S

[FEHEHTLRGR - BREEMWMR] -

CRSB won the “Gold Prize in the Annual Innovative Marketing Case
in Food and Beverage” and “Bronze Prize in the Annual Innovative
Marketing Case in Dining and Retail” awarded by V Marketing magazine,
thanks to the two marketing campaigns: “Connecting Street Dance with Brave
the World superX Marketing Guide” and “Redefine the Modern Trend of beer
with M.SPACE of Snow".

[SRGRETEEE | 7~ @i SRR B AFIA’ Design AwardiRitAR | -
HIHEZLEGR &TPRAREQFTEHEE W OKRR] -
“"SNOW MARRSGREEN BEER” won the bronze prize in the "A" Design
Award” and was granted the “Top Innovative Marketing Impact
Award” at AD STARS in Busan, Korea.

[BME = miR it RFBHEEER L IZR
ItRRM AR MEESRERMIFRITR]: [EX
FIA" Design Awardi&it£ % 1: 2019 CBCH
EEREELSF—ERRREAR)] -
The product design of “Léwen White Beer”
won the “iF Product Design Award” by iF
International Forum Design GmbH, “A’ Design
Award Gold Prize” and China International
Beer Challenge 2019 “Tian Lu Award Bronze
Prize (1 Star Award)".

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HE-ZZ—NAF+=-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
BB BREARMERT
TURNOVER BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
(ARMEF T RMB million) PER SHARE
(AR ™ RMB)
2019 2019
33,190 0.40
AR L
\ R \ <
i | i |
31,867 { B
| lJi Bl st I T
| l ' ~1 l | -l,
| | e \
»II“l |||“| nll“l |||H|
. L B I || \ \ .l ' L8 §) ) : | | || \ \ : '
2018 2017 2018 2017
—S—h#F —E-N\F —E—LF
2019 2018 2017
ARTERET ARMBERT ARTBERT
RMB million RMB million RMB million
B Turnover 33,190 31,867 29,732
KATIRERM %A Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company 1,312 977 1,175
SREARMERTF  Basic and diluted earings per share RMB0.40 RMBO0.30 RMBO0.36
FERk&E Dividend per share
- i - interim RMBO.120 RMBO0.09 RMBO0.07
- R - final RMB0.045 RMBO0.03 RMBO0.07
RMBO0.165 RMBO0.12 RMBO.14

48 H (32 A%) B FR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FZF—NF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2019

AATRREN G EREF2E : KAE
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NET ASSETS PER SHARE:
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BOOK VALUE .
(ARFETIT RMB million) (AR RMB) %
g
2019 2019 3
19,670 6.06
L L

s
m

Ny ety
—— 00
i
e 1
__‘
e
i Ul
v ———— e e B \
e 00
e ———— —
T
=
e O
= 00
SYIATOHIYVHS ¥NO Ol ¥

|
T=F-\% F-F—tF
p= Nzl -~ A=+—8 +t-A=+-8 q
As at As at As at 3
31 December 31 December 31 December %
2019 2018 2017 8
VLAVl ARTEAT ARTEAR 3
RMB million RMB million RMB million z
RABREN AN Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company 19,670 18,848 18,421

JE2 B AR IR N A Non-controlling interests 57 62 64
B Total equity 19,727 18,910 18,485 =
9
FAU 4,/ (E3) %8 Consolidated net cash/(borrowings) 1,897 1,212 (1,030) e
15 L 2 Gearing ratio’ AU £Net Cash %I £ Net Cash 5.6% o
o E Current ratio 0.49 0.46 0.49 z
FRAF 2E Net assets per share: f
- JKE (& - book value RMB6.06 RMB5.81 RMB5.68 =
B E - Note: e

1. MR EESREERZASENENLH - 1. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

—F— AL 43R / Annual Report 2019 13
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B % AR A S B BE iR 2 A 5y B R
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION

HEZZ—NF+=-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

BoMZELHSLE

Turnover proportion by segment

2019 2018

. R[X Eastern region . X Central region . FX Southern region

BABZARUNERBIHBF S

Earnings before interest and taxation proportion by segment

2019 2018

[T %K Eastern region [7] X Central region [ ®RX southern region

4R (32 A%) A R 22 &) / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



HEZZ—-NF+=-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

GRIAV T RPN R R R s
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION

—E-NEF —E-N\F i/ Ofd)
2019 2018 Increased/
ARTERTT ARMBERT (Decreased)
ERH2ELE Turnover by segment RMB million RMB million %
"X Eastern region 17,278 16,065 7.6%
X Central region 8,490 7,860 8.0%
X Southern region 8,466 8,867 (4.5%)
34,234 32,792 4.4%

WA HBE 25 Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (1,044) (925) 12.9%
BE Total 33,190 31,867 4.2%
—F-NF A - VRO
2019 2018 Increased
£282KiTFBR  Earnings before interest and ARTEAT ARTERT (Decreased)
i 16 50 2 7 taxation by segment RMB million RMB million %
R Eastern region 1,007 199 406.0%
X Central region 598 396 51.0%
X Southern region 714 1,003 (28.8%)
2,319 1,598 45.1%
UNGIN=R- T Net corporate expenses (156) (133) 17.3%
BE Total 2,163 1,465 47.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M 85 [E] 55
AREAF-FE-NFHEEELTANAR
M33,190,000,0007T * W= F — N\ F 1
42% o RERAF-FE—NENREN S5
B ERTFERBMAETN - R=ZF
—NED B EFA34.3%M476%E AR
1,312,000,0007T & A K 2,163,000,000
IE

FRFEER > FELFREEE - EE
FREE - AEFABRBEEHER-F
—N\F EF1.3%ZE£11,434,000F F &
RNEIT A KFREF o

FRIMFEEN XmTREEBHE [5
1€ Snow] FF MM — IR A - 0 B
ENFENEW  FEMEBEEHER-F
—N\FHEK8.8% ' FEMFEHHENER
ZE-N\FLTF2.8% R - NERHETT
ML BB L BIET T RAKEIR
FE By AW E I E fEATIE M
ERA - ARIDFRMBIEA Lk - 4RE
NWEEMEZ  —E-NFHEANR_-F
—NFLEFAI2%ZE ARM12,226,000,000
5T o

AEATZE-NFXRBENFED
P FERAEEMPBEERAR=-Z—
NFLEF6.4% c AEFFTEMFE RN
ST RENEE  —F— 1
FHRAXNATHERLZEZHAOARD
826,000,000 (= FE —NF:HARM
483,000,0007T) c M & — \&F — X Ik
TRZZ—LtFENF2RAMWARD
117,000,0007T) F & & &= 7= @ E T - #51
HTATHERZERAMUWE HFE
FrolBimZ Aigm =S —nF— M RIT
BERBE - E-N\FEABEF -

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated turnover of the Group in 2019 was
RMB33,190,000,000. This represents an increase of 4.2%
compared with 2018. The Group’s consolidated profit attributable
to the Company’'s shareholders and earnings before interest
and taxation in 2019 increased by 34.3% and 47.6% to
RMB1,312,000,000 and RMB2,163,000,000 respectively, compared
with 2018.

During the year under review, China's economy maintained growth
and the market consumption continued to upgrade. The Group's
overall beer sales volume outperformed the market, delivering a
1.3% growth compared with 2018, to approximately 11,434,000
kiloliters.

During the year under review, the Group implemented its brand
repositioning strategy and further boosted the product mix
upgrade of the "&£ Snow" beer products, in addition to the
acquisition of Heineken China. As a result, the Group recorded an
increase of 8.8% in mid- to high-end beer sales volume compared
with 2018, which led to the increase in average selling price by
2.8% compared with 2018. Meanwhile, the Group saved certain
cost of sales from efficiency gain brought by its production
capacity optimization and organizational restructuring, offset the
increase in cost after the acquisition of Heineken China and the
rising cost of certain raw materials. Due to the above mentioned
factors, the gross profit in 2019 recorded a year-on-year increase
of 9.2% to RMB12,226,000,000.

In 2019, the Group's acquisition of Heineken China resulted in
an increase of 6.4% in overall selling and distribution expenses
compared with 2018. During the year under review, the Group
continued to implement its production capacity optimization
and organizational restructuring, the staff compensation and
resettlement expenses was approximately RMB826,000,000 in
2019 (2018: approximately RMB483,000,000). The one-off annuity
provision of its staff cost that the Group accrued for 2017 in 2018
(approximately RMB117,000,000) and the reduction in impairment
loss of fixed assets recognized, offset the increased costs driven
by the staff compensation and resettlement expenses along
with the acquisition of Heineken China, as a result, general and
administrative expenses for 2019 remained broadly stable over
2018.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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@i B FZE-AFEAMEA
HEETISEDLRESEHI M2 A
BIARSEHT TR BE_E—N\FH
HERATELEE IR PR ErTEE
RE superx] #i7 e m - —F RS
BREEEK - B [EELRETEE
BB ETS+REAES | K]
ERCHT R BT o thAh 0 [B B K E superX]
MIELE & HEBIIPET  FHERE
FREEER B HEANSE Snow f g
MNERRASHETIRETRARSD N -
EEBNEH @A #—FSEMEFEE
SMeEHE RN HASEFFERRL
BAEE - TR TH @ MKE2ENL
EED e

ZE-NFEWIANEE R T RERT T
RBAE 5 B A RM700,000,0000C 2 AR
352,000,000 + A A - 7N H FF 4
it aemBE - ERERTE RS
EETT MFYHE - FTRFERNEE
WEE7TRAME - F-E—AFFRK &
EAEFERNB225NE - T XE1a74(8]
NS0 0 & 77 B2 £920,500,000F F o

EELSHAEETE  WHEHFE
B2 T_E—AFNA=-+EB
TR E 0 Heineken & #x 1F A I FIAE 42
WINTMEFTREBERED - KBS
EB RN ASHAREEFESHBRETH
EBRO—DPEEMEMBEMENIIB - ANE
HAFEmEENETKENTFEREGNE
NEmeEHETE-

HOREWRSES 2 W
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continued with its product portfolio diversification. In
addition to the introduction of Heineken beer products, the Group
launched two series of high-end beer products in 2019, “SNOW
MARRSGREEN BEER” and “Léwen White Beer”, respectively
in April and July, in conjunction with high-end beer product
“Craftsmanship” and mid- to high-end beer product “Brave the
World superX” that launched in 2018, further supporting the
growth of mid- to high-end beer sales volume. In particular,
“SNOW MARRSGREEN BEER” was successfully launched through
the strategy of “trendy product launch activity + spokesperson
promotion”. Furthermore, the Group continued to promote “Brave
the World superX” and “Craftsmanship” products through IP-
based promotion, to enhance the brand image, as well as elevate
the brand value and bring dynamics to create new feature of
the “E 7 Snow". In terms of internet sales channels, it further
promoted WeChat online-fans mini-programme sales channel,
together with the strategic co-operation with JD.com, an
e-commerce platform, to provide specialized products and jointly
organize online activities.

The recognized impairment loss of fixed assets and inventory for
2019 were RMB700,000,000 and RMB352,000,000 respectively.
In particular, the Group continued to optimize its deployment
of production capacity by removing the inefficient production
capacity and increasing the average scale of the breweries. During
the year under review, 7 breweries ceased operations. By the
end of 2019, the Group operated 74 breweries in 25 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in mainland China, with
an aggregate annual production capacity of approximately
20,500,000 kiloliters.

In terms of executing the premiumization strategies, the
acquisition of Heineken China was completed on 29 April 2019,
whilst the Heineken trademark licensing agreement and framework
agreement became effective on the same date. This long-
term strategic collaboration will provide an important strategic
opportunity for the Group to strengthen its presence in the
premium beer market in China. During the year under review, the
Group completed the integration of Heineken China and set up
nationwide sales for Heineken beer products.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BFAERREMARBET _E-_SFF
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DEBETEREEONRG - £EEHE -
REABLZEDARESESE WK
ot Efm WM ARSI EHE
FET HMIFESMENE  UWERE—
HEEBARMREEFLSMEST
(= E%%tﬁf%ﬂ$%liﬁ&%

EoEK—TENHEEN - AEFEZE
E_FEF_AFTHABLERNAZAE
&ﬁaafﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁmﬁwﬁﬂ
RZE—NFRH T EL26% K%42% °

REFBGANRE S FE KR
BEER  ETALMLML  SHERE - E
EEE - BeER  HARUESRENE
KR HARMBRTALSmERE o K
%4%2%2§1%Ej]5Heineken§%lE@J&ﬂ;ﬁﬁi
A 1E R AEHESHMINMER
&h HERSNMEBEES TR - LWEX
S E A A BN - PR E G AR AP A
EfrmiEas - ohtlax - EEEH -
ABFZERASTHE  RBRAREHALE—
LW TR S

Mt 5 [ 65

BERBRE
FTZE-hAhE+ZA=+—H X&
AR elleRBTEHFEARM
2,408,000,0007T « "EFAF—ZT—NF+
ZA=1+—H#®ERRIAKMS511,000,000
T HNT—FHNER -

AEAFT—FE—NF+-_A=+—8KT
—N\F+-A=+—HHI 22K
W e

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in early 2020, provincial
and municipal governments implemented various prevention and
emergency measures, such as a partial lockdown policy and
extending the holiday period of Chinese New Year, in order to
mitigate the threat of spreading the epidemic across the country.
During the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group gradually
resumed operation and production by allowing staff to work in
remote offices and implementing work shifts, in adherence to the
approval of the provincial and municipal governments, so as to
prepare for a swift return to normal operation and production
once the epidemic eases. Nevertheless, it is anticipated that the
above epidemic situation would have certain negative impact on
the production and sales of the Group. The Group’'s unaudited
consolidated turnover and earnings before interest and taxation
for the two months ended 29 February 2020 decreased by
approximately 26% and 42% year-on-year respectively.

The Group upholds its strategic management philosophy of
“Quality Development for Success in High-end Segment”, and
will carry out various high-quality growth measures, such as
production capacity optimization, excel in brewing, operational
reform, use of intelligential information, and information sharing
and co-creation, whilst actively implementing measures for
developing high-end segment. With the long-term strategic co-
operation with the Heineken Group, the Group will strengthen the
competitiveness of its brands in high-end segment and explore
new sales channel for its high-end beer products. At the same
time, the Group will enhance its competitiveness in first tier
cities through measures such as building competent professional
teams specified for high-end segment, brand portfolio with 4
Chinese brands + 4 International brands, obtaining leading edge
for its business, expanding sales channels, implementing operation
mechanisms for major customers etc.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
CAPITAL AND FUNDING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s consolidated cash and
bank deposits amounted to RMB2,408,000,000. The Group's
borrowings as at 31 December 2019 were RMB511,000,000 and
were repayable within 1 year.

The Group was in a net cash position as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.
As at 31 December 2019, 6.0% of the Group’s cash and bank
deposit balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 84.7% in
Renminbi and 9.3% in US dollars; whereas 99.9% of the Group’s
borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group's
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current liabilities and
current ratio were RMB19,856,000,000 and 0.49, respectively. The
current liabilities included receipts in advance on sales and contract
liabilities on promotion and marketing expenses, majority of these
amounts would be offset by trade receivables or be realized
through sale discounts in the future, with no significant net
cash outflow in short run. Taking into account the gearing ratio,
historical and expected future cash flows from operations and
unutilized available banking facilities of the Group, management
expected the Group has adequate resources to meet its liabilities
and commitment as and when they fall due and to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, assets with a carrying value of
RMB68,000,000 (31 December 2018: RMB67,000,000) were
pledged for notes payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2019.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a staff size of around
30,000, amongst which more than 99% were employed in the
Mainland China, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong Kong.
Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance with the
nature of job duties, individual performance and market trends
with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
JIAN YI
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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7% 55 P ) iy 3 IX 2 A
GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S BREWERIES

FZE—-NF+=ZA=+—8 As at 31 December 2019

Provinces/Cities B8 Provinces/Cities I E¥#8

No. of No. of

breweries breweries
1. BT Heilongjiang 3 13, L Zhejiang 6
2. E Jilin 2 14. fRE Fujian 1
3. T Liaoning 9 5. T %R Guangdong 4
4. XE Tianjin 1 16. Hunan 3
5. At Hebei 2 7. =M Guizhou 3
6. i) Shanxi 2 18. gl Sichuan 9
7. 1T7S Shandong 3 19. R Tibet 1
8. T 73 Jiangsu 5 20.  HIR Gansu 1
9. ey Shanghai 1 21. NEH Inner Mongolia 2
10. ZH# Anhui 6 22. 7T Ningxia 1
11. RE] Henan 3 23, [R#E Shaanxi 1
12. il Hubei 3 2. T A Guangxi 1
25.  BE Hainan 1

Fi=ge
ANNUAL
PRODUCTION
CAPACITY

20,500,000 kl (F7)  Tomuomennor

(RS EE A BRI AR % ) BREWERIES IN
(Excluding those breweries ceased operation and OPERATION
determined by management to be closed)

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group highly values investor relations management, actively
engaging and communicating with shareholders and investors via
different channels. The Group strives to maintain quality corporate
governance and a high level of transparency, ensuring that the
capital market is well informed about its latest developments and
future plans in a timely manner. The Group listens to and considers
the valuable opinions and suggestions from its shareholders and
investors, in order to further enhance operating performance,
create more business development opportunities and provide
better returns for shareholders.

In 2019, the Group commenced the strategic partnership with
the Heineken Group. The Group remained in close contact with
institutional investors, analysts and potential investors through
a variety of channels. Apart from the activities surrounding
the results announcements, frequent one-on-one meetings and
conference calls were conducted. All of these helped the Group
stay connected with close to 1,600 fund managers and analysts
via more than 250 meetings.

The achievements of the Group in corporate governance and
investor relations were once again recognized by the industry.
In 2019, the Group earned various authoritative awards from
various reputable institutions. These included “Most Honored
Company (first place)” in the consumer staples sectors in Asia
from Institutional Investor; “Best overall investor relations (large
cap)” and “Best in region: China” in Greater China regions from
IR Magazine; “Asia’s lcon on Corporate Governance” and “Best
Investor Relations Company” from Corporate Governance Asia;
“Best IR Company”, “Best IR in Corporate Transaction” and “Best
IR Team” from the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, etc.
Furthermore, the Company was again commended by MerComm,
Inc. for the high quality of its annual reports, and was awarded
in the “International Annual Report Competition (ARC) Awards”
and “International Galaxy Awards” competition, etc. Looking to
the future, the Group will maintain its momentum in enhancing
shareholder value and promoting the healthy development of the
Group.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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BVEHRFR
INVESTOR RELATIONS

ARFBH-F-HE-F-NFNFLERTHEDE
YEAR-END CLOSING PRICE AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION OF THE COMPANY FOR

2015-2019
50 — — 160,000 4
1 43.10 =
= B 139,824 — 140,000 2
3 40 — ¢ E
S —1120,000 o
Q B 3,
- 28.05 27.35 — 100,000 &
] 90,999 . N
3 i —m” 88,728 Y
S 25— —180,000 ©
8 =
~ 20f— %
o -3 15.40.. - I =
SRE =% 40,390 el 49,960 y
=l [ : — 40000
I 10— ol
- I
N — 20000 &
3,
ol =, 5
2015" 2016 2017 2018 2019 =

LGz . mE
Closing price Market capitalization

A%

AHRZF—AE-F-AFNEREBTIRERRE

EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE OF THE COMPANY FOR 2015-2019

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015’

T

0.40
0.165
0.30
(0wl 4
0.36
0.14
0.223
0.08
10.08 (HK$12.30)
\ ! ! ! ! ! |
-2 0 2 4 6 8 10 12
(ARMITRVB)
. BREF (BERFEHREEFZ BRRPHE - RERERIREEM
DR REE) Total of interim, final and special
Earnings per share (including the effect dividend per share
of asset revaluation and major disposal
of non-core assets/investment)
Notes:
AERHAT-FE-—RAFNA—ALEEFEH 1. The Group disposed of its non-beer businesses on 1 September 2015.
%5 o
Z_F-R"EFHRFPHBITH - 2. Adjusted upon rights issue in 2016.
EFARBFFE-—R"EF+AT+—HZTKHKEE 3. Since the Company completed the acquisition of 49% stake in CRSB on
HEHEEEBA% N —F—NEHNTARE 11 October 2016, basic and diluted earnings per share for the year was
ARMERFZRARNAERMEAGEFED calculated according to the Company’s shareholdings before and after the
A% A EE 5] (M 1 B151% K U 8 f5100%) it & - acquisition (51% before acquisition and 100% after the acquisition).
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

SHARE PERFORMANCE

Global stock market fluctuated in 2019. The Company’s closing
share price as of 31 December 2019 was HK$43.10 increased by
57.6% year-on-year, which performed better than the Hang Seng
Index for the year. In 2019, the Company’s market capitalization
increased by more than HK$50 billion to HK$139.824 billion at
the end of 2019.

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

The Group is committed to creating and enhancing the value of
the Company, as well as achieving long-term sustainable growth
and profitability in recognition of the unwavering support of
its shareholders. According to the dividend policy, the annual
dividend to be distributed by the Company to the shareholders
shall be no less than 20% of the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders in any financial year under normal circumstances.
In proposing any dividend payout, the board of directors shall
also take into account the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, shareholders’ interest, general business conditions
and strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, possible effects on the Group's
creditworthiness, general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group's businesses and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company, and other factors that the board
of directors deems appropriate.

The total dividend of the Company reached RMBO0.165 per share,
with a dividend payout ratio of 41% in 2019. Moving forward,
the Company will make every effort to maintain a respectable
dividend payout level while preserving its healthy financial position
to foster the sustainable growth of its business.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

WITESE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BMHEEE uFEm+=%
Mr. Jian Yi Aged 43

T_E-N\FELARZENERAHRTEF -RT T /\FRAREZHE
AEBFNLERRBNEEREFEHRITE  HTF—/\F+—-AKRZ(E
NS (RE)BERRAFNES  HARRBEBRER - WA RN4LE
AFBAERAARKFFUHFGEBR)BERATNESK L HBEHEBR
HER)BERABES  ARILAREN B ROBRARMNEIESK
(RO TEBIESRZMET) MELEBELBENERAR QA (K
B TEERARSMARRR IR ET) SRELSHFREBE L (EH)
ERAPEEE - EET _TETLFMALBER - thaT B IR T X
ErITEFR NFELGSHARMEBFHEIE HEEFAILER
RFEERFFL EFMEREFFANEFAL -

Mr. Jian has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company in July
2018. He was appointed as Director and Chief Executive Officer of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited in May 2018, and also a Director of CRH (Beer)
Limited in November 2018, both of which are controlling shareholders of
the Company. He is Chairman of China Resources Ng Fung Limited and
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited, Director of China Resources C'estbon
Kirin Beverage (Holdings) Company Limited, as well as Vice Chairman of
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co., Ltd. (whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He served as Senior Vice President of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and General
Manager of China Resources Coal (Group) Co., Ltd. Mr. Jian joined China
Resources Group in 2007. He previously worked in China Europe International
Business School (CEIBS), responsible for corporate leadership development
and management education. Mr. Jian holds a Bachelor of Laws, a Master of
Laws and a minor degree in Economics from Peking University.
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has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in April 2016. He was appointed as Director of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited in May 2018, and also a Director of CRH (Beer) Limited
in May 2019, both of which are controlling shareholders of the Company.
He was appointed as general manager of China Resources Snow Breweries
(China) Co., Ltd. in March 2016 and was the Director of its sales and
marketing departments from December 2001 to December 2007. He has
been appointed as a Director and a member of strategy committee of Shanxi
Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co., Ltd., which is a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, in September 2018. He was appointed as general
manager and assistant general manager (also a general manager of its
distribution headquarter) of the branch of China Resources Snow Breweries
(China) Co., Ltd. in Guizhou Province and a general manager of its branch
in Sichuan Province from January 2009 to February 2016. Mr. Hou has a
Bachelor of Statistics Degree from the People’s University of China. He has
previously worked in Shougang Corporation, Gallup Poll and Pepsico. Mr. Hou
joined China Resources Group in 2001.
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REFERE Fgnt+=%
Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
Aged 53
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has been appointed as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Company in June 2016. He was appointed as
the Finance Director of the Company in June 2014. He was previously the
Audit Director of the Company. He joined the Company in September 2008.
He is currently the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary of China Resources Enterprise, Limited. He is also the Non-executive
Director of Scales Corporation Limited which is a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, and the Non-executive Director of New Zealand King
Salmon Investments Limited which is a company listed on the New Zealand
Stock Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange, respectively. Prior
to joining the Group, he had worked for international accounting firms in
Hong Kong, and also acted as the financial controller and company secretary
of Zhong An Real Estate Limited, China Oriental Group Company Limited
and Hon Po Group (Lobster King) Limited (now known as China Energy
Development Holdings Limited), which are listed companies on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lai has extensive
experience in internal and external auditing, finance and accounting, merger
& acquisition, regulatory and compliance and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Manchester, UK. He is a Fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the UK and of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is a Certified Internal
Auditor and holds a Certificate in Risk Management Assurance conferred by
the Institute of Internal Auditors. He is also a Certified Information Systems
Auditor of ISACA.
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Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank
Aged 58
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has been re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive
Director of the Company since June 2016. He was an Executive Director and
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company between June 2009 and May
2016, and the Company Secretary between August 2009 and May 2016.
Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of China Resources Microelectronics
Limited. Prior to that, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand
Holdings Ltd. (now known as Nam Cheong Limited), which is a company
listed on the Singapore Exchange and before then, he served as the Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International Holdings Ltd. (now
known as China Resources Gas Group Limited). He was appointed as Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Dah Chong Hong Holdings
Limited, which is a CITIC Limited company, in June 2016 and became its Chief
Executive Officer in March 2017. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Western Australia and a Graduate Diploma
in Business and Administration from the Curtin University of Technology of
Western Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of CPA Australia.
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Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van
den Brink £ 4 #l 4 m+x%
Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas
van den Brink Aged 46

FZF-NFHARZAENERAFIEHRITESE © van den Brink B AEIIEE
United Breweries Limited®)ZE % + 122 A]#EBSE Limited (815 J9Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited) fNational Stock Exchange of India Limited =77 © van den
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EEER AR (KRR RMEAR)AZESE ° van den Brink St £ 1R H
F-F-FTHF ;X H— B % & Jean-Francois van Boxmeer 3t 4 #H T Heineken
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APACH) B + 7 B ZHeineken NV.JWITE R H B AL R © van den Brink 5t
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AFE A » fTHeineken USA (U FEE AN EFTLZLIE — L NLNLFAN
RE-Z2ZTAEAA » LT Vrumona (Heineken® H HE T 10 ol ) (i F 7
ZHER)AE LECRRERIEMR S EHALIE - P E 5 FH Heineken
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has been appointed as a Non-executive Director in April 2019. He is a
Director on the board of United Breweries Limited, a company listed on
the BSE Limited (formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited. Mr. van den Brink is also a Director on the
boards of CRH (Beer) Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and China Resources Snow Breweries Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. van den Brink is nominated to succeed Mr. Jean-Francois
van Boxmeer as Chairman of the Executive Board and CEO of Heineken N.V.
from 1 June 2020. He has been appointed as President of Heineken APAC
since October 2018 and is a member of the Executive Team of Heineken
N.V.. Mr. van den Brink served as the Managing Director of Heineken Mexico
(Cuauhtémoc Moctezuma) in Monterrey, Mexico from August 2015 to
September 2018 and was the Managing Director for Heineken USA in New
York, USA from October 2009 to July 2015. From June 1999 to September
2009, he successively served as a Senior Brand Manager (Pepsi & 7UP) and
Trade Marketing Manager for Vrumona (part of the Heineken Group) in
Bunnik, the Netherlands, the International Channel Development Manager for
Heineken Global Commerce, Amsterdam, and the Commercial Director for
Bralima S.A.R.L. (part of the Heineken Group) in the Democratic Republic of
Congo. Mr. van den Brink holds a Master of Arts degree in Philosophy and
a Master of Science degree in Business Administration from University of
Groningen, the Netherlands, and also completed the Advanced Management
Program at Wharton, University of Pennsylvania, USA in 2009.
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Aged 46
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has been appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company since July
2019. Mr. Tuen-Muk currently serves as the Assistant General Manager of
the Finance Department of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited,
in areas including corporate finance, treasury management, integrated
management and management accounting. He previously worked in the
Financial Management Centre of China Resources Enterprise, Limited. He
has also worked in commercial banks as well as Chinese and multi-national
corporations, and has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and
treasury management. Mr. Tuen-Muk obtained a Bachelor of Finance degree
from the University of Hong Kong in 1997 and a Masters of Finance degree
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2004. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst. Mr. Tuen-Muk joined China Resources Group in 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BRTEE 9iF A +1%
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
Aged 66

TN NEFERZENERFES - REANPBRRIZWERRE - F8
AUERBERABRFETURAERAFTNNEERER - LEFFRR
ERARAAMNES - AALETRELHER B REIFRISE M

%A -

has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He was a Director and
Chairman of Sino Resources and Energy Holdings Limited, Sino Petrochem
Development Limited, Sino Mining Investments Limited and a Director of
China & Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of
Business Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United
Kingdom.
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Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
FHKICPA, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 66
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Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 70
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has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He is Honorary
Chairman of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and member of the Thirteenth
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Dr. Li was the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and former member of the Legislative Council of
the Hong Kong SAR. He holds directorships in a number of listed companies
including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited and Wong's International Holdings Limited. Dr. Li was a Director of
RoadShow Holdings Limited.

FETRF T —ARZAERNARRAES - BELTHHLED - F—HA
MEZ_FT-—AFHEHERELENESANERESAA I RNZHAH
FEEM - BETEZEBRELERNA - FNEAEEFLMNUSERE -
PNEZLHORELSKREREEE BB TARRKULEERER - #B1E
THEFREEGEHAERAR  FEBHERLQA BEMIERA
A BOXPLERAT  BERAGRAA REHPEREBERATR
ERBFHEESERAFTINEZTRS  ZERAWAEBLTAA - HE
BEFREHERAGIHIEHITEF L KARA Asset Management Limited
(ZRARIRHOEFHIMBIAESRZ G EM) OB IFRITES -

has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr. Cheng is a
practicing solicitor and a consultant of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. after serving
as its senior partner from 1994 to 2015. Dr. Cheng was a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is the founder chairman of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He is now also serving as chairman of the Insurance
Authority. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in K. Wah International
Holdings Limited, China Mobile Limited, Towngas China Company Limited,
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian
An China Investments Company Limited and The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited, all being listed companies in Hong Kong. He was a Non-
executive Director of Kader Holdings Company Limited and an Independent
Non-executive Director of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company whose
shares were formerly listed on the Singapore Exchange.
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Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
GBS, JP, aged 55
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Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
GBS, CBE, JP, aged 74
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has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He is the
Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited (being a
listed company in Hong Kong) and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He acts
as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited. Apart from the
roles in the business community, Mr. Chan serves as a Hong Kong Deputy
to The National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and the
Convenor of the Non-official Members of the Executive Council of the Hong
Kong SAR. He is a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong SAR. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited,
the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council and the Committee on Reduction
of Salt and Sugar in Food. He also serves as the Chairperson of The Hong
Kong Council of Social Service. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, Yau Lee Holdings Limited and Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited (all being listed companies in Hong Kong) and Bumrungrad
Hospital Public Company Limited (being a listed company in Thailand). Mr
Chan was a Director of City e-solutions Limited.

F_EERF+—ARZENARAELZ - BTHARSE =+ FEE
“EFFERENR - BEE-ANLZ iiﬂiﬁﬁlj%jé&ﬁwﬁ)ﬁ
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FARABREAEERNAAZRAEECHINAEZEDBRBEREK - REEZGE
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has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He had been
a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring from the civil service
in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in
1993 and served a number of high ranking government positions, namely
the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central
Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for
Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu was an Independent Non-executive
Director of Television Broadcasts Limited and Transport International Holdings
Limited.
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MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY

The Board is committed to achieving excellence in corporate
governance and believes that good corporate governance leads to
the long-term success of the Group’s business. The Group values
its Code of Conduct, company policies and regulations, which
serves as the basis for our corporate governance. Compliance with
the national policies as well as the laws and regulations should
be the focus and goal in the business operation of the Group,
to protect the Company’s interests. The Group will continuously
review its governance practices and keep on improving in
accordance with the latest regulatory requirements.

The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining
acceptable risk level and more importantly, proactively responding
to risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value and safeguard
the Group’s reputation. Through putting in place proper risk
management process over the Group’s business and carrying out
regular reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the
likelihood and the impact of risks before they occur, and deal
with problems effectively when they arise. While the Group’s
risk management is the responsibility of every management team
member and is embedded in the business planning and daily
operation of the Group’s business, the Group’s risk management
process is based on a decentralized model with a centralized
monitoring system. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a
streamlined risk management process to identify, analyze and
mitigate various risks in an efficient and effective manner.

RISK STRATEGY AND APPETITE

The Group adheres to a robust and prudent operation strategy.
The Group believes that achieving strategic and business objectives
comes with moderate risks. The risks involved must be consistent
with the Group's strategies and capabilities, be fully identified and
effectively managed, and will not violate the Group’s core values
and social responsibilities. The Group must also avoid incidents
such as serious violations of national regulations, major quality
or safety accidents, adverse social impacts, any damage to the
Group and brand reputation, and major financial losses or business
interruptions. In this regard, the Group will continue to pursue a
balanced development of efficiency, quality and scale, emphasizing
conformity between business development and risk-taking.
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CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Based on our risk tolerances and identified significant risks,
the Group’s management has adopted different strategies to
manage risks including risk reduction, transfer and avoidance.
In accordance with the strategies adopted, the effective risk
management measures will be formulated to analyze the key
causes of risk, establish appropriate risk monitoring indicators if
necessary, conduct continuous monitoring, and ensure the timely
detection of major risk events and adoption of effective risk
mitigation measures.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group’s risk management structure is based on the
“three lines of defense” model, which clarifies the roles and
responsibilities of management and business units and functional
departments on risk management. The first line of defense
consists of business units and functional departments at all levels,
responsible for daily risk management, including participation
in risk assessment of the Group, development of risk mitigation
measures and monitoring procedures; the second line of defense
consists of risk management functions, responsible for organizing,
promoting and coordinating the risk management, and monitoring
the Group’s major and potential risks; the third line of defense
consists of the Group’s internal audit function, responsible for
risk management supervision and inspection, internal assurance
activities, assessment of internal risk management and monitoring.

RATHE

ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY

B2

Board of Directors

THE 37° LINE OF DEFENSE

BB

EEEE

Supervision Level

AFRERTFRZERS
Internal Audit Function and Audit Committee

FEE %
THE 2"° LINE OF DEFENSE

MBS EE L AE

EERE

Risk Management Function

E—Ef%
THE 15T LINE OF DEFENSE

WATERHE

Execution Level

B4R 5 B 7 FIERBERRI)

Business Units and Functional Departments at All Levels
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CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Risk Monitoring: The Board of Directors continuously monitors
risk management and internal control systems and reviews the
effectiveness of internal control systems on a semi-annual basis
via the Audit Committee.

Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis: The management of
the Group reviews audit reports, internal controls and risk
management issues, and continuously assesses and updates major
risks faced by the Group and respective risk mitigation measures.
The Board of Directors oversees the management’'s monitoring
activities via Internal Audit Function and the Audit Committee,
and the effectiveness of the implemented monitoring measures.

BUSINESS UNIT
Step 1: Risk Identification

The Group's risk assessment is conducted annually through a
top-down and bottom-up risk assessment process. By engaging
the relevant procedures, the Group’s risk management function
initiates the risk assessments at all levels of business units and
functional departments, identifies and estimates risks both at the
Group and business unit levels by evaluating corporate strategies,
sales, marketing, operations, productions and human resources,
and incorporate risk management into our business planning.
At the end of each year, the Group’s business unit undertakes
a review of potential risks which falls within its business and
operation area by the means of expert interviews, management
team questionnaires, and analysis on the impact of changes of the
operating environment, with a view to performing risk positioning,
analysis and evaluation of their probability and impact of risks.
Identified risks are reported together with the explanation of its
nature and proposed risk management strategies to the Group
during the business plan review session at the beginning of each
year. In addition to the annual exercise, our regular reporting
system of the Group’s business unit also facilitates ongoing risk
identification and the reporting of risks.

Step 2: Risk Analysis, Evaluation and Mitigation

After identifying the risk, the designated risk owner is responsible
for analyzing the likelihood and potential impact of the risk event.
Risks of higher likelihood and potential impact will be given
priority. The risk owner then designs and implements appropriate
procedures and controls to mitigate the risk. In the design of
the action plan, the implementation cost will be considered at
the same time, and in the implementation process, the Group
emphasizes the balance between risk and benefit to ensure the
long-term stable development of the business.
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Step 3: Risk Monitoring and Performance Evaluation

After risk identification, analysis, evaluation and mitigation, risk
owners will establish risk monitoring indicators, where appropriate,
based on quantifiable and practicable principles, to regularly
monitor and give warnings of potential risks, and take effective
mitigation measures in a timely manner. At the same time,
evaluation reports are submitted to the Group by the business
units through the regular reporting mechanism. To prevent the
same risks from occurring again, preventive actions and procedures
to improve operational efficiency are also incorporated into the
risk management and internal control systems. In addition, our
Internal Audit Function undertakes independent reviews on risk
management and internal control systems, and our management
is responsible for ensuring appropriate actions which are taken
to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports
within a reasonable period of time.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group constantly faces a number of principal risks and
uncertainties in a highly competitive business environment and
the risks must be properly managed to avoid significant impacts
on the Group’s business. Thorough risk assessment and mitigation
measures help ensure these risks are well managed and governed
effectively. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in late January 2020,
the Chinese government adopted various disease control measures
which have impacted the sales, production and operations of the
beer business. The Group will closely monitor updates related
to coronavirus, local government’'s epidemic control policies,
changes in the market demand, and take appropriate measures to
minimize the impact of coronavirus on the overall operations and
sales of the Group. For more details on the COVID-19's impact
on the Group’'s operations, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 18 to 21 of this
Annual Report.
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During the business planning process in 2019, the Group focused
on addressing the following principal risks:

MARKET COMPETITION RISK

Changes in the Chinese beer market, advancement of industrial
structure, and the development of emerging products and sales
channels have led to fierce market competition.

The Group continuously adjusts its competition strategic plan
based on market changes, and strives to enhance our brand image,
price competitiveness, product quality and distribution network
by optimizing product diversification, monitoring competitors’
product mix strategies, developing new sales strategies and
channels.

PUBLIC SENTIMENT AND REPUTATION RISK

The prevalence of mobile communication and the internet, in
addition to the rapid development of new media, increase the
contact base and push the rapid diffusion of public sentiment
and reputation risks, which could lead to negative impact on the
Group's reputation if appropriate crisis response strategies could
not be facilitated effectively.

The Group is committed to maintaining a good market image and
reputation. The Group takes the initiative to monitor the events
that may potentially put our reputation at risk, and strictly prohibit
any business activities that will damage our reputation or cause
material adverse effects. In order to prevent and reduce the impact
of public sentiment on the Group, the Group constantly improves
the system and structure of public opinion and reputation
risk management, establishes a sense of public sentiment and
reputation risks, forms a good value of public sentiment and
reputation risk management, and carefully handles the crisis that
damages the reputation and image of the Group to minimize the
negative impact on the Group.

RISK OF INCREASING PRODUCTION COST

The supply of the production materials required by the Group is
affected by climate, international trade development and national
policies. Factors such as increasing procurement costs pose a
greater pressure on production costs to the Group.

The Group is actively exploring opportunities to control
procurement costs at a reasonable level, including adopting
different procurement strategies and stabilizing supply channels
with a view to ensuring the adequate supply and quality of the
products.
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CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK OF REFINEMENT ON HUMAN RESOURCES

In response to the changing market, the Group has initiated
production capacity modification plan to achieve greater efficiency,
in which organizational and workforce restructuring could cause
labour disputes or negative publicity, damaging the Group’s
production, reputation and brand image.

To minimize such impact, the Group establishes contingency plan,
proactively communicates and reaches agreement with affected
employees in compliance with laws and regulations.

SALES AND MARKETING COSTS CONTROL RISK

The Group formulates corresponding sales and marketing
strategies according to the market conditions. Poor execution of
sales and marketing activities may reduce the effectiveness of sales
and marketing campaign, which may have a negative impact on
the sales performance of the Group.

The Group continues to enhance the management and control of
selling expenses and keeps improving the effectiveness of sales
and marketing campaign. The Group regularly carries out training
to strengthen the compliance awareness of personnel and ensure
the operation in compliance with law and regulations.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT RISK

Inappropriate management or malfunctions of production facilities
may lead to excessive pollution and thus, violate the national
or local government regulations. Other factors such as natural
disasters and uncertain events could cause production safety
issues, which may result in personal injury and property damage.

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
attaches great importance to production safety. To minimize
health, safety and environment risks, the Group has taken
various measures including adhering to clear health, safety and
environment guidelines and initiating staff training and cultural
promotion, strengthening organization and system construction,
continuous monitoring and initiating facilities safety checks and
energy conservation and emission reduction measures.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AEHABRTHARZELSFS AR - FKIE
B LSRIN  TREFMEXHFE
EINER  RRETRLESTE A

ARBREZERIFHORE -

BEREALFEBRERNMLSME - A
EAFEREMLX - RIPINE - TEERHE -
ANER - RBASRERSREME N
HEEETEELRR  REXNAANR
EHRMEZHEBHL L - RERIMT L
MINE - 2 RERIRE  MAXERE
ZAEREMAFENRIRSIIEE -
HEEREEZ AR  BESKETHKH
FW AT GARRENRL T EESR
HERSE  RIASHI AL LR
% o

XEHEK
AEHA—BERNHEDRBULCBELESE
5 ERRKR  REHBERRFPHE
FOERMREIHX - TZE-LEF K
SHAENBZEE NS N E AN A
b BNEATEEE MEIEERE
M - S s B TREAZH
BEs) - KRR RAEX - TEMFE
W AEHERAMH2TEEEE -
AR B A X AE 9 A0 R s AR Ok 5 R OT R
HoREERE -

The Group has not only been strongly committed to promoting
business development and seeking to enhance operational
performance, but also adhering to the philosophy of “Brewing
A Better Life” and actively exercising our corporate social
responsibility, to bring more and better changes to the public.

With its business strengths and extensive business network, the
Group is committed to contributing to society in the areas of
community care, environmental protection, energy conservation
and emission reductions, human resources, product and service
quality upgrade as well as supply chain management, etc. with
the drive to become a trusted and beloved beer enterprise.
The Group has separately published its environmental, social
and governance report to inform the public of the performance
and various measures in relevant aspects, and also voluntarily
disclosed additional information, such as the impact of climate
change, medium targets of consolidated energy consumption of
production and occupational safety and health, to demonstrate
our commitments to sustainable development.

COMMUNITY CARE

The Group has always been committed to promoting a caring
society and fostering charitable undertakings, proactively focused
on the community in the aspects of disaster and poverty relief,
educational advancement and environmental protection. In 2019,
the Group has implemented its internal rules and regulations for
charitable and social welfare activities to focus on driving the
development of budgeting management, process management
and assessment on projects, and encouraged internal units to carry
out a variety of activities to facilitate the mutual improvement
of communities. The regulations on the management of social
responsibility was first released in the year under review,
specifically including community as a core stakeholder in the
management of social responsibility.
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During the year under review, the Group has rolled out charitable
activities in various locations, including poverty relief project in
Longli County and Qiandongnan Prefecture in Guizhou, Shandong
Province’s donation to Fangjiatuan Village in Yantai, Gansu-
Qinghai-Tibet Region’s donation of public facilities to the China
Resources Hope Town in Haiyuan, the specified project on helping
the construction of Tongmeng cultural square in China Resources
Hope Town in Haiyuan, assistance from Huaibei brewery in Anhui
to mobility challenged elderlies and disabled persons among
impoverished population in Linhuan Town, targeted poverty
alleviation projects including in Sanhe Village, Leichi Town,
Wangjiang County of Anhui Province; Tiantai Village, Qian Town,
Yuexi County of Anhui Province; Luoyuan Village, Paishi Town of
Hubei Province; poverty alleviation relocated area in Mali Town of
the Tibet Autonomous Region and Huagiao Village, Xiasi Town,
Kaili City of Guizhou Province, and the five-year project of specified
charitable donations by Xiaoshan brewery of Zhejiang regional
company to Xiaoshan district and Xinjie Town of Zhejiang Province.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed to protecting the environment. There is
a sound organizational system to implement the responsibilities of
environmental protection and energy conservation and emission
reductions. The Group has also attached great importance to the
management and control of environmental, health and safety
("EHS"). A top to bottom approach is adopted, implementing and
assessing policies and guidelines for the impact of operations to
the environment, and continuously enhancing the environmental
protection and management for energy conservation and emission
reduction.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, AND ENERGY
CONSERVATION AND EMISSION REDUCTIONS

The Group has strictly adhered to the national or local pollutant
discharge standards and implemented internal control benchmarks
that are stricter than national or local pollutant standards in
order to steadily meet the emission target and proactively reduce
pollutant emission. The Group has established a management
organization and responsibility system for energy conservation
and protection of surrounding eco-environment at three tiers:
the headquarters, regional companies and local breweries. Every
year, the headquarters issue and distribute the target for energy
conservation and eco-environment protection of surrounding areas
to the regional companies, factories and even production unit, and
let them sign the EHS letter of accountability, and implement the
management responsibility of energy conservation and protection
of surrounding eco-environment. During the year under review,
the Group did not find any major incident or violation about
environmental protection.
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The Group has echoed the national reform of supply front to
promote the optimization of production capacity, proactively
close down plants of low capacity utilization and high energy
consumption. The Group has also engaged in ongoing
optimization of mix of energy consumption by phasing out
coal-fired boilers and sourcing clean energy such as steam or
natural gas from external suppliers to increase the proportion
of clean energy consumption. To reduce the major impact on
the environment and natural resources, the Group focused on
reinforcing the management and control of pollutant discharge,
and clearly specified the frequency of and the requirement for daily
monitoring and tests at the breweries. The regional companies and
the headquarters also performed monthly statistics and analysis
of pollutant concentration, total amount, as well as the indicators
on program control and source control.
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In 2019, the Group has implemented a series of policies for
effective and efficient uses of resources, included continuously
optimizing the energy consumption structure, increasing the
proportion of clean energy consumption and phasing out coal-
fired boilers replaced by clean energy. The percentage of the
Group using externally sourced steam and natural gas reached
97%, while coal consumption decreased by over 70% year-on-
year. Relatively to 2018, emission of Sulphur Dioxide (SO,) and
Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) decreased by about 10% and over 20%,
respectively. Wastes generated from the beer production process,
such as distiller's grains and waste yeast, have a recycling rate
of 100%. In the area of sewage discharge, the sewage effluent
from five breweries under the Group have changed from being
discharged to natural bodies of water to being discharged to
centralized municipal sewage facilities, thus reducing pollution to
natural bodies of water. In the year under review, the Group’s
chemical oxygen demand (discharged to natural bodies of water)
reduced by more than 60% year-on-year, and ammonia nitrogen
emission (natural bodies of water) reduced by more than 50%
year-on-year.

In addition, the Group has eliminated outdated capacity,
continuously implemented production capacity optimization, and
improved energy efficiency for the effective use of resources. In
2019, consolidated energy consumption per unit decreased by
approximately 10% year-on-year. During the year under review,
the regional companies and the breweries have invested RMB24.15
million to establish and approve a total of 27 projects relating to
environmental protection and energy conservation and emission
reduction.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

45

dNOYD IHL LNOYV [ HE iz £

LTI Xk

SYIATOHIYVHS ¥NO OL ¥ &Y

B>
S
i
o
[a)
o
2
o
Fd
>
-
o
<]
<
m
e
2
>
=2
o]

L 552 Ll

SINIWILVLS TVIDONVNIA



46

AERATSEXRTI B &I MEEX
B ESHE R ERN W - HIKIR
mBERFT RU O E BN FF
FEMERTKERNE  —T-AFRK
FER L T2 295% M oh - AR E %R
LRI CO)HNE  —FT-NF K
B (CO) HE PRI LE TS FE R 12 10% ©

INMRET
TEABRTSEMFRIMRIER] [£
Efs£@In+ERREISZ N2
EUNREZHBEES - TRBMFER -
AEFHZRE TE L BEHERF HHED
RE - Hf - NRAEFI REHEEFERL
REHSMENESGEBUREAL B8
F RS EEE O M) BRAGIREM
MIMRERER XK L ASEEN (BE)
BRARREBHEBINMREERIER 45
EREE(IT)BERABREBEEIRE
BEGESFE L EHEE@EBRFE)BRA
AEED NAIRSRBENREZEREX
SR HEBEEA (RN BRAFRE
BEIMREZEERRESK  UREESERE
R (ML) ERANAKFBBERNRE S
fREREMEE - i - XTI 3158
AL ET  KMNTETFTHOARILE T
TKBMW RS BRI RELZHE
IKF) T Al & &2 88 TkE b | BRE
MEILT RELBEFTETMAN %
BHETARBBWIRS UWR AT
ZHREESHETR T IR EEZET
MEFEWLIHRSE -

The Group has kept a relentless focus on the impact to the
ecological environments of the surrounding areas from its nearby
breweries and constructions, considered quality of water sources
as an important factor for determining the choice of sites for
new plants, and continued to promote improvements in water
and energy saving. Total water consumption decreased by
approximately 5% year-on-year in 2019. Moreover, the Group
has sought to reduce emission of Carbon Dioxide (CO,). In 2019,
emission of CO, decreased by over 10% year-on-year.

PROMOTING ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Each subsidiary of the Group has been actively engaged in
organizing nationwide publicity and education campaigns for
green initiatives, such as “World Environment Day”, “National
Energy Conservation Week” and “National Low-Carbon Day".
During the year under review, multiple subsidiary plants of the
Group have won several awards in environmental protection
aspects, with six subsidiaries were granted Hong Kong Green
Awards by the Hong Kong Green Council; China Resources Snow
Breweries (Henan) Co., Ltd. was awarded Green Management
Award Gold Prize; China Resources Snow Breweries (Qiannan) Co.,
Ltd. was awarded Green Management Award Bronze Prize; China
Resources Snow Breweries (Liaoning) Co., Ltd. was awarded Green
Management Award Merit Prize; China Resources Snow Breweries
(China) Co., Ltd. Yantai Branch was awarded Environmental, Health
and Safety Award Gold Prize; China Resources Snow Breweries
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd. was awarded Environmental, Health and Safety
Award Gold Prize, China Resources Snow Breweries (Xingan)
Co., Ltd. was awarded Environmental, Health and Safety Award
Bronze Prize. Additionally, Wuhan plant was awarded “Water-
conserving Industrial Enterprise of Hubei” by the Department of
Economy and Information Technology and the Department of
Water Resources Management of Hubei Province; Anging plant
was awarded “Water-conserving Industrial Enterprise of Anhui”
by the Department of Water Resources Management of Anhui
Province; Fuyang and Huaibei plants were awarded “Water-
conserving Industrial Enterprise of Anhui” by the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Anhui Province; and
Liu’An plant was awarded as “Excellent Environmental Protection
Performance Enterprise”.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has strictly adopted the national and local laws and
regulations on labour and remuneration management, and has
continuously enhanced the talent development program so as to
strengthen the staff’s skill sets and efficiency. During the year
under review, the Group has further implemented organizational
restructuring which enhanced the average staff efficiency, and
launched career development projects, which helped in optimizing
remuneration system and improving career development
mechanisms for employees.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the Group consistently adopted the
policies related to anti-child labour and forced labour and abided
by the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the Company. During the recruitment process, the Group
strictly complied with the requirements of the “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, and explicitly prohibited the
hiring of persons below 18 years old. To regulate and modify the
employment system, the Group controlled the compliance and
quality of employment from the hiring stage. In addition, the
information system on recruitment of the Group was launched
and hiring of minor workers was restricted in the recruitment
and hiring conditions, thus ensuring that minor workers were
not hired. To ensure the execution of the requirements of the
afore-mentioned regulations, the Group held annual employment
inspections in the three levels comprising the headquarters,
regional companies and business units, and promoted the areas of
improvement. Aside from these, the Group also strictly executed
the “Management Regulation on Reporting of Employment
Disputes” to allow prompt reporting of employment disputes and
follow-up measures on improvement. At the same time, typical
cases were recorded in the employment case archive for sharing
and usage.

To guarantee and enhance the employees’ post-retirement
compensation and improve employees’ proactiveness, the Group
has established the long-term talent incentive mechanism under
the guidance of its parent company, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, thereby strengthening corporate cohesiveness
and fostering healthy sustainable development. The Group has
also established an annuity system in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the state.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2019, the Group’s average staff training hours reached 18.7
hours. The coverage rate of fulltime staff training continued to
maintain at 100%. To support the Group’s strategic transformation
and quality business development, multi-level training programs
were organized for promotion of strategic execution and
implementation, including the “Three Level Leaders” consolidated
training for general managers of regional companies, operations
centers and sales regions; the “Three Drive Wheels” talent
development training program for middle and high level sales
management, sales and finance management as well as operational
management personnel. Targeting managerial professionals in
key positions, the Group provided trainings, product innovation
workshops and brand training camps for middle and high level
staff in marketing department and regional companies to advance
their business skills and capabilities. Aside from this, the Group
also provided online and offline training for frontline staff as well
as core management training for team leaders in breweries so as
to continuously enrich staff learning resources and methods. The
“Three Level Leaders” training program won the “1st Place in Gold
Award in the National Learning and Design Competition” organized
by the Chinese Society for Talent Development, and the series of
“CRSB Business Development Philosophy” online micro-course won
the first prize in the CRH Online Micro-Course Competition. The
Group adheres to the talent development philosophy of “learning
from and applying to the business practices”, consistently improves
the employees’ abilities on business practices and management, to
better help to realize the Group’s strategy of “Quality Development
for Success in High-end Segment”.
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Group’s safety production management is deeply rooted in
its management philosophy to production operations featuring a
people-oriented approach and development in a safe manner. The
Group has strictly observed the national laws and administrative
regulations on safe production and occupational health. In 2019, to
further enhance the accountability of respective responsibilities on
EHS and the establishment of a sound EHS accountability system,
staff at all levels were required to sign a letter of accountability on
EHS. Moreover, all staff members took part in safety observation
activities related to identification of hazard sources and factors as
well as dangerous behavior in order to remind them how to follow
procedural control and to regulate their safety practices. By carrying
out unannounced inspections, cross-checking and reviewing video
surveillance and inspections, the Group has managed to investigate
and rectify potential safety hazards, promoting the implementation
of various safety production undertakings. During the year under
review, the Group conducted investigations and inspections
for safety management of liquid ammonia, forklift, hazardous
chemical substances, transportation logistics, related parties and
construction projects at some of its breweries for upgrade of
management standard.

In 2019, The Group has further improved the working environment
by continuously improving, optimizing and upgrading its work
on the management system for safety production, the protection
facilities against occupational hazards. During the year under
review, the Group set up a specified fund of approximately RMB63
million for production safety to improve the overall standards of
safety production management and technical equipment. The
Group is dedicated to protecting the health of its staff members
and implemented an accountability system for human resources
units and improved the system for the monitoring, prevention and
control of occupational hazards. Some of the Group’s breweries
have received the occupational health and safety management
system certification (OHSAS18001). In addition to reporting and
regularly monitoring dangerous hazards such as noise and dust in
the working environment, various technical initiatives have been
taken to improve the working environment and create a healthy
workplace for staff. Moreover, a wide range of publicity and
education programs on occupational health have been launched,
aiming at enhancing staff’s sense of law and social responsibility
as well as raising their awareness of self-protection. When new
staff signs a labour contract, the Group will fulfill all its duties by
informing them of the potential hazards of occupational diseases
and purchase work-related injury insurance for them in accordance
with the law. For staff members who are engaged in operations that
could cause occupational diseases, occupational health examinations
will be conducted before, during and after their employment.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

49



50

AEAFEEFTESMEEHELIE T=
T-NF ELHEEEEIRRATSNE
SR BEFI KT D46 7R f 2GR
540K » B i314,000 A X2 00 » K& H
BUBEFEUL B BARZER 2R
o BAUSEEIEZMER - RS
AT RBIEES) » FHEL[—A—RB9ER b
fREMNZE - TRIMFEER @ £ESEEH
MR EENESE - BRI HEHEK
KE -« TR &= & MR ME R
HIE B R IKF100% ° tob - REHE
ZENGEE A A A IR E AZEUE TE
HESEBEBHZRELHTA Z2ER
AR2HENEL2EEBRBIED - HE
ZE-NFFR ANROAZREREM
ZETRIN IEFMIEARNFEER
KAEBURIBUED o

RIXE
AEFBNBRIRZNTERE  5=2F
TRERKLISERY ] BIRNEE
W FER - HhBYVEEIESRE FE S EIEE
RAEMNATIRRE - T-E—ILF K&
B RBH208RATRETED  UBERAT
MBEZ2 - TEMFER  AEHABFEHF
RIGEE—%|Es BIEEZARA
EIBEER—%AT THRESZK J|iH
PAEIENFAHRTIREERE: TERES
| AFRABRIED A—% AT
EkER  ETHBRBERES - H
E—4RT HEHRHARERL: AT
KAERTIELORRBEEMBERLE X
HATEETREATNRG - 2EFIZE:
FHEALXXAREDIMA TEKIE
B FEATIHMIESHEE -

The Group has also emphasized on safety education. In 2019,
CSRB's staff received a total of 460,000 training hours on safety
education. More than 540 emergency drills with over 14,000
participants were conducted. The Group has enhanced its rescue
capability through daily exercises, trainings, technical competitions,
experience exchanges and simulated exercises. A “one-file-per-
employee” occupational health record has also been set up. During
the year under review, CRSB attained 100% in the coverage of
training sessions on safety education, health examinations for the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases, notifications
of occupational hazards in the workplace and the setting of
warning signs. Moreover, the Group continued the training,
appraisal and certification of key personnel. Business executives
and safety management staff at different levels at CRSB have all
obtained qualification certificates in safety management. At the
end of 2019, approximately 120 employees were certified as PRC
registered safety engineers, and all staff who engaged in special
operations possessed valid qualification certificates.

STAFF CARE

The Group strives to create a caring work environment. The Group
has established the “Snow Relief Fund” since 2006 that has been
helping staff and families with personal and health challenges
through internal donations. In 2019, the Group has provided
assistance to more than 20 employees in need. During the year
under review, the Group’s senior management continued the visit
to frontline staff to understand their needs, strengthen team
building and reinforce staff care management. In addition, the
Group carried out a “Summer Cooling Gift” campaign during the
peak production period in summer, where heat stroke prevention
products were distributed to frontline workers. The Group’s senior
management also cared for production and sales frontline staff
and visited those in difficulties during festive holidays. Meanwhile,
all regional companies continued to organize health checkups
and trainings for staff as well as outdoor physical activities and
club events, to promote work-life balance, raise awareness on
occupational diseases and improve both physical and mental health
of all staff.
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FOOD SAFETY AND PRODUCT QUALITY

The Group upholds the high quality and stringent requirements,
with the aim of “be an outstanding enterprise to brew the best
beer in the world”, the Group has formulated its policy on product
quality that emphasizes “quality first, consumers as top priority, be
innovative and excellent together with fulfill social responsibilities”,
adopted “continuing to satisfy consumer needs, create value
and reward the community, shareholders and employees” as our
belief, to constantly enhance product quality and fulfill the mid-
to-premium grade at “Beer” national standard.

The Group has stayed focused on strengthening its quality
management system and standardization development, planning
and having trial runs for multi-system collaboration. In 2019,
the Group’s production units have made further progress in the
management system certification including Quality Management
System (ISO9001), Environmental Management Systems

(1ISO14000), Occupational Health and Safety Management System
(1ISO18001), Food Safety Management System (ISO22000) and
HACCP (Hazardous Analysis and Critical Control Point). Also, the
Group organized expert team to improve 96 standards, to foster
development with “compliance” and lead production of each of
its plants with high standards to ensure product quality.
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The Group has attached great importance to quality risk
management based on whole industry chain and strictly controlled
the quality of ingredients used in beer production at source to
ensure the quality of beer products. In 2019, the headquarters,
regional companies and breweries worked in coordination to assess
the quality system and quality assurance, conducted assessments
of more than 650 suppliers, which established a “uniform national
mechanism” to supplier quality management. Furthermore, the
Group has employed the nationally recognized third parties as
inspection to perform food safety testing on the samples of raw
materials and ancillary materials used in beer production. A total
of 120 samples from over 100 suppliers were tested.

During the year under review, the Group has driven for continuous
improvements and satisfying consumer demands by overseeing
and analyzing production quality, quality conformity and consumer
quality. The Group’s products was also in the leading position in
the industry as compared with the quality of the peers products.
In 2019, both the Group’s ex-factory quality conformity rate and
the conformity rate for National Safety Supervision and Inspection
random inspection reached 100%. For the purpose of obtaining
more comprehensive and objective information on consumer
quality experience, and extending the scope of the consumer
quality assessment, the Group has proactively conducted the
consumer tasting events. During the year under review, the event
called “I am a quality officer — CRSB consumer tasting event” was
held in the universities in Wuhan and Dalian. The event aimed at
attracting university students as the representative of young group
to take part in the tasting events, and assess the products from the
consumer perspectives, in order to promote quality improvement
and product innovation.
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In the meantime, the
Group has been committed
to improving technological
innovation capacity and
working hard on new
product and special
product development, so
as to satisfy the diverse
demands of the new
generation of consumers.
In 2019, the Group have
launched several new
products, such as “SNOW
MARRSGREEN BEER” and
“Lowen White Beer”,
which earned positive consumer feedbacks. During the year
under review, the Group’s project “research and application of
efficient operation technology for high-speed packaging line of
canned beer and protection system on product diversification”
won the Best QIC-V Award (the top grade) in the Fourth National
Quality Innovation Competition organized by the China Quality
Association, and was certified as international leading standard
by Technical Committee of China Alcoholic Drinks Association.
The project “research and practice of highly efficient operation
technology for beer’s packaging line” was awarded Scientific and
Technological Progress Award (Second Prize) in 2018 by China
Alcoholic Drinks Association.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In 2019, the Group has had stringent internal guidelines in place
for its supply chain management. The process for co-operation with
suppliers has been assessed monthly regarding seven indicators:
quality, timeliness, accuracy, declined orders, returned goods,
violation behaviors and flawed products to ensure quality services
and product quality. During the year under review, the Group
reviewed more than 300 raw and auxiliary ingredients, packaging
and non-productive material suppliers in 2019 based on integrated
assessments, and the passing rate reached approximately 99.7%.
The Group has continued to renew its internal supplier list and
implement dynamic management to formulate “Supplier list 2020”
and “Supplier list for non-productive materials 2020". During the
year under review, around 2% of suppliers were phased out, while
the successful rate for new supplier introduction was around 6%.

The Group has strictly based on the “Regulations for Suppliers
Management” to formulate “Criteria for Selecting Potential
Suppliers” and “On-site Inspection Criteria for Selecting Suppliers”
as the basic requirement to shortlist suppliers. The process of
shortlisting potential suppliers is carried out by the supplier
management working group and consulted by the supplier
management committee that is composed of staff assigned
by legal, finance, technical and procurement departments. The
suppliers will be approved by the procurement committee and
requested to sign an Integrity Agreement “Sunshine declaration”.
In order to obtain quality sourcing, eliminate outdated suppliers,
promote management and upgrade installation, the Group
implemented differentiated revisions by various materials categories
in 2019 based on the status of supply resources, and enhanced the
certification standards on site inspection of suppliers for 22 items.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION AND CONSUMER DATA
PROTECTION

In 2019, the Group has continued to improve customer service
system and has established a rapid market complaint response
system. The Group has followed up with the feedbacks of unified
nationwide customer service hotlines, regulated the compensations
for quality complaints and modified the management requirements,
and improved feedbacks of unpleasant experience from customers
and the corresponding handling process, while upgrading customer
service and engaging in corporate social responsibilities. To eliminate
contaminated beer, reduce customer complaints and improve
product quality, the Group has introduced the project of elimination
of quality defects and reduction of quality-related complaints
during the year under review, so as to designate key control points
throughout the production chain, strengthen control over key
production process, eliminate contamination in beer production
and enhance customer satisfaction, based on the principles of
controlling at source, eliminating during production, managing risks
at controllable level and growing steadily.
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The Group's work on information confidentiality is managed
through the principle of both centralized and decentralized initiatives
with organizational management at multiple levels. Customer
information is managed at multiple levels through encoding and
setting of access authority. Confidential information system is run
in the Group’s internal web, and the Internet is protected and
managed by firewall and invasion alert systems. Employees involving
in the work of relevant confidential information are required to
sign confidentiality agreements and abide by laws on confidential
information and “Guidelines on Confidential Work Management”
and uphold their duties of safeguard information security.

GOVERNANCE OF INTEGRITY

Maintaining integrity has always been an important mission
of the Group. The Group puts in a lot of effort in abiding by
and in executing the laws and regulations of the state against
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, which include
the “Constitution”, “Supervision Law”, “Criminal Law” and
“Criminal Procedure Law” of the People’s Republic of China. We
also implemented the provisions pertaining to commercial bribery,
extortion and fraud under the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law” and
the provisions pertaining to money laundering under the “Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China”. During
the year under review, the Group did not have any litigation case
or major breach that involve corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
or money laundering.

During the year under review, the Group observed stringent
compliance with and implementation of the pertinent regulations
of its parent company, China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, such as the “Guidance for the Handling of Complaint
Letters and Visits and Discipline Execution and Examination”,
“CRH Provisional Regulations for Staff Violation of Disciplines and
Regulations” and “Ten Directives of China Resources”, among
others, while implementing the “Rules against Staff Violation
of Disciplines and Regulations”, with a view to preventing and
containing corruption at the source.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

55



56

REATEHE - WS - BIrRE - TEM
B -MizchSESTNENFBRAA
AP HARBESZERYE - BIEUNUE
L BRRS Meks w53 HE - T
AMEE - RRALMREZILRILEET
N FEt REFHRIESELEEND
W% - RIPEELE - HEERAIEM
BEMlEHEIR -

HpgFE

HRN2019B R EERRIE - AEB KL
RIBR RORKAL - NIRRT HFEZ I
i TEEsk BARBMUREIESLHA
WIRE  EHRARNASHEELRR M
izl kB ME B EERR - INEETT
BIERBRR  mEReALHEREEBL
fE - AEBEHATIFRES @ thiEE
AREHENRBLEIE BERZEM
BERBIELTE -

AEREHEZERBETIRBBERT  &EE
ZHETRRE - EBRTREALFBER
T BEXEARIERTI EREAIZ S
REMARET B2 huRBEHETL
B BRITEMET IR IMA - £RE
BREI - ARIET I TH B - AREH %L
HEHAMMEET  RNSXGEFE
B R £ESERBENESELE
BEERHEN—HENER  EREZ
HRRSARMIFER - BREARNRS
AE > XMAREFHE - LmER -

The Group organized various cautionary integrity education
seminars for those staff occupying key positions in the major
aspects like sales, finance, procurement tendering, construction
projects, as well as logistics and transportation. The Group
strictly forbid any acts such as manipulating one’s powers for
personal benefit, special treatment in exchange for special or
sexual favours, bribery and corruption, nepotism, seeking personal
benefit and receiving gifts and money. Meanwhile, the employees
of the Group strictly comply with business ethics and stringent
confidentiality of commercial secrets, protect information security
and improve awareness of self-restraint and integrity at work.

TOGETHER WE FIGHT AGAINST THE
CORONAVIRUS OUTBREAK

In view of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19), the Group
has set up an emergency response team that swiftly responded
to the prevention and control of the virus. All units of the Group
have clearly defined roles and responsibilities on prevention and
control work, an effective leadership system, a prevention and
control system as well as supervision and management system,
in order to carry out its anti-epidemic duties and ensure the
all-round preventive and control measures achieve the best
results. The Group convenes regular work scheduling meetings
to coordinate its emergency work on virus control and oversee
the implementation work of all units on various measures under
relevant requirements.

Under strict implementation measures on prevention and control,
the Group has arranged for the gradual resumption of work.
Regional companies, teams and factories have carried out all-
round anti-epidemic prevention and control measures, as well
as arranged for the systematic resumption of work by following
government policies and guaranteed the safety and health
of staff. The work resumption progress was smooth with no
abnormal cases. With a view to maintaining the steady supply
of its products, the Group’s marketing team has resumed work
gradually and has reconnected with customers. Meanwhile, CRSB
has reminded distributors in “A Letter to Distribution Partners
from CRSB” to be extra vigilante in their personal protection
against the virus and reduce risk of infection. Furthermore, it
encourages distributors to work together to fight against the virus
and overcome the crisis.
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In order to prevent the widespread of virus and minimize the
exposure of its employees to the virus, the Group has set up
the standardized virus control mechanism, aiming to prevent
infection from external parties and avoid any internal spread. The
regional companies of the Group have provided flexible working
hours and alternating shifts, along with allowing those who work
in routine operations to work in remote offices, depending on
the requirements of national and local policies alongside actual
circumstances. To enhance the security in the workplace for
employees back at work, and strengthen their health and safety,
CRSB has created a series of micro-lectures on “anti-coronavirus
measures”, guidelines for virus control, health tips, produced
an online learning platform on virus control and an online
guestion-and-answer system, for the delivery

= of comprehensive virus control messaging to

@ all staff members. The Group has created a
checklist of anti-epidemic materials, such as
scarce materials including surgical masks and
sterilizing liquid, while also mobilizing resources
from all sides to search and purchase essential
materials for protecting those back at work.
& Moreover, the Group conducted thorough
: inspections on employees’ health and travel
destinations, in order to look at the health
condition of employees who came back from
or went near quarantine zones after Chinese
New Year. The Group arranged for staff to
sanitize working areas every day, to ensure the
workplace, production plants and the public
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areas were thoroughly cleaned and sanitized.

The Group also actively responded to this sudden virus outbreak by
donating RMB15 million to related charities in Wuhan City, Hubei
province on 1 February 2020 for the procurement of emergency
medical supplies such as masks, disinfectants, medical goggles and
ventilators, to provide better protection for medical staff while
they are performing medical treatment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR WERFTEEA: MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY'’S

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
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AGE {
41Z50% ¢ 3 ﬁ‘l
Age 41-50: 3

51260% : 4
Age 51-60: 4
60 LA L+ 4

Age 60 above: 4

EFXEZACRMNAREEZF2NE
WMo  REZAZ FHEZAZ
REZERWK ARSI
FRTESE FZATFEHHD
FARZFERTEFEEL  RIZR
SEBEEZTREBLTLENR -

“ENF - ABHMITERITE
FSBHAGTES  EERERA
FRAESWAR T~ AT IR
Sty 1B - DA B ok L5
ABLF 7 5T 38 % 0 R0E 55 -

1.

A balanced portfolio of Board members by age and length of
Board services. Besides, the directors draw a vast experience
and diversified knowledge across different disciplines,
including the areas of trading and commerce, accounting
and finance, legal, banking and civil services.

EEcRSFH

Length of Board services

10 LA : 5
Less than 10 years: 5

105 E 6
10 years or above: 6

Board committees are a vital part of the Board effectiveness.
To facilitate more professional advices of various areas in
the committees, the members of Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are mainly
constituted by Independent Non-executive Directors and
each committee is chaired by a different Independent Non-
executive Director.

In 2019, a majority of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, together with certain Executive Directors and
management, have been arranged a site visit to a brewery
in Wuhan, Hubei and a brewery consolidated from Heineken
China in JiaShan, Zhejiang.
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4.  With effect from 29 April 2019, Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas
van den Brink has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company. He has worked for the Heineken
Group, the long-term strategic partner of the Group, for
many years. He is nominated to succeed Mr. Jean-Francois
van Boxmeer as Chairman of the Executive Board and CEO
of Heineken N.V. from 1 June 2020. He is President of
Heineken APAC and a member of the Executive Team of
Heineken N.V.. His rich global industry experience can offer
more professional advice to the Board.

It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid
corporate governance framework is essential to the successful
growth of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder
value. The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasising a quality Board, accountability
to all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate
Governance Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual,
which was revised on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010,
21 March 2012, 7 December 2015, 18 March 2016 and 21
November 2018, incorporates almost all the Code Provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(“Listing Rules”) and includes the implementation details for the
Code Provisions and, where appropriate, the Recommended Best
Practices. The CG Manual can be downloaded from the Company’s
website and copies are available on request to the Company
Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, save
and except the following:

In respect of Code Provisions A.2.1 to A.2.6 and A.2.8 to A.2.9
of the CG Code, since the resignation of Mr. Chen Lang as the
Chairman with effect from 11 July 2019, the position of the
Chairman has been vacant and has not been filled up as at the
date of this report. The Board of the Company as a whole and
its members have discharged the duties under the aforementioned
Code Provisions of the CG code as appropriate. The Board and the
Nomination Committee of the Company will continuously review
and discuss the adjustment to the composition of the Board.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.7, the Chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
without other Directors present. In 2019, the Chairman did not
hold meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without other Directors present, which deviates from the Code
Provision A.2.7 from 1 January 2019 to 10 July 2019. Following
the resignation of Mr. Chen Lang as the Chairman with effect
from 11 July 2019, the deviation from Code Provision A.2.7 has
ceased. For the period from 1 January 2019 to 10 July 2019, the
Board is of the view that, the Independent Non-executive Directors
can express their opinions to other Directors more directly and
effectively at the Board meetings, hence it is of the view the
deviation from the Code Provision does not have material impact
on the operation of the Board.

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the Non-
executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a fixed
term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office.
The current arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility
to organize the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. Further, the Articles of Association of the Company
requires that one third of the directors (including Executive and
Non-executive Directors) shall retire each year and every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The directors to retire each year shall be those appointed
by the Board during the year and those who have been longest
in office since their election or re-election. A retiring director is
eligible for re-election.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company
has not provided all members of the Board with monthly updates
to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties. However, the Company has based on business
situation, provided to the Board from time to time, updated
business information to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties.
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In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company
did not have formal letters of appointment for directors. However,
all directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. In addition, all directors are required to refer to
the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors”, and,
if applicable, “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing
their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.
Besides, the directors are required to comply with the requirements
under the Listing Rules, the responsibilities under statute and
common law, legal and other regulatory requirements.

In respect of Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Chen Lang,
the then Chairman could not attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 24 May 2019 (the "AGM") due to business
appointments. Mr. Jian Yi, an Executive Director of the Company
who took the chair of the AGM, together with other members of
the Board who attended the AGM, were of sufficient calibre for
answering questions at the AGM and had answered questions at
the AGM competently.

In addition to meet the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the
corporate governance practices of the Company and their
development throughout the reporting year and to invite our
shareholders’ views thereon.

THE BOARD

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance with
their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. monitoring the performance of the management;

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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4. approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of
the Group;

5. ensuring a prudent and effective risk management and
internal control systems;

6. review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. recommendation on final dividend and the declaration of any
interim or special dividends to shareholders of the Company.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code, and in this
regard the duties of the Board shall include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in accordance
with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

o approval of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company; and

o review of the results of the internal audit work on the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. The financial statements are prepared
and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of the
financial position of the Group. Regular management reports on
the financial position and prospects of the Group are reviewed by
the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company. The directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, and up to the
date of this Report, there was the following changes to the
membership of the Board:

With effect from 29 April 2019, Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van
den Brink has been appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company.

With effect from 11 July 2019,

(1) Mr. Chen Lang has tendered his resignation as Executive
Director, Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Finance
Committee and a member of Executive Committee and
Share Option General Committee of the Company;

(2)  Mr. Jian Yi has been appointed as Chairman of the Finance
Committee and a member of the Executive Committee and
the Share Option General Committee of the Company;

(3) Mr. Chen Rong has tendered his resignation as Non-
executive Director of the Company; and

(4)  Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu has been appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 11 directors,
including three Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors
and five Independent Non-executive Directors. The biographical
details of the directors are set out on pages 28 to 35 of this
Annual Report and can also be found on the Company’s website.
The relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of the
Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the
then Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent Non-executive Directors confirming his independence
from the Company, and considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-executive
Directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2019, the
Company complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules
by maintaining the proportion of its Independent Non-executive
Directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information
are provided to the directors to keep them abreast of the latest
developments involving the Group’s business and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. Appointments
are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to
the full Board for decision.

All directors (including Executive and Non-executive Directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require that
one-third of the directors (including Executive and Non-executive
Directors) shall retire each year. The directors who are required
to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during
the year and those who have been longest in office since their
election or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 10 July 2019, the
positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were
held separately and their roles were exercised by different
individuals. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Chen Lang and
Mr. Hou Xiaohai held the position of Chief Executive Officer for
the aforesaid period. The segregation of duties of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
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Chief Executive Officer’'s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Since Mr. Chen Lang’s resignation as the Chairman with effect
from 11 July 2019, the position of the Chairman has been vacant
and has not been filled up as at the date of this Annual Report.
The Board of the Company as a whole and its members have
discharged the duties under the aforementioned Code Provisions
of the CG code as appropriate. The Board and the Nomination
Committee of the Company will continuously review and discuss
the adjustment to the composition of the Board.

Mr. Chen Lang, the then Chairman could not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2019 (the
"AGM") due to business appointments. Mr. Jian Yi, an Executive
Director of the Company who took the chair of the AGM, together
with other members of the Board who attended the AGM, were
of sufficient calibre for answering questions at the AGM and had
answered questions at the AGM competently.

The Chief Executive Officer and either the chairman or at least
one member of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee
and Nomination Committee attended the annual general meeting
to ensure effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company. Separate resolution was proposed at the annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including re-election
of each retiring director and was put to vote at the meeting by way
of poll. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the meeting.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between these regular meetings,
the Board meets to discuss and consider major issues (whether
or not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions
when Board decisions are required. With respect to regular
meetings of the Board, directors usually receive at least 14 days
prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With
respect to other meetings called, directors are given as much
notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
The directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the directors.
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During the year of 2019, 4 meetings were held by the Board.
The attendance of the directors at general meeting(s), Board
meeting(s), Audit Committee meeting(s), Compensation
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MIRAZASSWUMFREH T IX: Committee meeting(s) and Nomination Committee meeting(s) held

in 2019 is set out in the table below:

BRERAERE 82 FMzERS REERS
Annual General Board HRERS Compensation ~ Nomination
Meeting SWHERY Audit Committee  Committee Committee
(2WHERY Meeting(s) (SWHERY (SUHERY (SUHERY
Meeting attended/ Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Meeting(s)
attended/ 4T R #held) attended/ attended/ attended/
1T R #held) R TR ¥held) ZE{TREheld) TR Eheld)
#1TEE Executive Directors
PREA K 4O Mr. Chen Lang” 0/1 12
#5 5% Mr. Jian Yi " 4/4
BE/LE Mr. Hou Xiaohai 0N 214
BRELE Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin 7n 4/4 12
3E$h 4T EE Non-executive Directors
PRoR S £ Mr. Chen Rong? 0N 22
Rgtkfa Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank 7 3/4
Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas
van den Brink® 1 33
WAILBEE Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu® TER/NA 212
¥ 7 3EH1TEZE Independent Non-executive Directors
BATFEE Mr. Houang Tai Ninh N a/4 22 33 )
FREBL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 11 4/4 212 33 22
BEREEL Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0/1 4/4 212 3/3
EBEE Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan 11 3/4 212 12
FAEEE Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 171 4/4 33 22
ZE-NEFENFERY
Total number of meetings held in 2019 1 4 2 36 26
B
Notes:
R: 7€ #§ £ 1% Regular Meeting
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o
n e

CTRITERASEEEREBZAS

(2)

Mr. Chen Lang resigned as Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Finance Committee and a member of Executive
Committee and Share Option General Committee of the Company with effect from 11 July 2019.

BREET-ZF-NFELAT " RARENERRFRTES -

Mr. Chen Rong resigned as Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 11 July 2019.

Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van den Brink e £ F_F—NEFMA_+NBRZENEARFENTES °

Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van den Brink has been appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 29 April 2019.

AL PEEF-E-NEFLAT —HREZENARAFNTESE -

Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu has been appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 11 July 2019.
FMEZAL RN B —RA2WEH T ERMAABERNERZA B -

Among the Compensation Committee resolutions, one was passed by way of physical meeting and two were passed by way of written
resolutions.

BEBERLRY ARIULUHRHLT «

Among the Nomination Committee resolutions, two resolutions were both passed by way of physical meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of
a listed company and the Company’s business and governance
policies. The Company also provides briefings and other training
to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skill.

All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has sent reading materials to directors on regulatory
updates or information relevant to the Company or its business.

In 2019, a majority of the Independent Non-executive Directors,
together with certain Executive Directors and management, have
been arranged a site visit to a brewery in Wuhan, Hubei and a
brewery consolidated from Heineken China in JiaShan, Shanghai.
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ARBEEREHEETFRNERIFE
TULRRBINZE R - AXR1FBIHT

Tk

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.

Details of which are set out in below table:

BETURRZXF

Type of Continuous Professional Development

BERI - HERTS
R/Fe2WR/HiLis
gFHiFe RS
2R/ HiiEHA
Receiving training,
attending and/or giving
talks at seminar and/or

AEEXALATHELS
ZEHEERNRTR
Reading regulatory updates
or information relevant
to the Company or its

conference and/or forums business

T EE Executive Directors
R BA 5 & Mr. Chen Lang® v
B EE Mr. Jian Yi v v
rZEEE Mr. Hou Xiaohai v v
REFEE Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin v v
JE$H1TEE Non-executive Directors
BroR & Mr. Chen Rong® v
LR E Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank v v

Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas

van den Brink v v
i ARAL P E Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu v
¥ 7 3EH1TEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BERTHE Mr. Houang Tai Ninh v
FREHET Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric v v
MESHEL Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses v v
BEBEE Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan v v
FME R A Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon v v

B -
Notes:

(1) BOUAET-_F-AELA+T-—RHENARTRNTES EFEZ2IR MEZEA2TEFE HOTZACRMENEBEASK

o
e

Mr. Chen Lang resigned as Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Finance Committee and a member of Executive

Committee and Share Option General Committee of the Company with effect from 11 July 2019.

(2) BREET-F-NFLA+T BEEALQFFRTES -

Mr. Chen Rong resigned as Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 11 July 2019.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



EESREN

BEREFSTEMNNBEEMBNIESR

WRARNBMRE - BIRAIROTERE
FRETH:

@ Zhas-EFF2KITTRMRT
ZRALMTALE S THEREE - +
EMZERLBENTEZERS MSH
Eos  wEELS  REZOSK
FMZER2 - JANITERS &
RER2 REZASKFMER
£ EZ BRI - Tee KA K ER Y
E.ﬂaﬁ7$ﬁlmm$%¢
ME EHTARRBEM L - AHEE
5 5 K

b) BFEHRITE -ARFLEHNATE
BITEXABERNTELE My
FHRITBENMRmMESES AT -

REBERS
TR BATAEEMRIIFERNTES)

R FREFL  BREREL  FRE
TE(2FNIMZIFNTESR) MR
EFERERITESR)

REZACHWBRRBERTEST2HOR

CEER o NERRCRRK  HETERRINE
EREI URIFHIREAEENEHTZ

EER-ERZACHBUEER
BEE2ZERRNTFIBRTIARG - 5881
BERAR ,\J\&I{’E&FE’JE W,EIEF
—E-—F=ZA-+—-H8" —hE+
“REBR-F-NF+— ﬂ —1-—5{
T HEHTERRIMARARAR ML - LA

B e

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board
are delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions
of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which set out,
among other things, the duties, functions and composition
of these committees are set out in the CG Manual and
available on the Company’s website; and

(b)  Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman: Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (Independent Non-executive
Director)

Members: Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan,
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon (all are Independent
Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
(Executive Director)

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
performance, structure, size and composition of the Board and
to make recommendation after such review and to assess the
suitability and qualification of any proposed director candidate.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by
the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
setting out its duties and procedures were revised on 21 March
2012, 7 December 2015 and 21 November 2018, and are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. A summary of work done by the
Nomination Committee during the year include, among other
things:

. review the performance, structure, size and composition of
the Board.

o make recommendations on the appointment of Mr. Rudolf
Gijsbert Servaas van den Brink as Non-executive Director to
the Board.

o make recommendations on the appointment of Mr. Jian

Yi as Chairman of the Finance Committee and a member
of the Executive Committee and the Share Option General
Committee to the Board.

o make recommendations on the appointment of Mr. Tuen-
Muk Lai Shu as Non-executive Director to the Board.

The Board adopted the nomination policy on 21 November 2018
which aims to set out the approach to guide the Nomination
Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of the directors, and ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

Major terms of the nomination policy are disclosed as follows:

(1)  The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and
recommend candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by
giving due consideration to criteria including but not limited
to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@)  Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(©)  Qualifications, including accomplishment and
experience in the relevant industries the Company’s

business is involved in;

(d)  Independence;
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(e)  Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring
to the Board; and

(g)  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving
due consideration to the criteria including but not limited
to:

(@  The overall contribution and service of the retiring
director(s) to the Company, including but not limited to
the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or its
committees and general meetings where applicable, in
addition to the level of participation and performance
on the Board and/or its committees; and

(b)  whether the retiring director(s) continue(s) to satisfy
the Criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
candidate(s) for the position(s) of the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company by giving due
consideration to the factors including but not limited to
those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made from time to
time, in addition to the Criteria.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board
for the appointment of a director in accordance with the
following procedures and process:

(@ The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the
search effort;

(b)  The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the
Company with due consideration given to the Criteria;
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(5)

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside of the
Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold a
meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board
for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Compensation Committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to the
proposed appointment, and where a Non-executive
Director is considered, the Compensation Committee
will make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to
be interviewed by the members of the Board who
are not members of the Nomination Committee and
the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as director of the
relevant director (or any other similar filings requiring
the relevant director to acknowledge or accept the
appointment as director, as the case may be) to be
filed with the Companies Registry of Hong Kong.

The Board will be ultimately responsible for the selection,
appointment and reappointment of directors.
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The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually,
in the Corporate Governance Report, on the composition
of the Board, and launch a formal process to monitor the
implementation of this Policy as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will launch a formal process to
review the nomination policy periodically to ensure that it
is transparent and fair, remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects the current regulatory requirements
and good corporate governance practice. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The nomination policy is available on the website of the Company.

The Board also adopted the diversity policy on 21 November 2018
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity at the
Board.

A summary of the diversity policy is disclosed as follows:

)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having diversity, including diversity on gender, age, cultural
and educational background or professional experience
at the Board in order to enhance the performance of the
Company. These benefits include (i) ensuring that a range
of different perspectives can be brought to the table
when reviewing and considering issues within the Board;
(i) enabling the Company to connect effectively with
its stakeholders as appropriate; and (iii) supporting the
Company’s commitment to improve its corporate governance
practices.

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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(3) Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates may bring to the Board. The
Nomination Committee should set measurable objectives
periodically for implementing the diversity policy.

(4)  The Nomination Committee will review the diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.

(5)  The Company aims to promote diversity not just at the Board
but also at the senior management level where appropriate
taking into account the Company’s own circumstances. The
Company welcomes diversity at the senior management
level, with a view to further contributing to the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.

The diversity policy is available on the website of the Company.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Chairman: Mr. Siu Kwing Chue,
executive Director)

Gordon (Independent Non-

Members: Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (all are Independent Non-
executive Directors)

The duties of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s policy and
structure of remuneration of directors and senior management,
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on remuneration and determining the specific remuneration packages
for all directors and senior management. The terms of reference of
the Compensation Committee setting out its duties and procedures
were revised on 21 March 2012 and 7 December 2015, and are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives is
determined with reference to the performance and responsibilities
of the individual, the performance of the Group, prevailing
market conditions and remuneration benchmarks from comparable
companies. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements based on the performance of the Group and the
individual.
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During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met
once and passed two written resolutions. A summary of work
done by the Compensation Committee during the year include,
among other things:

o determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors and making recommendations on the directors fees
to the Board.

o approving the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
of the Company.

o conducting review of the incentive award to the Senior
Management of the subsidiary of the Company.

For the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Remuneration
Committee adopted the model described in code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman: Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Independent Non-Executive
Director)

Members: Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan (all are Independent Non-
executive Directors)

One of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a
member or partner of the former or existing auditors of the
Company. The membership of the Audit Committee has complied
with the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which were revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have
also adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time
being in force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
was further revised on 21 March 2012, 7 December 2015 and 21
November 2018, and are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, review of the
Company’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s
financial report system and internal control procedures. During the
year under review, the Audit Committee met on two occasions.
The work of the Audit Committee in 2019 included reviews of:

o the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2018 audit;

. the 2018 annual report and annual results announcement;

o audit strategy memorandum in respect of the 2019 audit by
the external auditor;

o connected party transactions;

. the 2019 interim report and interim results announcement;

o the reports of internal audit activities;

o staffing and qualifications of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
independent auditor on two occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the independent auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee concludes that the independence of the
independent auditor of the Company has not been compromised
by the non-audit services performed for the Group The statement
by the independent auditor about its reporting responsibilities
relating to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 103 to 114. During the year under review, audit fees
paid and payable to the Company’s independent auditor amount
to approximately RMB13 million (2018: approximately RMB11
million); fees related to non-audit services paid and payable was
not material (2018: RMB5 million).
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2019 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report
on pages 83 to 102 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005,
the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Code of Ethics has been amended, approved and reconfirmed by
the Board on 6 April 2006, 4 April 2007, 31 March 2008 and
further revised on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010 and 7
December 2015 respectively. The prohibitions on securities dealing
and disclosure requirements in the Code of Ethics also apply to
specified individuals who include the Group’s senior management
and persons who are privy to inside information of the Group.
The Code of Ethics is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, all directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Ethics during the year ended 31 December 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and
maintain sound systems in risk management, internal control and
governance to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The
Board confirms that it is the overall responsibility of the Board
to establish and effectively implement the risk management
and internal control systems to ensure the smooth operation of
business, safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests
as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as
the standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our Group companies. The Group's risk management and
internal control systems include five key elements, namely the
existence of an effective control environment, risk management,
communication and information system, cost effective control
activities and monitoring mechanism. The specific implementation
tasks of the Group’s risk management and internal control are
mainly shared by the management and employees.
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The management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation and, maintenance of internal controls. The
Group has established policies and procedures to communicate
management instructions to all employees, and monitor business
operations. The monitoring activities include approval and
verification, review, asset protection, and division of duties. Our
internal self-assessment monitoring process requires each business
unit to evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls, formulate
mitigation measures in a timely manner, and reduce the recognized
significant risks.

MONITORING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group requires its business unit to identify and assess the risks
and impact at least once every year. The executive management
team of the business unit is accountable for the conduct and
performance of each operation in the business unit within the
agreed strategies and similarly the management of each operation
is accountable for its conduct and performance. Policies and
procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate assets,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring transactions
are executed in accordance with management authorisation.
Monthly management reports on the financial results and key
operation indicators are reviewed by the Executive Committee
of the Board. Regular meetings are held with the executive
management team of the business unit to review the actual
performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Function, reporting to the Audit Committee and
the Board respectively, is responsible for assessing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, adopting the risk-based
internal audit method to determine whether the Group’s major
risks can be controlled by main monitoring measures, formulating
an impartial opinion on the effectiveness and efficiency of the
systems, and reporting its findings to the Executive Committee and
the Audit Committee. Follow-up review will be conducted in due
course to ensure that audit recommendations are being properly
implemented. The Internal Audit conducts independent reviews on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature and risk exposure of the Group's
business, the scope of work performed by the internal audit
function covers all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once semi-annually for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the corrective actions are taken by the
business unit. The Audit Committee will review whether the
Group's risk management and internal control systems (including
financial, operational and compliance control measures) are
adequate and effective, and consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications, and experience. The Board conducts regular
reviews of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the Internal Audit Function and the Audit
Committee.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company shall assess
the circumstances under which inside information may arise
from time to time and disclose inside information as soon as
reasonably practicable in accordance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its
business affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and imposes a strict prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information by directors, employees
and other relevant persons (such as external service providers and
project working team members).

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2019
for purpose of reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems, the Board and the Audit Committee
believe that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate, provide reasonable assurance that the
Group's assets are safeguarded and there is no significant area of
concerns that may affect shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company
has received requests to do so from members of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
members having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests
must (a) state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting; and (b) may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
the meeting. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in
hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form
(by email: ir@cre.com.hk); and (b) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567
of the Companies Ordinance, the directors must call a meeting
within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to
the requirement under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
and such meeting must be held on a date not more than 28 days
after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that
the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate. Such requests (a)
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by email: ir@cre.com.hk); (b) must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (c) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must
be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (ii) if
later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting. Section
616 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the Company that
is required under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance to give
notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner as
the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.
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PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors, be appointed a
director at a general meeting unless at least seven days’ previous
notice in writing (to be lodged no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election and no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting) shall have been given to the Company of the intention
of any member qualified to vote at the meeting to propose any
person other than a retiring director for election to the office of
director with notice executed by that person of his willingness to
be appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the
date appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be
given to all who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of
any person in respect of whom notice has been duly given to the
Company under Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The new Articles of Association of the Company was adopted on
25 May 2016 by special resolution at the annual general meeting
in order to ensure compliance with the Companies Ordinance.

There is no change to the Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder’s Communication
Policy and the said policy is available on the website of the
Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Investor
Relations Department is responsible for managing investor
relations and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’
enquiries.
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The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such
information can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon
written request.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
39th Floor, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

By order of the Board
JIAN YI
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has been principally engaged in the manufacturing,
sales and distribution of beer products. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are shown on pages 185 to 189. An analysis of the
Group's performance for the year by regional segments is set out
in Note 6 to the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 115
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2019.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of RMB0.045 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMBO0.03 per share)
payable on or around 12 June 2020 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 28 May
2020. The final dividend, if approved, is to be payable in cash
in Hong Kong dollars which will be converted from RMB at the
average CNY Central Parity Rate announced by the People’s Bank
of China for the five business days prior to and including the date
of the Annual General Meeting (as defined in the below section
headed “Closure of Register of Members”). Together with the
interim dividend of RMBO0.12 per share, the total dividend for 2019
will amount to RMBO0.165 per share (2018: RMBO0.12 per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting to
be held on 22 May 2020 (the “Annual General Meeting”), all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2020
for registration.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company after the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
28 May 2020, and the register of members of the Company will
be closed on Thursday, 28 May 2020, during which no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2020 for
registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Risk
Management”, “Corporate Social Responsibility” and “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 12 to 13, pages 18 to 21, pages
36 to 41, pages 42 to 57 and pages 58 to 82 respectively of this
Annual Report.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those having
significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and business unit from time to time. As far as the
Company is aware, it has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Company.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the year are
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB1,000,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jian Yi

Mr. Hou Xiaohai (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Chen Lang (Resigned on 11 July 2019)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rong (Resigned on 11 July 2019)
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank
Mr. Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van den Brink
(Appointed on 29 April 2019)
Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu
(Appointed on 11 July 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hou Xiaohai, Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin, Dr. Li Ka
Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses shall retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu will retire at the Annual
General Meeting and is eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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EEZHFE
EEzEATESTE28TES

B 4
FTERNREARSEAHPREARANER
AEFCNEEFREREFNREEE
HFAN TH;EWWW crbeer.com.hk 2 [#&
RERR - LERITT -

REWZHEBERN
ARFARFRAE AXAEEERL
BEHY  AARHEEALRNEAR
E BT IR R R 0 — R
] AR 22 B IR R 3R 15 R A

ARBERARBREMBERR 2 EEA
BE T I AE A 1R A RS = £ B STAE M AR R B9
AW RR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company, its subsidiaries, its parent company or the
subsidiaries of its parent company were a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 28 to 35.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of directors and alternate director who have served on
the board of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
at www.crbeer.com.hk under “Investor Relations — Corporate
Governance”.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every
director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him as such director in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



EEZIUEHFNE

FZE-NF+ZA=+—H xRAE
%&Kﬁﬁﬂl/\)\?ﬂi T&ﬁ*ﬁﬂ?@f
%%)32 %%@ID)%XV%B)E’\JHQT%\ B
i R AUE R BB SR 1E QIE 5 & B 5t %
fﬁﬂ>%xv*ﬁ%‘t&%)\”*ﬁ%ﬂ/‘\$ NS
BRXHNEIAC(BREBECES X
&M E XA ERINNMIERE
E’J’fﬁmikmﬁ) MR IE QI 5 & Hi Bt %
PYE—"BRAT_ZATHELHEL1EFE
FZEAEMTFENZTIEMABN S
K& iBRE EmANTEET AT
AEFHTIEHEZSHHRETUIMA S
BRI RBERAMNERACIAT:

(F) FTARXAERTEBRREMEXK
R RABHNNE

Lo g |
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO"), which have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained
in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(A) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

HENBZES L

Fe/Re e ¥ H Aggregate

EEME Long position/ Number of  percentage of

Name of director Short position shares interest’ (%)

®Z8 S 918,000 0.03
Hou Xiaohai Long position

BRI e 149,498 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

PR e 271,817 0.01

Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Long position

ox

1. EBARBRGOFPHTCEHERAT
Fo_E-hE+-_A=+—HBEXRTT
R BHBE D

2. EXARBEBE IR EAREETARER
BAZEOHA -

Notes:
1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares of the Company to the total issued shares of the Company

as at 31 December 2019.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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BEEZIUEFNE (v
() THBEEACRTEZBERRE
KR AN

RB - ETUEEHAMRKERGE
MAGEHF R B\HEPD))NE RITH
i R 2 M

(i) T—EABEH - £EEM
BERAB(HEEERTT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

(B) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS
As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
issued ordinary shares of associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO):

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Land Limited (“CR

LB AR 2 W Land”):
HENEBSH

e %e B2 8B Aggregate
EENE Long position/ Number of  percentage of
Name of director Short position shares interest' (%)
BRI e 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
FRE N 50,000 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
B - Notes:
1. I ORISR B4 B AR () 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long

BHELBEEW T -_ZT-NF
TZR=+—-HEATRMHE
HLHBEDL -

2. EXFRBEZRGEHSEEN
KEPEAZENFE -

positions in shares of CR Land to the total issued shares of
CR Land as at 31 December 2019.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director
in his capacity as beneficial owner.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

(B) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR

KITE B 2N Gas"):
HEWNZEZBS

e %e BB EE Aggregate
EEME Long position/ Number of  percentage of
Name of director Short position shares interest' (%)
BROL 1 e 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
B Notes:
1. B RS R ERSR G 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long

BHEEEARST_E-NF
TZR=+—-HEXRTRMHE
HHBEDL -

2. EXFRBEZNG B ES
UNKRBEMEAZENHE -

positions in shares of CR Gas to the total issued shares of
CR Gas as at 31 December 2019.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director
in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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BEEZIUEFNE (v
(2) THBZEZHEEAITE

R @ E

XD PR AE NS (5)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

(B) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDI

NARY SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(i)  F—EMEEBERE - #£EB N (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
ERERAR(EEENDE corporation, China Resources Power Holdings
KATE B 2N - Company Limited (“CR Power"):

HEWNEZBS
e %ke 13 B Aggregate

EENE Long position/ Number of  percentage of

Name of director Short position shares interest' (%)

(E) e 1,200,000? 0.02

Jian Yi Long position

BROL aen 10,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

Bt E Notes:

1. B GRS RE BB kG 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
BHAEHEEENT T —NF positions in shares of CR Power to the total issued shares of
TZA=+T—BZEARTTR®H CR Power as at 31 December 2019.

BHMAEDL -

2. BMHEEFRANBEEREBZ 2. Mr. Jian Yi was deemed to be interested in 1,200,000 shares
1,200,000% f% ) 2 i & © through interests of his spouse.

3. MBS E2SBRTIEAEIN - EXXFT 3. Save as otherwise specified under note 2, all interests
BEIN G BHEEAER disclosed above are being held by the director in his capacity
WEAZEHEHE - as beneficial owner.

(iv) T —EMEEER - #EKE (iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
ERAERA G (HEKEDE corporation, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited
KITEBR 2N ("CR Cement”):

HEWNEBS
Be %ke BRin % B Aggregate

EEHE Long position/ Number of  percentage of

Name of director Short position shares interest' (%)

RoL ik i & 40,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

B E Notes:

1. &0 CET S R B 8 KR IR 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
SBHELEKETFZE-NF positions in shares of CR Cement to the total issued shares
+Z A=+ —HERTRMHE of CR Cement as at 31 December 2019.

BHBE DL -
2. EXFBEBoN R BEES 2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director

AREREAZTNRE °

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

F_E-—hAhF+-_A=1+—H B LXF As at 31 December 2019, other than the interests and short
WEHNE A BN » KIA LT TALQG  positions as disclosed above, the following persons have interests
HRE D RAEF<BR D P IHAEJRIEQES KL or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
B & BIVEXVEHE —_RE=mEMAZL  Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company under
R BEHREIEREARNBNFEENZILM  Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the

MY &= POK © ¢ register required to be kept by the Company:
BENZTHAA
BENSMRMHE
Number of shares in
###,/#%®  which the interested BREAA
Long position/  party is deemed to Percentage of
BAENZAER Name of interested party Short position have interests shareholding (%)
FELEHERAF China Resources Company Limited e 1,684,077,366 51.91
(TR E4E ] (HHE1) ("CRC") (Note 1) Long position
HRBROHBER LA China Resources Inc. (formerly known #F 6 1,684,077,366 51.91
(T BB DED as China Resources Co., Limited)  Long position
("CRI") (Note 1)
CRC Bluesky Limited (¥f3E1) CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1) SieN 1,684,077,366 51.91
Long position
LA (&R BRAF China Resources (Holdings) Company & 1,684,077,366 51.91
(M A& H D (FHE) Limited (“CRH") (Note 1) Long position
LRER (0 BRAF CRH (CRE) Limited (Note 1) 0 1,676,338,664 51.67
(F33E1) Long position
&b R AR () China Resources Enterprise, Limited & 1,676,338,664 51.67
(Note 1) Long position
Heineken Holding N.V. (fff/£1)  Heineken Holding N.V. (Note 1) 530 1,676,338,664 51.67
Long position
Heineken N.V. (Fff)£1) Heineken N.V. (Note 1) & 1,676,338,664 51.67
Long position
LRER(RE) BERAF CRH (Beer) Limited (Note 1) i B 1,676,338,664 51.67
(F3ET) Long position
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd.  Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. oo 192,220,399 5.93
(FF7E2) (Note 2) Long position
Gaoling Fund, L.P. (Fff;%3) Gaoling Fund, L.P. (Note 3) o) 180,470,967 5.56
Long position
Morgan Stanley (fff;£4) Morgan Stanley (Note 4) 10 172,500,908 5.31
Long position
e 12,890,359 0.39

Short position

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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HAEZRERN =N REK(ER)

HE

HEEE(RE)BERARREAEGR LA S5
BH# 4B ANF),676,338,664% £27,738,702
A& AR 1 o 408 & BF (R )E) B R A 7] | 40
81l B BR 2 7] 4% 560% X 25 H M Heineken
Brouwerijen B.V. ¥ H40% Xz + M 4 0E 1)l
ERABNEBEEHAGV BERARN S
RIMB AR - £HEH ) BRAFR
AERARRAYNELBEANE 2 TH
B AT o #H% FHCRC Bluesky Limited#]
K@ e wME AR - MCRC Bluesky Limited
ARG RFE £ARMERE 4
HORAEnLTMBAF - Bt &3
[ + CRC Bluesky Limited + 48 f% {5 K
OB N A H T AR R FN,684,077,366
% A% {5 7 # B X 25 ° Heineken Brouwerijen
B.V. yHeineken International B.V.H) % % [} /&
A &] + Heineken International B.V.JHeineken
N.V. 8 & % ff & 2 &) + i1 Heineken N.V. 7y
Heineken Holding N.V.#J& & HE QA °
It + Heineken Brouwerijen B.V. > Heineken
International B.V. > Heineken N.V.J} Heineken
Holding N.V.#& #1 § F772 7]1,676,338,664 %
P MENZ -

Hillhouse Capital Advisors Ltd. JA 1% & & 12 &
ARG - 27180,470,967 4% £ B3 Gaoling
Fund, LP.E# A + 11,749,4320% 1 B YHG
Investment, LP.E#EEH o

Gaoling Fund, LP. NRHHISE R FHEA ©

BIEGEHFRBHREF)VEXVIE-_RE=
DEWAERARNRFEEORE IR ZER
5 fAMorgan Stanley & % 5k [8] £ #8 5100% =
IRz EH#FH - HF - F5,533,9428 it
% (4F &) %4,178,3590% % 10 OX ©) Th % & 47
AN BENEDRKEE EmTETAHR
20,400/ B 15 (4 ©) » UL R W IE LS
PTET A K252 %M (I &) ATl &
& 3E E ™ T4 T A $£5,510,950/% A% 1 (4F &)
124,178,359 /% fx 1 (% ) ©

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. CRH (Beer) Limited and Commotra Company Limited directly held
1,676,338,664 shares and 7,738,702 shares in the Company respectively.
CRH (Beer) Limited is owned as to 60% by China Resources Enterprise,
Limited and 40% by Heineken Brouwerijen B.V.. China Resources Enterprise,
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH (CRE) Limited. CRH (CRE)
Limited and Commotra Company Limited are beneficially wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CRH. CRH is a beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CRI. CRI is an
ultimately beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC. Thus, CRH, CRC
Bluesky Limited, CRI and CRC are deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 1,684,077,366 shares in the Company. Heineken Brouwerijen B.V.
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heineken International B.V.. Heineken
International B.V. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heineken N.V., which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heineken Holding N.V.. Thus, Heineken
Brouwerijen B.V., Heineken International B.V., Heineken N.V. and Heineken
Holding N.V. are deemed to be interested in 1,676,338,664 shares in the
Company.

2. Hillhouse Capital Advisors Ltd. held the shares in the capacity of investment

manager. 180,470,967 shares of which were directly held by Gaoling Fund,
L.P.. 11,749,432 shares of which were directly held by YHG Investment, L.P..

3. Gaoling Fund, L.P. is the beneficial owner of the shares.

4. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of SFO, these shares were held by Morgan Stanley through
corporations controlled directly or indirectly as to 100% by it. Among which,
5,533,942 shares (long position) and 4,178,359 shares (short position) are
derivatives interest, including 20,400 shares (long position) as physically
settled listed derivatives, 2,592 shares (long position) as physically settled
unlisted derivatives, 5,510,950 shares (long position) and 4,178,359 shares
(short position) as cash settled unlisted derivatives.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
Particulars of these transactions are also set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements headed “Material Related Party Transactions”,
with respect to which the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of those transactions which are subject to
the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules
are summarised as follows:

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018

On 22 December 2016, the Company renewed the
Framework Loan Agreements in connection with the intra-
group lending arrangement with members of group of CRI
and CRH and their respective subsidiaries (the “Framework
Loan Agreements 2016") for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019. CRI is the controlling
shareholder of CRH, which in turn holds a controlling interest
in the Company and thus CRI and CRH are both connected
persons of the Company as defined under the Listing
Rules. The connected transactions contemplated under the
Framework Loan Agreements 2016 will be continuously
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, thus constituting continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual lending cap which can be lent by the Group on
any single day (inclusive of interest received and anticipated
to be received) under both of the Framework Loan
Agreements 2016 is HK$1,700,000,000. Such maximum
daily amount is applicable for each day during the relevant
year, and such maximum daily amount is calculated on an
individual basis as outstanding at the end of each day during
the relevant year without aggregating with the daily amount
incurred on the days before.
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BEXEXS () CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
() BEF=-F—A~"EERERMIN -  (A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
TE-NEFERARDPUKR=Z TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
—\FHRBEEDNZ2ERMSE FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
MHx = H (%) STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018
(Continued)
FEBESRARRTZE—ARF+ For details, please refer to the announcement of the
ZAZTZHMmA AN RS Company dated 22 December 2016.
BHE-_ZE-NAF+A=1+—H1 Information on all the above-mentioned lending made by the
FEN EE$%I?ET#\E’JJ:LT R Group during the year ended or balance as at 31 December
F_E-NF+_A=+—HzZF&M 2019 (if any) were as follows:
(B KRR :
ERANER
BRAR F-%-n%&
Borrower's +=B=+-H
immediate b.¥ L R
RRA BHRA holding BRA Principal B0  Interest rate Balance at
Lender Borrower  company Guarantor amount Duration  per annum 31/12/2019
LRERERE LERN  PELE - AR 1400000000  14/06/2019- 3.915% -
(FE)ERR CR CRC RMB 13/12/2019
BRAE
BHE-_ZE-NF+A=+—H1 For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
FERN- $’§ FAig —F—~NFEZR amount of interest received by the Group under Framework
TR W B B F B B AN A Loan Agreements 2016 was approximately RMB22,000,000
R ™22,000,000;t (A8 X F 498 h (equivalent to approximately HK$25,000,000).

25,000,0007T) ©
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT

TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018
(Continued)

The Framework Loan Agreements 2016 have been renewed
on substantially similar terms as the existing terms under
new framework loan agreements between the same parties
dated 17 December 2019 (“Framework Loan Agreements
2019"). Each of the Framework Loan Agreements 2019
was for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022. The annual lending cap for the maximum
aggregate amount which can be lent by the Group on any
single day (inclusive of interest received and anticipated to be
received rounded to the nearest million) under both of the
Framework Loan Agreements 2019 is RMB2,100,000,000.
Such maximum daily amount is applicable for each day
during the relevant year, and such maximum daily amount is
calculated on an individual basis as outstanding at the end of
each day during the relevant year without aggregating with
the daily amount incurred on the days before. By virtue of
CRI being the controlling shareholder of CRH, which in turn
holds a controlling interest in the Company, CRI and CRH
are connected persons to the Company as defined under
the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 December 2019.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

95

dNOYD IHL LNOYV [ HE iz £

LTI Xk

SYIATOHIYVHS ¥NO OL ¥ &Y

B>
S
i
o
[a)
o
2
o
Fd
>
-
o
<]
<
m
e
2
>
=2
o]

L 552 Ll

SINIWILVLS TVIDONVNIA



BEXERXRS(4) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(F) BEF=—F—RFEEZLEHEFMHPIL -  (A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
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TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018
(Continued)

On 29 November 2018, the Company renewed the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements with China Resources Bank of
Zhuhai Co., Ltd. ("CR Bank”, a subsidiary of CRI) and China
Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR Trust”, a subsidiary of
CRI) respectively for a term of three years from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021, pursuant to which CR Bank
has agreed to provide certain deposit and other commercial
banking services to the Group, and CR Trust has agreed to
provide certain financial services and products to the Group
(“Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2018"). CRI holds more
than 50% of the registered capital of CR Bank and CR Trust
respectively and thus CR Bank and CR Trust are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
connected transactions contemplated under the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2018 will be continuously carried
out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, thus constituting continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Group may open deposit accounts with the CR Bank
and freely deposit funds into or withdraw funds from the
CR Bank deposit accounts. The Group may also engage CR
Bank in other deposit businesses to deposit funds such as
call deposits. Any deposit made with CR Bank under the
Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2018 will bear the same
interest and be on the same terms and conditions as would
apply to a similar deposit made by any other customer of
the bank, which rate(s) are determined with reference to
that published by the People’s Bank of China or such other
rates more preferential to the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT

TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018
(Continued)

The Group may use the commercial banking services of CR
Bank including but not limited to, credit services, agency
services, settlement services, cash management services,
financial consulting service, wealth management products
and other financial services and products as agreed by the
parties. Where the People’s Bank of China or the China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission of the
PRC provides for standard tariffs or charges in respect of
these services, such standard tariffs or charges will apply.
Reference will also be made to tariffs or charges imposed or
offered by other major commercial banks on similar services
in the same period. These services will be provided on terms
no less favourable than terms available to other independent
customers of CR Bank engaging similar services.

The Group may use financial services and products provided
by CR Trust including, but not limited to, cash management,
asset management, custodian trust loan services, equity
cooperation, shares nominee services, account receivable
factoring services, buying and resale consulting services,
debenture underwriting services and other trust and financial
services. Where the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission of the PRC provides for standard tariffs or
charges in respect of these services, such standard tariffs or
charges will apply. Reference will also be made to tariffs or
charges imposed or offered by other major trust companies
on similar services in the same period. These services will be
provided on terms no less favourable than terms available to
other independent customers of CR Trust engaging similar
services.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT

TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016,
FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2019 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2018
(Continued)

The proposed maximum daily deposit amount, inclusive of
interest payable, which may be placed by the Group with
CR Bank is RMB1,200,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the maximum daily
aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by the
Group with CR Bank was approximately RMB550,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$625,000,000), and the
aggregate interest income arising from such deposits
was RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,000,000).

The proposed maximum daily amount of the financial
services and products provided by CR Bank and CR Trust
to the Group on an aggregated basis (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding the daily deposit amount placed by the
Group with CR Bank) is RMB1,200,000,000 for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
use any financial services and products provided by CR Bank
or CR Trust, nor incurred any fees and commissions therefor.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 November 2018.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



=

(

4

=

)

XEX 5 (4)

N8 S 4 B 4E 2R 1 i
F=F2—+tF+=—A=+—8 %
HEREBER AR ([ ESEE
B ARARMERMBEAR - ER
HiME LA iM[4ES G E
BDSFERERBRAE(HER] 4£H
EHAPRBEMNELRMELT  ER
HEWBEAGT  SWIFRER]) 5
7 P8 H 7 m £ 1T 4 R AE 2R e ([
AR R AE ZR ) - iR M ER B
FZE-N\F—A—BE-_ZE_FF
+ZA=+—HiE - Tl £HS
ERAEFARERFREAZTER
73 8 OB 77 S A | A R S N
O~ o RPNIE— R &R
AT L KRBT E B T4
S e M & F it R AR B R R
REMBE-RRAMLE=FZE
BRDHEBMREEMEZER - REXR
N FE—tF+_A=+—HA
HEmrEs Bt FNEEHEZE=
E-)\F -ZFE-NFA_E-FF
T+ A=+ —HBHUE=ZAFEIREZ
BHENIERDINHTRENES
R~ #E i A RM297,000,000
7T+ AR M323,000,0007T X AREM
348,000,0007T ° BT AR 7y 4 &
A e R EHE AR - M nERF
BRAEMERNZE  BRELTN
n o FERARQNF REATHRKR
Ao REE 4 R E ZE PRI T A %
ERXGETFTAEABER — RIS
WHREPRFEHIT B EmM
MIMT ARG IFERERS °

FBEBESRARBTE—LF+
“AZt+—B8RkRZBE—NF—A=+
=Rt RzRE -

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(B)

BEER SUPPLY FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 21 December 2017, China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited (“CRSB”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries, “CRSB Group”), renewed the
beer supply framework agreement (“Beer Supply Framework
Agreement”) with Gain Land Limited (“Gain Land”, a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, together with its
subsidiaries, “Gain Land Group”) with a term commencing
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, pursuant to
which the CRSB Group agreed to supply its beer products to
the Gain Land Group from time to time for the purposes of
retail and distribution of the same by the Gain Land Group.
The transactions shall be conducted on normal commercial
terms and the terms, as a whole, shall be no more favourable
than those terms offered to independent third party
retailers and distributors of the CRSB Group in relation to
the supply of beer products of similar nature and quality.
It is estimated that the maximum amount of purchases to
be made by the Gain Land Group under the Beer Supply
Framework Agreement will not exceed RMB297,000,000,
RMB323,000,000 and RMB348,000,000 respectively for the
three years ending 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 as
set out in the announcement issued by the Company on
21 December 2017. As Gain Land is an indirect subsidiary
of CRH which is in turn holds a controlling interest in the
Company, Gain Land is an associate of a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The connected
transactions contemplated under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement will be continuously carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, thus constituting
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 December 2017 and 23 January 2018.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

99



100

BEXER S (8)
(Z) e {5t 7 A 2R A 3% (4R)

FEHEE-NF+A=1+—HI
FE - PR F IR 7 BB 4 pAE 52
ML A A S B E AR ITTRY
/& B 9 A R 79,000,000 (48
% F #97%M91,000,0007T) °

ERE—F-RFERERHP - —F—
NEERTIRMY - ZF—\FHREAE
i 35 % R T A R AE 2R 1 BT T B A £k
ER ST ETANT 2 FERRFF LK
ERS  ABERRRWRILFNTES
RARRNBOZEBIMEG FRIT -

BIE ETHAMEI14A565% » EFEEAR
A BN AN RN T LR EX ST
= TREBEB 2T MR 20 MHE 53000
SRIERSOEFBEFTITEN =it w5
72 521 W 55 3 4 S 8O ARAIE AR 25 M1 2 BR SR
FEEIE7405 [ 5 L #L WIUT #5 42
KRR WO BIH R TR - #%
BNERARREER R HARES
E-NFF+_A=+—BLEFE:

@ HILIEIEFAEWMSHEMAEZ
FERBENREXEXIHRRAR
AESESHE:

(o) FAAKHEHREMKRS LR
RGP, EATIRINEMEUSE
BEZERFEZTERNTEARBR
SRR R EN R AT

© HILIEIEFMEWSHEMAREZ
RPGEZBERATEREREG X
ZER S BHETT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(B) BEER SUPPLY FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
amount of purchases made by the Gain Land Group
from the CRSB Group under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement was approximately RMB79,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$91,000,000).

The aforementioned continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Framework Loan Agreements 20716,
Framework Loan Agreements 2019, Strategic Cooperation
Agreements 2018 and the Beer Supply Framework Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules and are therefore subject to annual review by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the auditors of the
Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain work
on continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has provided
a letter to the directors of the Company and confirmed that, for
the year ended 31 December 2019:

(@  nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(©)  nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)  with respect to the aggregate amount/daily balance of each
of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap/maximum daily balance as set and disclosed by
the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2019 are set out on pages 185 to 189.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, the subsidiaries of its parent company, or its parent
company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group's total value of
purchases and total turnover.

AUDITOR

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will not be re-appointed.

The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the new auditor of the Company following
the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers and such proposed
appointment is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
JIAN YI
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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To the Members of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 184, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated profit and loss account for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

o Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses

o Impairment assessment of fixed assets and right-of-use assts
o Deferred tax on tax losses
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Key Audit Matter
& AR E T

Impairment assessment of goodwill

FsREAaMSHRERMI=Z(FIEZ21HHIT - &
HTEEREIRMEITNIEE] -

Refer to Note 3A “Critical Accounting Estimates —
estimated impairment of goodwill” and Note 18
“Goodwill” to the consolidated financial statements.

TZE-AF+ZA=+—H HREBATIERR
FENREEE=mbE HERSHLFSFEAR
M9,365A T T EE °

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had goodwill of
RMB9,365 million which arose from acquisitions of
businesses that are engaged in the manufacture, sales
and distribution of beer products in previous years and
current year.

HAEKEESHEESEXESBHBXINSR~ER
i BREFRBHEXHARTI,280B 77T @ FEEHX L
ARMBAIA [ LM & X 9 A R T5,242B 5 7T °
EEREHTRETE  REEBNELGERTENHTR
B&FH - FSEKEEHTHER - #HFULEINSREM
M HR PR SR AR A 4 L 3R R0 O BB 2 f A TR U A 35
KENEBRZHRBRIRFHA UG -

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated
to the relevant cash generating units (“CGU") in
various regional segments including eastern region of
RMB3,280 million, central region of RMB843 million
and southern region of RMB5,242 million. Management
conducted an impairment review by comparing the
recoverable amounts of the goodwill, estimated based
on value in use calculation, with their carrying amounts.
The key assumptions and judgements adopted by
management in the relevant discounted cash flow
forecasts included discount rates and expected revenue
growth rates beyond the five-year projection period.

BTFF-E-AF+-_A=+—"RABERINFEKE
18 DA R &k K 8 /9 AT W el 1 e g R E K A
B AU N IR — P RBHFIULED -

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts
of goodwill as at 31 December 2019, together with
the use of significant judgements in estimating the
recoverability of such carrying amounts, we have
identified this matter as a key audit matter.

BINEHEITMALEXREITHER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FE AL IR XA FLE AT - FATX B IR E HXTORE T
MmO LLIA S RETMHATTUATER:
In addressing this matter, we have performed the
following procedures on the discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared by management that supported
the impairment assessment:

e BUAENRGRHEMERZHENTER
THR - IS RETN A X REA K
ErRAEAE:

o assessed the reasonableness of key input data
in the cash flow forecasts by comparing them
with the historical actual information and
management’s approved budget;

o  BAFMNHzENMEKAEKESHEX
BT AR - e AT R AT

o compared the expected revenue growth rates
beyond the five-year projection period to
relevant market expectations such as industry
information;

. BEFEBBZANNL SRR TZOBER - 5
HA U ARFITHR - RN 5B LI
SRR AITIEE

o tested the discount rates assigned to the CGUs
with reference to our understanding of the
business, compared to those used by other
similar companies, and our broader market
considerations;

. AR Y Bl & 2 PR B ey AN ERE R
BREMMRAHITERERIE: &

o evaluated the methodologies adopted and
checked the mathematical accuracy of the
value in use calculation used to estimate the
recoverable amounts; and

. TR (E VT 4 B9 5% 82 A B8R ARk T8
RAESHT - UTHRERIZEP A E XA X
A W [B] & 2 E 52 A o

o performed sensitivity analysis on the key input
data and assumptions to the impairment
assessment, to understand the impact of
reasonable alternative assumptions that would
have on the estimated recoverable amounts.
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XBEITEW

Key Audit Matter
REREBRNRIA

Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses

BRSEEVSHBENE=()EZSIHAELT - 2
HEHS RN RAGRI LM - +MIR S R HEA
IVENE- S

Refer to Note 3B “Critical Accounting Estimates
— contract liabilities on promotion and marketing
expenses” and Note 24 “Trade and Other Payables” to
the consolidated financial statements.

HE-ZT-NFT-ZRA=+—H  ZEBABRIHN
RERE A DA TEEaRGRFTHRINNEE
BH(ZUH2IRNELTR D) REERSHER - [
BN FZE-NAF+ZA=+t—HELBRXINEXE
A f71 fi e

The Group had significant amounts of promotion and
marketing expenses which were recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account as sales rebates
(accounted for as a reduction of revenue) or selling and
distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019. Meanwhile, the related contract liabilities were
also significant as at 31 December 2019.

EEEBRESREZ AP E NS X 5 5 kK8
BRI ERREERIREEINER - flnEm
MR FHE - DR EENREST ERONER AR
B o

Management records contract liabilities on promotion
and marketing expenses according to the relevant terms
in the agreements with a large number of distributors
in various regions in Mainland China, taking into
consideration of factors such as the nature of the
promotion activities, such as volume rebates, allowances
and discounts.

A B9 W U o0 A0 3B X B2 WIS IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

TEAL IR XA A A - BATHRATTATREF
In addressing this matter, we have performed the
following procedures:

o  ERMTEERZRA - EITAEIAEHE R
HERAMERARIREBXNRE - X
B M A B s 1T A

o understood, evaluated and selectively
tested the key controls associated with
management’s process of identification,
estimation and recognition of promotion and
marketing expenses and contract liabilities;

. ERBATRR TS — 2D » BN EFE
HaeRAGEBERFET TG BEFN
aRMBRASRNFEERFRE RS AMAFT
R ABEEREERITIRPRERE
"Z:

o as part of our risk assessment, evaluated the
outcome of the prior year contract liabilities
by comparing the historical contract liabilities
to the actual amounts utilised in the current
year to ascertain if management bias existed
in the estimation process;
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X HITE I A B9 W U o0 A0 3B X B2 WIS IR
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RERETBRAORIA(R)
Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses (Continued) 5
l
IR AR E B ’ﬁﬂiﬂ%% EHEX - WHAXKASHEN RIFEEEZANTHBITRGREHE MR &
NEWFR D o T — ARTT 5HE Zh P A= A B9 A X B AR HNRARE EESE59HANER 5
%BZ“*?‘J%E%& > SR AR VR A M HE S SRR o FF REBFINETMTIT T HO S - N
If the promotion activities are related to future sales BOLEBREZITNARMS HBIREHEAR 5
volume, the related costs are treated as a reduction of FINRAEEBEN ARG X h
revenue while other costs related to general marketing based on input data prepared by management
activities are classified as selling and distribution in assessing whether the performance criteria
expenses. had been met, that included references to
the underlying contracts with distributors, -
WEMITESARNE RAGAMMIREZR B RENE nature of promotion activities provided and
DRLOHHERDHEBNSEXFENASHE - If amounts of expected expenses to be incurred, E
g%ﬂﬁﬁl}\ﬁaéﬁ’]y\ﬂl RN - XEFPRERNHEE tested the key contract liabilities made by z
JZ il 1 70 2 b management by comparing them with signed 3
Determining and calculating the contract liabilities contracts with distributors and issued invoices; g
and accrual as at each period end and the respective and I
classification as either a reduction of revenue or selling %
and distribution expenses requires application of BESSHAZITNEGRMAEN EEHIT =
various accounting principles relating to classification, bt BSRAT i RO 15 AN 2 A A AR -
measurement and recognition, and involved significant xKo
management estimates and judgements. assessed and tested the recognition and
classification of expenses during the year by
TR HEEARERSZ  RBE_T-NF+= comparing them with signed contracts with N
A=+ —BLEFEMNRIMRERERETZANER distributors and issued invoices. ‘J;
Al ARBINR TS RO ERA M - BRIV R X o
— N EEEFUER - -
Because of the large number of distributors involved >
and the significance of the contract liabilities on 5
promotion and marketing expenses for the year ended 2
31 December 2019, together with the significant §

judgements involved in determining the amounts to be
recognised and classified, we have identified this matter
as a key audit matter.
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Bt S B 200 48
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

XBEITEW

Key Audit Matter
B E &= RERNE =R EITE

Impairment assessment of fixed assets and right-of-use assets

BSRSEVEREMI=Z(RIEZ2iHEIT - /K
TOEER=REBNA~RE]  ME+-AIEER
PR E+ TR AR ] -

Refer to Note 3C “Critical Accounting Estimates —
estimated impairment of fixed assets and right-of-use
asset”, Note 16 “Fixed Assets” and Note 17 “Right-of-
use Assets” to the consolidated financial statements.

—NF+ZA=+—H0 ' H"EHAMNETER™
&fﬁﬂ%&L%Fmﬁ@fﬁ,‘E';\%Wa}\ﬁﬁﬁw,msﬁﬁm °
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had fixed assets
and right-of-use assets with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB19,413 million.

MRINERFTEEMVNA~FERBELIR  BEE
BEOMEEXUSRmEEMHITHETMN - .IF_
BrEREANRSHAKE ST NERBNEML N
BERLEERANRSE - EANSNISRE NN
KA ILEEMP AL KEZERERZE R RBRIZAH
If impairment indicators exist on the cash generating
units ("CGUs") to which the assets belong, management
conducted an impairment review by estimating the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs, using the
higher of value in use calculation and fair value less
costs of disposal. The key assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in the relevant discounted cash
flow forecasts included but not limited to the discount
rates and revenue growth rates.

A B9 W U o0 A0 3B X B2 WIS IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EA IR XA AIEE - BATHRATTATREF
In addressing this matter, we have performed the
following procedures:

o M E IR R IS m = A B AR EY B E &
7= R AR R R 7R A A ORE T R ) H o T
BREE

o tested management’s assessment as to which
groups of fixed assets and right-of-use assets
have indicators of impairment, together with
management’s grouping of such assets in the
relevant CGUs;

. HNFBRBETROI R~ E LA E TR
FERERME - N B TR R YRS 88K
WM RETN - BIE:

o for those CGUs that included fixed assets and
right-of-use assets with impairment indicators,
tested the relevant discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared by management, including:

. 03 12 89 SRR $4E AN E IR R i A B T
FHTER  WHIARETNH B
TRPMABERESTAE:

o assessed the reasonableness of key
input data in the cash flow forecasts
by comparing them with historical
actual information and management's
approved budget;

. K B A G KR SR H i TN -
LE ATl A - H AT

o compared the expected revenue growth
rates to relevant market expectations
such as industry information;
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XBREUTEM A B9 B I 40 4k 3B X 42 W iT B 0

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter

B % 8 7= R AE B A B 7= A9 R E T 4 (5R)

{7 £ ¢

Impairment assessment of fixed assets and right-of-use assets (Continued) 5
il
BEEEEMITHER  HARM7008 FTtEH L BEHRNT L SHOEF - 2FMAKXN &
FAARFEERRESTR - AR EXEE R~ RE ERFERUMLFIT AT IS 5
ANAFOKEAEEARE S - R FSHEMBLH AR BT N
Based on the result of management’s assessment, an SO A AT L= 5
impairment loss for the year of RMB700 million was tested the discount rates with reference h
recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of certain to our understanding of the business
fixed assets and right-of-use assets to their recoverable including the future business plans of
amounts. the relevant CGUs, comparisons to other
similar companies and broader market -
HFF-ZE—hF+-_A=Z+—BBEAFTHMETR™ considerations; -
MEANREFKEEETREAAGREIRNETE ;é
BrE) A RERITERA AR RE S AR E WA E & PR BRI E AN E f}F
ARAMW  BAOUNNER-—DPXRBHOFITED - MERZEARANITENERE: & f
Because of the significance of the carrying amounts of evaluated the methodologies adopted S
fixed assets and right-of-use assets as at 31 December and checked the mathematical accuracy -
2019 (including those with impairment indicators), of the value in use calculation used to %
together with the use of significant judgements in estimate the recoverable amounts; and %
estimating the recoverable amounts of the relevant -
assets, we have identified this matter as a key audit KRB T B o< 52 5 A BUIE Rl Rk
matter. THBREST  UTHRREPHERE
R AR R GBI R0
performed sensitivity analysis on the R
key input data and assumptions to the ‘J;
impairment assessment, to understand 8
the impact of reasonable alternative 3
assumptions that would have on the >
estimated recoverable amounts. 5
2
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XBEITEW

Key Audit Matter
EXRSTHRINBEFRSB®R

Deferred tax on tax losses

BSRSEMSHREAMEI=(THIIEESHHEIT -
1% FEPTAS B R P OB IA | BB (S 7Ns TR I
Refer to Note 3D “Critical Accounting Estimates —
recognition of deferred tax assets” and Note 26
"Deferred Taxation” to the consolidated financial
statements.

F_E-NAF+_A=+—08  HEHADLEFHEM
ST EMBERINE = IARMS0EL T © It
S SHE R E A F A </ AR A B IE B IR T
WSS MAARM32548T T °

At 31 December 2019, the Group had recorded
deferred tax assets of RMB50 million attributable to
tax losses. In addition, there were tax losses relating
to certain subsidiaries in Mainland China of RMB3,254
million that were not recognised as deferred tax assets
as at the same date.

WNTHNELEHMA~S5ELBRTEE R ITMEE
AMBRARITARSFNREEFLEEBHNATFE
LAfE X LR 55 5] o

The recognition of tax losses as deferred tax assets
depends on management’s assessment as to whether
the relevant subsidiaries would have adequate future
taxable profits to utilise these tax losses within a period
of five years from the year of occurrence.

WRERKNPRAEZTERE  BEFERECHED
Al 55 1+ &) 3k 28 Y FUN X9 R SRk Rz 40 B A Y & 2 N B
T E o W F TP RE B R B E KA1 R A b -
Determining the adequacy of future taxable profits
requires assessment of projection of both the amounts
and timing of future taxable profits which are based on
approved business plans or profit forecasts, and such
assessments involve significant management estimates
and judgements.

BFFZE-AF+ZA=+—HHRIHSSH
DA R 72 8 1A S R B8 LA B9 088 RE 58 T PR O I ) BB K S B -
BATAAXZ =N RBHFITED °

Because of the significance of the amounts of tax losses
as at 31 December 2019, together with the significant
judgements involved in determining the amounts of
respective recognised and unrecognised deferred tax,
we have identified this matter as a key audit matter.

A B9 W U o0 A0 3B X B2 WIS IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FERL IR XA EIRES - BATHRITTIA TR -
In addressing this matter, we have performed the
following procedures:

. MARERF_E-NF+_RA=+—Hik
BOBRSSH > BREAXMEARARNSZ TR
BERR BT A S St E R RS E R XY
E -

o tested and agreed the selected tax losses at
31 December 2019, including the respective
expiry periods, to the tax computations
and tax correspondences for the relevant
subsidiaries;

. KBEREMAENTME I ESERHIEME
KETZ TN - LTl &R - FHITHR
T 482X B 2 &) AR & F00M A 9 ok 2 A
AN EHE KRR (B3 AR Sk M 40 B¢ 7 89 B [8))
EhEE:

o assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and underlying assumptions adopted in the
profit forecasts (including the timing of future
taxable profits) for the relevant subsidiaries
by comparing them with management'’s
approved budget, historical actual information
and relevant market expectations such as
industry information;

o EZSREREXEM TN PR H) 1T E H
"R

o checked the mathematical accuracy of
the forecasts profit or loss prepared by
management; and

. BERZENKEERFSETRAITLR @ K
MR E IR JE X bR B & TI0ON 3T R 40 B
EHRITERET X -

o tested management’s reconciliation of the
above profit forecasts to taxable profit
calculations by comparing with management’s
book-to-tax reconciliation schedules.
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BN EZEMSHRENBELF PREE
iR - BB AN ZFHEMESARE
LI LR -

SZRBANNEAM SRR =TI - AT

REERREMES - EUdEF - ZE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁm BE5ZEMSMRIBAE
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ZEUFHFEEERBIRFRANBR

ETRINEFITHIIE - RBATVARE
ERFEEANERERE  BINFEMRS
ZEXR c EXAE - BAVREEARE -

EEREHER
RIOAERNEE

SREEM SR

RAREEINTARERTES frJﬂi”/\
M ECE BN S IMEEN)REFE(R
%fﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ?&ﬁ’ﬁqﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁé)ﬂﬁ%ﬁ% :
HARNEANNNEEZEMSHRROUED
FHEARTHIFHE RN SHNE KRB IR
B 3R P 75 B9 7 BB AE ) S 3T o

ERUREEMSREN EFHRIT
 REHBELENEN  HEEA
BATHEESHEXEFANEIN - UK
FTRBELEN2TEM KRIEESFH
Bl RERABHIEFEILERLE  HiE
Eﬁﬁ;‘— "B RAR -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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BINOBER BRNEAMSIREEMLE
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EiR R BB A B RIL - FHAEBREEA]
ENRZBNRE - RIMNMUZBEB(A
Rl BI)EEA405% [ & T (1B R E MR IR &
BATHEN - Bt 2 INAIRERI T EME
e RN ARENRND M A E
AL ESAEABEE AT - AEKRILE
R EKFENRIE - EFERIIIZBGES
EIHENDHEITHFEIL EE —FKRE R
BRIR 17 fE BT BRE R BL o 45 IR R T LA
HMIFHKE RS2 WEAEMP (L
ML B R RATEFMEAEV S IREE
BEERBPZAVSIREAELNZ TR
FoMAEXNERFRAIEMIEE K -

ERE(EBFITEMN#HITHITH TR
o BATEAT R AL A - RET T A
BEASE o HAVI:

o AFIAIFAHR TRIFREIRMS K
FAMFHMRFEERNFERGKRD
KBS - R R AT & TR AR
XL RBE - A RREUFE R A E S E
wiHEIL - (E NI A& -
mTHRIFAESRER  HhiE &
BB EBREE ORE TR
mHlz £ Fib R R A RIEM
SHMNERBIRERONES TR
BERIRBIRN S HWEKRE IR
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. THRE®EITHEOAMES - AR
TEENEITIEF BB
X 5% SR E P ERAR Il B B AU R R
O o

o

¢

e WNEFARASUTERRWNBIME
EEH ST MEREENEE
o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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ERREE - MRBAVANFEERX
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s UNEAWMFIMERNEMRINKRT
A EMAMAT BEEE UK
GAEMFSHBEEEPERRIZM
FU e

o B REHARIZEKUFZEHHW
FEEFRBGTE - EIMEITEIL -
NENGZEMFHRERAREN - R
NniR REHFITOIR  BE
FNIT - BATA T B R AE £ &
RIE

BREMEDIN BANSFREARINBT
TR =ITEE -~ EZH - EAFITR
ANE - BRERBANEF IR LA
il B (E il B K ERBE -

BINEmMFZERARRIFR - HAHA
ENAERBYMENEXT I EREN
HEMATBERAREAEMRINNCF
MHEAVIRZEN AR ZFAMEMEI - LA
REGEAMBRT  HXNHBEE -

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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MLEHXNAHEEMSRENFIT &
NEE - B KREITEDR - JAIE
ZHIMREPER X LEED - RIFER
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FRHERT - MRAEMHAERNIRE
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B ARME - BAVRENRAERS A
BIZFEM e

AR T Z BB IRE A FITHE & KA
EEHRRX -

FEMAKERITITESMH
ok 2 1P

EB —E-_TF=A-TH

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

HEZZ—-NF+=-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-AEF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
B ARMBART AETMEAT "
Notes RMB million RMB million N
=l 5 Turnover 6 33,190 31,867 -
& K AR Cost of sales (20,964) (20,669) Z
E A Gross profit 12,226 11,198 i
EH b U Other income 7 1,017 993 -
HENMDHERA Selling and distribution expenses (5,925) (5,570) é;
—MRITHEA General and administrative
expenses (5,046) (5,041)
W 55 X 75 Finance costs 8 (70) (48) o
B 35 B A Profit before taxation 2,202 1,532
I Taxation 13 (892) (547)
REEEF Profit for the year 1,310 985 i
S BT Attributable to: ;”
A E R 2R Shareholders of the Company 1,312 977 2
e R RN = Non-controlling interests (2) 8 2
1,310 985 £
B2REN Earnings per share 15 %
HA Basic RMBO0.40 RMB0.30 2
W SE Diluted RMBO0.40 RMB0.30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZ-NAF+=-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-AfE -z N\%
2019 2018
ARMBAERT ARMEHEATT
RMB million RMB million
AEEEF Profit for the year 1,310 985
Hit£muz (%A) : Other comprehensive income/
(expenses):
EEAESREHRXZ2MA : Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
BN S LERER Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 1 (31)
AEEHMLEKE (FMA) BB Other comprehensive income/
wE (expenses) for the year,
net of tax 1 31
AEELEKRELEH Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,311 954
S BT Attributable to:
AN 7S Shareholders of the Company 1,313 946
EAE B R = Non-controlling interests () 8
1,311 954
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FZEE—-NF+=ZA=+—8 As at 31 December 2019

—EF—hF —E-NF
2019 2018
My AEMEART ARTEAT
Notes RMB million RMB million
e B B = Non-current assets
[ 7E 7~ Fixed assets
- BEEBAMN NS - Interests in leasehold land
held for own use 16 - 3,141
- Eal - MEEXIRE - Other property, plant and
equipment 16 15,818 16,491
& AR~ Right-of-use assets 17 3,595 -
BHE Goodwill 18 9,365 8,390
B &R~ Other intangible assets 19 384 124
ARMEITEBEZD  Financial assets at fair value
TTAEMGEAEWEZENEE  through other comprehensive
i income 20 9 9
AT 5 I Prepayments 21 113 240
12 JE 7 TR 5T Deferred taxation assets 26 2,532 2,426
31,816 30,821
b s Current assets
7 Stocks 22 6,018 5,379
R 5 N H b 57 U 5k I Trade and other receivables 23 1,000 906
AR B & I Taxation recoverable 349 240
ERHAETEE Pledged bank deposits 68 67
NekIeFENY Cash and cash equivalents 2,340 1,858
9,775 8,450
oz s Current liabilities
R 5 K EAth 575 58 I Trade and other payables 24 (19,061) (17,637)
SRR Short term loans 25 (511) (704)
HERAR Lease liabilities (90) -
IVERE Vil Taxation payable (194) (29)
(19,856) (18,370)
B R R E Net current liabilities (10,081) (9,920)
BB =R R A Total assets less current
liabilities 21,735 20,901
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FZE—-AF+ZA=+—8 As at 31 December 2019

—E-nE -~z )%
2019 2018
Hx ARBMBART ARMAEAT
Notes RMB million RMB million
1€ & FL R Non-current liabilities
KHIBT 3K Long term loans 25 = (9)
HFEAm Lease liabilities (124) -
12 3E B I A 5 Deferred taxation liabilities 26 (678) (399)
H A 37 3 ;R Other non-current liabilities 27 (1,206) (1,583)
(2,008) (1,991)
19,727 18,910
BARM@BE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 28 14,090 14,090
i & Reserves 5,580 4,758
AABREN S WNEH Equity attributable to
shareholders of the
Company 19,670 18,848
3E 42§l Bg R A 25 Non-controlling interests 57 62
Bz Total equity 19,727 18,910
@5 JIAN YI R =7 LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN

2 & Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEZZ—-NF+=-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-nE -~z )%
2019 2018
My AEMEART ARTEAT
Notes RMB million RMB million
ZEFHZUERE Cash flows from operating
activities
KEMEZI2 Cash generated from
operations 29A 4,804 4,815
AR ERN TS Chinese Mainland income tax
paid (944) (927)
IR & R E 3 BT A5 A Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded 238 46
BREFTHZUELRNEFH Net cash from operating
activities 4,098 3,934
RABHZUERE Cash flows from investing
activities
& & TE R 7RSI Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets 688 394
2 A B Interest received 107 110
BTN Receipt of government grants 144 1M1
e & F — [ &2 A 8 Repayment of loan to a holding
T company 1,400 -
BT — B & QT ITK Loan to a holding company (1,400) -
A pNE bk Purchase of fixed assets (1,490) (1,641)
Wk B 2w/l 55 Of R Acquisition of subsidiaries/
W FTg 23l € Rl € businesses (net of cash and
£1E) cash equivalents acquired) 29B (2,216) -
EMARITEFZED Changes in pledged bank
deposits (1) 12
RAEFHERAZRUE Net cash used in investing
activities (2,768) (1,014)
MAFHZALTE Cash flows from financing
activities
2 E Dividends paid (487) (519)
EfHEARIEZEHIALZE  Dividends paid to non-
2B controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries (7) (10)
EATF B Interest paid (65) (63)
MBENRK A E 5 Principal elements of lease
payments 29C (78) -
BRITREMERRE Proceeds from bank and other
I borrowings 29C 1,875 867
BIRRIT R E AL fE T Repayment of bank and other
borrowings 29C (2,116) (3,729)
MRENERAZ2R2RNE Net cash used in financing
activities (878) (3,454)
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HEZZ-NAF+=-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-1F -T-NF
2019 2018
ARTEAT ARMHEAT
RMB million RMB million
BNERMEEEEM,  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
Ot ) cash equivalents 452 (534)
CRIFE 2 MW Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 30 31
F—A—BZI&KRI &  Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January
FE 1,858 2,361
F+=HA=+—HzM&E£ R Cash and cash equivalents as at
NeEE 31 December 2,340 1,858
MERMEEELERZ P Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
N& RIRITET Cash and bank balances 1,340 858
HEMRITER Other deposits with banks 1,000 1,000
2,340 1,858
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZ—-NF+=-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

24

&Mz
Non- ARG o
FARRFE AN R controlling Total N
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity i
kx  fEME DM REEW &
Share  Valuation  Exchange Retained &it 5
capital reserve reserve profits Total i
o

AETERT ARMEAR ARMEAR ARTEAR ARTERR ARAEAR ARMEAR
RMB million  RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million  RMB million

F-E-hE-F-B  Asat 1l January 2019 14,090 3 (2,348) M3 18,848 7! 18,910
ENEPARS 3 Exchange differences
on translating foreign
operations - - 1 - 1 = 1 o
REERT Profit for the year = = - 1312 1312 2 1310 o
REELENE LA Total comprehensive income 2
for the year - - 1 1312 1313 7)) 1311 ;
S5REARS: Transactions with owners: g
EURBAANE Purchases of additional interest 2
in subsidiaries - - - (@) (@) 4 = 7
RE(ETm) Dividends (Note 14) = = = (487) (487) 1) (494) §
SEEARSEH Total transactions with owners = = - (491) (491) B) (494) a
FZE-NETZA=T—H Asat 31 December 2019 14,090 3 (2,347) 7,924 19,670 57 19,721
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SRR AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZ—NAF+=-FA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

28
RERE
Non EE
AAARFN AN S controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
b1 £
R ERD
Shares held
& GRS LREE for restricted REET
Share Valuation Exchange incentive Retained aif
capital reserve reserve  award scheme profits Total
ARMERL ARMEAT ARMEAT ARMEAR ARDEAT ARMEAT ARDEAR ARDEAT
RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB millon  RMB million
F-5-\¥-F-A As at 1 January 2018 14,090 3 2317) (19 6,004 18,421 64 18,485
S I EER Exchange differences
on translating foreign
operations - - (31 - - (31) - (31
EEEET Profit for the year - - - - 977 977 8 985
TEESENEED Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (31) - 977 946 8 954
372 Transfer - - - 19 (19) - - -
SREARS: Transactions with owners:
AT m) Dividends (Note 14) - - - - (519) (519) (10 (529)
SHEARSEH Total transactions with owners - - - - (519) (519) (10) (529)
FZE-N\FTZAZ+—H Asat 31 December 2018 14,090 3 (2,348) - 7103 18,848 62 18,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources Company Limited ("CRC"),
a company established in the Chinese Mainland. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is 39/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales
and distribution of beer products. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are shown on pages 185 to 189.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save
as specified in the principal accounting policies as set out
in Note 2, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

As set out in Note 29B, the Group acquired Heineken N.V.'s
("Heineken Group”) operations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau on 29 April 2019. The provisional goodwill
arising from the acquisition was recognised.

= — W 3R / Annual Report 2019

123

dNOYD FHL LNOYV [ H 4

GH L) %

SYIATOHIYVHS ¥NO OL ¥ &Y

IDNVNYIAOD ILVHOdYOD ELE

g
®
=
Ik
z
>
=
=
>
=
4
>
o
<
m
2
@




124

— AR E I (&)
SEQFOEN « 81T - A&
B % R

HE2HAS (HE2MAS])
MM TEMBE—_E-NEF—A—AR
MHREREEMNEBEITEMNTE
EIENDREEM S RS &N
([BEAWMSREEND 2 FEN - &
1T UEENMS R ERF - AF
B REHEXNT T EEN -
BT~ DB &N B B RETF -

FEQIENE19S TEBLE HRARERE

(&11)
BELIAENE2RS EHELLRAER LA
(f&11) KEM %
EAVESREEN  WHEREEN2015-2017
(811) FSOERSH
EAMSREEN ABAINEZRALH
£95(1817) 5=
EAMESREEN HBE
£165
EEERVERE MERAEZTHTE
Eh;m\zlﬁﬁ)
£235

KAEAEN - 1T TB AN
MO ROE BN AN & BT B 2 1t B
B K& LAE 21t B el 41 R 47 & W 55
WIRHARMEKERZ W - W T AT
HEAMSREENFI6SHE
BR AN o

1.

GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD, AMENDMENTS,

IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") has issued a number of new standard,

amendments, improvements to existing standards and

interpretation on Hong Kong Accounting Standards

("HKAS") and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

("HKFRS") that are effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2019. In the current year, the Group has adopted

the following standard, amendments, improvements to

existing standards and interpretation.

HKAS 19 (Amendment)  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in an Associate or
Joint Venture

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKAS 28 (Amendment)
HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

The adoption of the standard, amendments, improvements
to existing standards and interpretation has had no material
effect on the results or consolidated financial positions of the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods, except
for HKFRS 16 “Leases” as set out below.
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1.

GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD, AMENDMENTS,

IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” from 1 January
2019, which has resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial
information. In accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 16, the Group has adopted the modified
retrospective approach for transition to the new leases
standard. The adjustments arising from the new rules are
therefore not reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2018, but are recognised in the opening
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 "Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessees’ incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019.
The weighted average lessees’ incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was around
4%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the Group
recognised the carrying amount of the lease assets and lease
liabilities (which were classified as short term loans and long
term loans in the last financial year according to HKAS 17)
immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application. The measurement principles of HKFRS 16
are only applied from 1 January 2019. The remeasurements
to the lease liabilities were recognised as adjustments to
the related right-of-use assets immediately after the date of
initial application.
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1.

GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD, AMENDMENTS,

IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

—®-nf
2019
ARTEAERT
RMB million

T2 A\F+=ZA=+—H
WEZE LAY EE
&R 1 B 38 & 18 SN R4 9L

Operating lease commitments disclosed

as at 31 December 2018 120
Discounted using the lessees’ incremental

borrowing rate of at the date of initial

application (16)
m:-F=F-NF+=-A=+—8H Add: finance lease liabilities recognised
WA 2 B A 49 L fi as at 31 December 2018 12
F-2-hF—HA—BHINZHAS Lease liabilities recognised as at
R 1 January 2019 116
Hep: Of which are:
i 2 1 A 5T AR Current lease liabilities 38
37t 2 M AE 5T S i Non-current lease liabilities 78
116

FRANA-UNSHEAGHERN S
FitE  WFZFE—-N\F+H=*
—HEERFNEEPHEALD
T_IET—HHHYFH?EHE’]?E AR E
HiigAE - TEANABB  SXEH
WEANAMEARNEERR
a4 o

BINNERARA-SHEARNL
M EFREMEX -

RPEEMSREENFE165F -
MAETEERSNIFEEAN LI
NEEE-TE—NF—A—BEH
KEFRERTT o

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal
to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the leases recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.
There were no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land for own use, buildings and others.

Interests in leasehold land held for own use which were
previously in fixed assets were reclassified to right-of-use
assets as at 1 January 2019 after adoption of HKFRS 16.
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1. GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD, AMENDMENTS,
IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The adjustments on the consolidated balance sheet as at 1
January 2019 are summarised below:

—E-\E
+=-A=+-—H RXNEBMS —E-NE
31 December |EEM —A—H
2018 Flo52Hm 1 January
R%E5R Effect of 2019
As originally adoption of B3
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
GEARFEAER Consolidated AERTEAT ARETBEFT ABRTEFT
(%) balance sheet (extract) RMB million RMB million RMB million
BFE AR - #H{EAMAK  Fixed assets — Interests in leasehold
T & land held for own use 3,141 (3,141) -
B R -9l - #1288  Fixed assets — property, plant and
K% & equipment 16,491 8) 16,483
RN Right-of-use assets - 3,259 3,259
RS R E M R U R Trade and other receivables 906 (6) 900
MR R AR Current lease liabilities - (38) (38)
FER T AR Non-current lease liabilities - (78) (78)
SEENAE Short term loans (704) 3 (701)
KHEITI R Long term loans 9) 9 -

BRNAEEVSHMEENE16S
RE R KRBT AN ARV SERRE
HE:

- XN—HEABHEMUFSHOER
EAE—IAX

- BT-E-NAF-A-BRK
HEBHLOF+H+AANE LA
Mt HEHER

AERATEFETEERNBHEH
Bt —mMANEEBAER - R
NTFSERZENTMYZEY A&
AERENBEEITENEIT7SR
FE(EGRUMSHRELERERA21ER)
FASTRAE-UNLHREES — W

M EH R IR -

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

- the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics

- the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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1.

GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD, AMENDMENTS,

IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The Group leases various interests in leasehold land held for
own use, buildings and others. Rental contracts for buildings
and others are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
14 years but may have extension options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions.

In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of interests in leasehold land held for own use,
buildings and others, the following factors are normally the
most relevant:

- If there are significant penalties to not extend (or
terminate), the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

- If any leasehold improvements are expected to have
a significant remaining value, the Group is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

- Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in interests in leasehold land held for
own use, buildings and others leases have not been included
in the lease liabilities, because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
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GENERAL (Continued)

D(ii) ACCOUNTING STANDARD, AMENDMENTS TO

EXISTING STANDARDS AND FRAMEWORK THAT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new standard,
amendments to existing standards and framework that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material'

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting'
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture3

Notes:
! Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
2 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3 To be determined.

These standard, amendments to existing standards and
framework are not expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
the financial statements of the Company and of all its
direct and indirect subsidiaries. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group transactions
and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether
the disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the share of net assets
disposed of was recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not
involve a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.
When control of subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction,
event or other circumstance, the Group derecognises all
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their
carrying amount. Any retained interest in the former
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date the
control is lost, with the gain or loss arising recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
The Group retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts
recognised and also recognises additional assets or liabilities
during the measurement period, based on new information
obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date. The measurement period ends on
twelves months from the date of the acquisition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases. In the Company’s balance
sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1
January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
GOODWILL (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Gain
on bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
on or after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed over the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the previously held equity
interest in the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on
bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- financial assets carried at amortised cost;
- financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); and

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL").

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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(1)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt instruments

Classification is driven by the Group’s business model for
managing the debt instrument and the debt instrument’s
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other income together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated profit
and loss account.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other income and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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(i)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
income in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other income in the consolidated profit and
loss account as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9. Management considers the debtors do not
contain a significant financing component. Thus, the
impairment provision recognised during the year was equal
to the lifetime expected losses.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of other receivable have occurred since
initial recognition, the impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.
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(a)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

FIXED ASSETS
Construction in progress

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly attributable
to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to
the appropriate category of fixed assets when available for
use.
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(b)

(9

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than construction in progress are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using
the straight line method. The residual values and useful lives
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Buildings held for own use
— Leasehold improvements

20 to 40 years

3 to 10 years or over the
unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter

5 to 25 years

3 to 10 years

5 to 6 years

— Plant and machinery
— Furniture and equipment
— Motor vehicles

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed asset are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs).
Such impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

The calculation of recoverable amounts are using cash flow
forecast projections based on financial budgets approved
by management, cash flows covering five-year period are
extrapolated using the key assumptions including expected
revenue growth rates and a discount rate. A reasonably
possible change in a key assumption would not cause the
recoverable amount to fall below the carrying amount of
the respective CGU.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment of fixed assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to the consolidated profit and loss account in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of fixed asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

LEASES

The Group has changed its accounting policy for leases
where the Group is the lessee. The impact of the change
in accounting policy is described in note 1D(i).

Until 2018, leases were classified as either finance or
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the leases.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use
assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the
leased assets are available for the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LEASES (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from leases are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined,
the lessees’ incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities

- any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LEASES (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a straight-
line basis.

The impairment of right-of-use assets is same as the
impairment of fixed assets stated in Note 2E(c).

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss are insignificant. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are recognised at
cost and at fair value respectively. After initial recognition,
other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at
cost and are amortised on the straight line method over
their useful lives with amortisation commences when the
asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of other
intangible assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names
Trademarks rights

10 to 20 years
7.5 years

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are
assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Where impairment exists, an impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
to reduce the assets to their recoverable amount. Where
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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(iii)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXATION
Current taxation

The current taxation charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies, except for deferred taxation liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current taxation assets
against current taxation liabilities and when the deferred
taxation assets and liabilities relate to taxation levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
STOCKS

Stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost (Include those costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods. Purchase
rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase)
and net realisable value or amortised into expense based
upon periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net
selling price less all further costs of production and the
related costs of marketing, selling and distribution.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the consolidated profit and loss account over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

Revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the estimated volume rebates, allowances,
discounts, etc. Sales of goods (i.e. beer products are
recognised when the control of the goods is transferred to
the customer). Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods
may transfer over time or at a point in time.

For sales contracts which the control of the goods is
transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the control of the goods is transferred to the customer.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
RECOGNITION OF REVENUE (Continued)

Control of the goods is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

- creates and enhances the goods that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create the goods with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and
charged to the consolidated profit and loss account in the
year incurred, except for costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities
and debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Upon entering into a contract with a customer with the
scope of HKFRS 15, the Group obtains rights to receive
consideration from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the
customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. Contract assets are
recognised if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds
the measure of the remaining performance obligations.
Conversely, contract liabilities are recognised if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2C. The Group conducted an impairment review
by comparing the recoverable amounts of the goodwill,
estimated based on value in use calculation, with their
carrying amounts. The key assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in the relevant discounted cash
flow forecasts included discount rates and expected revenue
growth rates beyond the five-year projection period.
Details of the key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18. In
performing this impairment review, the Group estimated
the present value of future cash flows of the CGUs based
on the conditions as at 31 December 2019. In the goodwill
impairment test to be performed in 2020, the COVID-19
outbreak and its impact on the present value of estimated
future cash flows of the CGUs will be considered. Up to the
date on which this set of consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group is still in the process of
assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 on the performance
of the relevant CGUs and is currently unable to estimate the
quantitative impacts to the Group.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES ON PROMOTION AND
MARKETING EXPENSES

Management records contract liabilities on promotion and
marketing expenses according to the relevant terms in the
agreements with a large number of distributors in various
regions in Mainland China, taking into consideration of the
nature of the promotion activities such as volume rebates,
allowances, discounts, etc. If the promotion activities are
related to future sales volume, the related costs are treated
as a reduction of revenue while other costs related to
general marketing activities are classified as selling and
distribution expenses. Determining and calculating the
contract liabilities and accrual as at period ends and the
respective classification as either a reduction of revenue
or selling and distribution expenses requires application
of various accounting principles relating to classification,
measurement and recognition, which involved significant
management estimates and judgements. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an on going basis and revised where
appropriate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

According to the accounting policies stated in Note 2E(c) and
Note 2F, if impairment indicators exist on the CGUs to which
the assets belong, management conducted an impairment
review by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
relevant CGUs, using the higher of value in use calculation
and fair value less costs of disposal. The key assumptions
and judgements adopted by management in the relevant
discounted cash flow forecasts included discount rates and
revenue growth rates, etc. Details of the key assumptions are
disclosed in Note 16. In performing this impairment review,
the Group estimated the present value of future cash flows
of the CGUs based on the conditions as at 31 December
2019. In the impairment test to be performed in 2020, the
COVID-19 outbreak and its impact on the present value of
estimated future cash flows of the CGUs will be considered.
Up to the date on which this set of consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group is still in
the process of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 on the
performance of the relevant CGUs and is currently unable
to estimate the quantitative impacts to the Group.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The recognition of tax losses as deferred tax assets depends
on management’s assessment as to whether the relevant
subsidiaries would have adequate future taxable profits to
utilise these tax losses within a period of five years from
the year of occurrence. Determining the adequacy of future
taxable profits requires assessment of projection of both
the amounts and timing of future taxable profits which are
based on approved business plans or profit forecasts, and
such assessments involve significant management estimates
and judgements. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different. The COVID-2019 outbreak has significant
impacts on the operations of relevant subsidiaries of the
Group in 2020 and they are not expected to be profitable
in the near future, as certain of its tax losses will be expired
and therefore the related deferred tax assets recognised
would not be utilized, which will affect the profit or loss
of the Group in 2020. Up to the date on which this set of
consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue,
the Group is still in the process of assessing the impacts of
the COVID-19 on the related deferred tax assets recognised
and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative impacts
to the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank balances.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to
trade and other receivables as its customer bases are widely
spread across diverse geographical locations. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that open account customers
are financially viable and with an appropriate credit history.
To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit evaluations
are performed for the determination and approval of
credit limits granted and other monitoring procedures are
implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on aging
and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group’s exposure to trade and other receivables is set out
in Note 23.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has procedures and
policies in place to ensure they are made to counterparties
with good credit rating.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of adequate committed
credit facilities to fund capital, prospective investment
opportunities, debt servicing obligations and dividend
payments. Management also closely monitors the Group's
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles
of financial liabilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

Taking into account the gearing ratio, historical and expected
future cash flows from operations and unutilised available
banking facilities of the Group, management expected the
Group has adequate resources to meet its liabilities and
commitment as and when they fall due and to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The following table details the outstanding contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's lease
liabilities, borrowings and trade and other payables but
excluding contract liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

BITAREH
F-E2-F FC-EIE NeRELH
2 20 Total
—#£K  Between  Between HBEEE contractual WEE
Within 1and 2 2t05 Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year years years 5years  cash flow Amount
AERBRT ARTBRRT ARTBAT ARMEAT ARMEAT ARMEAT
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million
“E-NE 2019
EREIHE Fixed rate interest
bearing
BRAR Lease liabilities (93) (76) (68) (7) (244) (214)
FHHEER Variable rate borrowings
BIHR Bank loans (514) - - - (514) (511)
(607) (76) (68) (7) (758) (725)
FitB Non-interest bearing
RHEREMMUAZIA  Trade and other payables (11,634) - - - (11,634) (11,634)
—®-0\F 2018
EENEER Fixed rate borrowings
payables
BARY Finance lease (@ (4 (7) - (15) (12)
ERNEER Variable rate borrowings
RITHR Bank loans (704) - - - (704) (701)
(708) (4) (7) - (719) (713)
FitE Non-interest bearing
REREMRAFTIA  Trade and other payables (10,469) - - - (10,469) (10,469)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its
long term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed
and floating interest rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively.
To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan
portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and
review regularly.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date
was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase
by RMB5 million (2018: decrease/increase by RMB7 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

CURRENCY RISK

The following table details the Group’'s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

—g-nf —ENE
2019 2018
"= &7 R i
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARTEART ARMBARXT ARTEAT ARTEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AR Renminbi
e US Dollars

1 4 2 304
224 - 241 -
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B KBS (%)
TRERARDEETRETLIE
5% AEKHENEMW - RIETHE
TR E LRI - FME
REJE DT AE AN T E B
DA - FERAEELN - URBRI
MILERN5%ELS) - EARMIEAET
KR TUIZES% » X A 2 = g
AHEFEEARNEMR -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% strengthening in Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars
and US Dollars, assuming the pegged rate between Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar would be unaffected. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. For a
5% weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and
US Dollars, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit or loss.

—E—-hE —E—N\F

2019 2018

ARMEAET ARMAELTT

RMB million RMB million

X E m A &5 IR Effect on profit after tax (2) (16)

It 7 MO AR R e R R RIRIE R
MmE T o TRERIBRT - mizlx
Aok ® - ERF AN ST
RRESE - AR EAERFK ) F
HS RN -

BANKERE
AEHARITRAREROEM -
BREANZEERSEE -
BEESSMEEROMEA -
35 B4 10 B 3R o AN SR B B 4
58— FEHETR -

Fo o Ao
o 2N

Ny

g

R

REFM R RGN BIEGRS (BIEM
E-THAEEMNER) e KA
EENY  RARRNBEFEANS
N (BREGENAELIRABED
BERITRA - EZREREEN) -

AEHEREERFTWARLEN -
AEHAERARKARZELRAN
BERRR - FEEMRE - RTT
A AEMEHRITERSHERI
BERFSFHN NBERRNEMIE
e

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 25, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the raise of bank
borrowings or the redemption of existing debt.

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019

151



152

o 0 W 95 4 o 3
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

BELENEIBAN 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
—EF—hF —N\F
2019 2018
ARTEAT ARMEATRT
RMB million RMB million
ElHmaEka Ty Turnover comprises revenue from:
WHZWA:
& B @ Sales of goods 33,190 31,867
pali S SEGMENT INFORMATION
AEAEH/
AR AR [ bok:|
Eastern Central Southern  Corporate/ it
region region region  Elimination Total
ARTERARE ARTERAR ARTERAR ARMERART ARFEAR
RMB million  RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
BHE-F-1E For the year ended
+-B=+-BLEE 31 December 2019
L& TURNOVER!
HMEE External sales 16,927 8,073 8,190 = 33,190
PHRHEE Inter-segment sales 351 417 276 (1,044) -
A1t Total 17,278 8,490 8,466 (1,044) 33,190
SEL S Segment result? 1,007 598 714 2,319
KEHHOAFEDTE  Unallocated corporate
expenses (156)
FEMA Interest income 109
g Finance costs (70)
BB AER Profit before taxation 2,202
Bm Taxation (892)
KEEEF Profit for the year 1,310
F-E-AEF+=B=+—H As at 31 December 2019
R’ ASSETS
PEE* Segment assets 19,549 7,859 11,260 38,668
% U Deferred taxation assets 2,532
REEFHN Taxation recoverable 349
KREDWHORNFEFRT  Unallocated corporate assets 42
GARFELE Consolidated total assets 41,591
fifi LIABILITIES
PR Segment liabilities 11,690 4,261 4,472 20,423
R4 53 Taxation payable 194
i fT %R i 7 Deferred taxation liabilities 678
READWHNFAEDAF  Unallocated corporate
liabilities 569
GAAREE Consolidated total liabilities 21,864
Hit R R OTHER INFORMATION
REFRHRS Additions to non-current
assets’ 3,192 539 140 = 3,871
1718 & % 4 Depreciation and amortisation 920 422 375 7 1,724
EBIVAES R Impairment loss recognised 487 240 325 = 1,052
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ElENSBAR () 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
pal R A S E D SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
o
KBS/ S
KX X Bx pog:d &
Eastern Central Southern Corporate/ ait S
region region region Elimination Total T
ARMBERT ARMBET ARMBAT ARMBAT ARMEAT Q
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB milion ~ RMB million %
BEo3-)0\% For the year ended
+-B=+-BLEE 31 December 2018
L TURNOVER'
HWIMEE External sales 15,639 7,680 8,548 - 31,867
DHEHEE Inter-segment sales 426 180 319 (925) -
aif Total 16,065 7,860 8,867 (925) 31,867
780 52 Segment result? 199 396 1,003 1,598 =
RENHAATEDZE  Unallocated corporate ‘
expenses (133) .
MEKA Interest income 115 o
ELES Finance costs (48) -
3 5% B 5 Profit before taxation 1532 >
Hm Taxation (547) z
KEERF Profit for the year 985 5
F-§-)\E+ZA=+-R As at 31 December 2018 -
B ASSETS
DR Segment assets 17,288 7762 11,542 36,592
1B R IR = Deferred taxation assets 2,426
TREH M Taxation recoverable 240 ;
KEHHAATEBAS  Unallocated corporate assets 13 -
GRRFRE Consolidated total assets 39,271 o
R LIABILITIES q
»HHE Segment liabilities 10,456 4,302 4,425 19,183 2
R 8 Taxation payable 29 5
1% B A Deferred taxation liabilities 399 o
REHHOATEDAGR  Unallocated corporate 2
libilities 750 z
BARMEE Consolidated total liabilities 20,361 A
Hi R OTHER INFORMATION
REERDA Additions to non-current
assets’ 810 831 448 - 2,089
il Depreciation and amortisation 847 44 39 1 1,654
ERINBESH Impairment loss recognised 805 202 294 - 1,301 -
»
B - Notes: %
1. BlLFRREB"REEHEE 1 1. Turnover represents sales of beer products and was recognised at a E
SHANEEENFEIRMAARD point of time (Included RMB1,139 million contributed by Heineken g
1,139B /1 7T) © China). o
9
>
2. 53 #Bll S H AR AT R B WA M K AR 2. Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance g
MBImE & - costs and taxation. T
=
3. REFERDA-REEER>™  EH 3. Additions to non-current assets included fixed assets, right-of-use
MAEF  BEREMEERT (BFEK assets, goodwill and other intangible assets (Included RMB2,710
MENFEART2,710877T) © million arising from the acquisition of Heineken China).
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Hit g A 7. OTHER INCOME
—EF—hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARTEAT ARMEATRT
RMB million RMB million
EMWEANEIETH&I: Other income includes the
following:
A 2 WA Interest income 109 115
2 #81A BUT #MBY Government grants recognised 162 187
& & TE R RS Profit on disposal of fixed assets 161 94
HERIEE AR T Y Profit on disposal of interests in
% P15 4 7 leasehold land held for own use 6 -
W 55 B¢ A 8. FINANCE COSTS
—F—hF —E-NF
2019 2018
ARTEAT ARMEAT
RMB million RMB million
AT LT B Interests on finance leases = 1
RITHT RN B A BT R B Interests on bank loans and other
loans 54 62
HE ARG E Interests on lease liabilities 12 -
B Financing charges 1 9
LRSS (W) Exchange loss/(gain) 4 (13)
71 59
BB B Less: Interest capitalised* (1) (11)
70 48

* FZE-NFEN - —BEROMRFE *
BRAMCFRNFEEER134% (ZF—

S\ :1.34%)

°
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During 2019, the weighted average capitalisation rate on funds
borrowed generally is 1.34% (2018: 1.34%) per annum.
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AFEEEN 9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
—EB-AEF —N\F
2019 2018
ARMBAERT ARMHEATT
RMB million RMB million
AEEFEFESHBRTS  Profit for the year has been arrived
£ : at after charging:
Z N B & Auditors’ remuneration
-FERE - Audit services 13 1
-FEERS - Non-audit services = 5
AIRK(BPEES Staff costs (including directors’
B <) emoluments) 6,309 6,324
T8 Depreciation
-BERF” - Owned assets 1,552 1,630
- ERAENFEN - Assets held under finance leases
G - 1
- FANRE” - Right-of-use assets 123 -
Hi TR AWM (B Amortisation of other intangible
E—MERITHERRA) assets (included in general and
administrative expenses) 49 23
EHINBES R (B Impairment loss recognised
E—MERITHERR) on (included in general and
administrative expenses)
- [EE R~ - Fixed assets 700 961
ERi — Stocks 352 340
T REFZELHES Operating leases charges on land
A and buildings = 125
B&E i AR Cost of goods sold 20,964 20,669
55 EBATME A Expense relating to short-term leases 51 -

= — W 3R / Annual Report 2019
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+. EBZEFNRN=RE 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
EEME DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
—FE-hF —E-NF
2019 2018
ARMBERART ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million

e Fees 1.56 1.43

EAREF S REN Basic salaries and allowances 3.50 2.72

NN Provident fund contributions 0.24 0.23

AN Bonus' 5.46 3.09

10.76 7.47
He Hitf 2
Fees Other Emoluments
EXEER
Bl AREER “E)\E
Basic Provident A1t
Salaries and Fund % Ait 2018
Allowances  Contributions Bonus' Total Total

ZE-hE 2019 ARMEAT ARMEART ARMEART ARMEART ARMEART AEMERTX

BEEN? Name of director RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million  RMB million

% Jian i = 0.98 0.04 0.73 1.75 0.45

BZE Hou Xiaohai =2 1,59 0.16 3.70 5.45 3.85

RIE Lai Po Sing, Tomakin = 0.93 0.04 1.03 2.00 174

FriE Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.11 = = - 0.11 0.10

Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas

van den Brink van den Brink 0.07 = = = 0.07 -
mAILHS Tuen-Muk Lai Shuss = = = = = -

BAT Houang Tai Ninh 0.28 - - - 0.28 027

£y Li Ka Cheung, ric 0.28 - - - 0.28 0.27

HEE Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0.27 = - - 0.27 0.26

R Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.27 - - - 0.27 0.26

FME Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.28 - - - 0.28 0.27

YRR Chen Lang?s = = = = = -

s Chen Rong?* s s s s = -

ait Total 1.56 3.50 0.24 5.46 10.76 -

“5-N\E 2018 143 2.12 0.23 3.09 = 747

B E - Notes:

1. BBERELNSERFEZLE LS - 1. The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the
MRIA T THERI R R LTS ST operating results, individual performance and comparable market
FEE ° statistics during both years.

2. REFEZHXEZHWEOHAR - 2. Director fee for the year had been waived by respective directors.

3. EEMESHPELEEAE - 3. The director’s emoluments were borne by CRC.

156 458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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+. EFZEF RN E (@) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
EEME (&) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
BE () Notes: (Continued) %
A

4. ZE-NEFERARLEERSUEE 4. During 2019, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits in g
skiE B e EHRIREFR - B &8k respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made, %
ekt R EA A K(ZE—N\F: directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2018: 2
T)  BRENRHEZTRINE=ZFR Nil). No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties o
HANBINRIK(ZE—NF ) % for making available directors’ services (2018: Nil). There are no §
BEMTES  HiEEGI0EARKR loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their N
RELRWER  ERHKEMBZ S controlled body corporate and connected entities (2018: Nil).

ZE-N\F:E) -

5. WARILPEEFT-NFLAT+— 5. Mr. Tuen-Muk Lai Shu was appointed on 11 July 2019 and both Mr.
AREEMBEARBEREETFZF— Chen Lang and Mr. Chen Rong resigned on 11 July 2019. .
AEEAT—BEE - -

t— R EESHEER 11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES -

HE-_FT—-—NF+-_A=+—8H1t During the year ended 31 December 2019, the five highest 5

FE AEROHEABRE—RE paid employees included one (2018: one) director, details of S

F(ZEN\F:—%) BEHEF whose remunerations are set out in Note 10. The details of >

BETFHET - B (ZF—N the remunerations paid to the other four (2018: four) highest z

F AL &= FE A FT3R A 2 B paid employees are as follows: 3

SEBWOT:

—F-AF —E-N\F

2019 2018
ARTEAT ARMEAT 2
RMB million RMB million b
E AR ROEMW Basic salaries and allowances 3.34 3.22 S
N Provident fund contributions 0.37 0.34 g
LT Bonus 16.84 12.93 B
20.55 16.49 5

g
®
=
Ik
z
>
2
s
>
=
4
>
o
<
m
2
@

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019 157



158

+-.

AEHREZMHEEERRAS
52 FHHEFRKIT Y - ZFiT L
ZRFEREHARFHTERE - H
HRTERZESRAR - HRAT)
RERAZARFE ZHEBAD LT
B MERATEINEFR ZEME
oA R T PR DA DB AN SR 2 AR o

AERNEZEE RS RTRAAKH
WIRANRE 2HR(ZF—N\F:
T )

TN ERSERER (%) 11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
AL (=T —N\F : UAL) &= 5 The emoluments of these four (2018: four) highest paid
NFTHIRE : individuals were within the following band:
A
No. of person
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR M3,369,001 T & RMB3,369,001 to RMB3,791,000
A R 3,791,0007¢ (HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000)
(7 M4,000,0017T &
7 M4,500,0007T) - 1
ARM3,791,001 Tt = RMB3,791,001 to RMB4,212,000
AR ™4,212,0007T (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000)
(7 ™4,500,001TE
#™5,000,0007T) = 1
AR™4,212,0010 & RMB4,212,001 to RMB4,633,000
AR 4,633,000 (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000)
(75,000,001 T &
7 5,500,0007T) = 2
AR M4,633,001TE RMB4,633,001 to RMB5,279,000
AR 5,279,0007¢T (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000)
(7 ™5,500,0017T &
7 M 6,000,0007T) 4 -
RS 12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND
=B A  HONG KONG

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
amount of contributions is based on a specified percentage
of the basic salary of employees and any forfeited
contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers
are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

The total cost charged to consolidation profit and loss
account in respect of Group contributions to staff provident
fund in Hong Kong amounted to Nil (2018: Nil).

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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12.

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND (Continued)

FE A i B CHINESE MAINLAND
AEHAEFEN N REAHETH The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are
HMBXRMARNFAENEREEREIR members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
REFITRIE P R o A8 & 20 [ 1% operated by the respective local government in the Chinese
TN ENETREEB D LER Mainland. The Group is required to contribute a specified
ERBH RS - NEFATFITR percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
FE—SRAEERINEEHRR - benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.
R R & E R AR R R T AE 4R The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss
EMBRFHNBNEXETNEAR account in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in
T407B AT (ZE—NF AR the Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately RMB407
508E 7 7T) ° million (2018: RMB508 million).
B I3 13. TAXATION

—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018

ARMBERAT ARMEATT

RMB million RMB million

o E P FR S B Chinese Mainland income tax

IR E R Current taxation 771 571

136 FE Tt 1 Deferred taxation 121 (24)

892 547

ERBFNESHDIRBRBEARAEE 21T
PR T i A% B R16.5% (ZF—N
F:165%)1TE -

FENMEHE AR ZFTEHEIRE
HBG R SEBIR G TN AR & A
K& BTN F+=-A=+
—BIEFEMNEAMEHERN25%
(ZF—N\F :25%) °

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based
on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with the
relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese
Mainland. The applicable principal income tax rate for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is 25% (2018: 25%).

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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A—&s5HANaE - BREREXAH
RGBT N BEE E AT MOR K IR
FMEAZIERS S ROTRMLE
AEHANERHRESTLAREAB
Ko NEHA KRB B®E A 2B
BRI THREXRBAEXEFREAHRE
HEZEIEHZ  FHEMT:

13. TAXATION (Continued)

The effective tax rate is higher than the domestic rates
mentioned above as there were tax losses arising from
certain loss-making subsidiaries, including breweries which
were determined to be closed down, of which no deferred
tax assets were recognised as the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is not
probable. The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the domestic rates applicable to the country concerned as

follows:

—F—hF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
ABTEAT ARMHATL
RMB million RMB million
B 54 A1 4 A Profit before taxation 2,202 1,532
WBEXERERHEEITE Tax calculated at the domestic rates
2 T I applicable in the country concerned 552 365
T IR T 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (2) (19)
NAIHR 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 72 47
FAFRAEHIAZER Utilisation of previously unrecognised
=5 temporary difference (318) (243)
REBWIANZMA KL M Tax losses and temporary difference
=% not recognised 541 437
EFEZHRE M Over provision on taxation in previous
year (11) (58)
Ko BFEZ MINFTSEE Withholding tax on undistributed
profits 58 18
IS Taxation charge 892 547

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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102 14. DIVIDENDS
—E—hEF —E-)N\FE
2019 2018 5
ARTEAL ARTEAL 5
RMB million RMB million z
ZE-NFMEIRAFE 2019 interim dividend paid of J
R 2 EiRE®ERARM  RMB0.12 per ordinary share 5
0127 (ZF—N\%F: (2018: RMB0.09) e
AR M0.097T) 390 292
TE-RAFHEURAKRE 2019 proposed final dividend of B
s B EARE B ARM  RMB0.045 per ordinary share (2018:
0.0457T (ZF —\5F: RMBO0.03)
AER0.037T) 146 97 =
536 389 2
3
B Note: e
ERARATFZZE_FTF=ZA_THHETH2 At the meeting held on 20 March 2020, the directors proposed final ;
WE BFRLURRGARETREBRARD dividend of RMB0.045 (2018: RMB0.03) per ordinary share. This proposed %
0.045T (ZZE—N\F: ARM0.037T)  LURAR dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number of ordinary shares 5
BOEARRTHATERZT2CWEANER as at the date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these 2
BRERHUTE  ZEREHLTREMSZRE consolidated financial statements. The total dividends paid by the Company, 7
NEINARGR - RFEEEMHIRE RS including the final dividend for the year 2018 and the interim dividend for
ARBIRMNOBRE BFMERE_ZT—N\EFEN the year 2019, amounting to RMB487 million (2018: RMB519 million) are e
RERER-ZZE-NFENFHRE - B8 reflected in the current year consolidated financial statements.
AARMATA T L (ZF—N\F: ARM519
BTT) °
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+thL.SREF 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

162

—®2-n&E -—T-N\%
2019 2018
ARTBEART ARMEATT
RMB million RMB million
BRAARMEERF T The calculation of the basic and diluted
BRI HEITE earnings per share is based on the
following data:
ZF Earnings
BIATE SR E AN ME Profit attributable to shareholders
BFEARARRRN A% of the Company for the purposes
Al of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 1,312 977
—F-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
B ¥ H Number of shares
AUAITESRAEAARR Weighted average number of ordinary
PESE BR ) EoE AR shares for the purpose of calculating
0A 1 B basic and diluted earnings per share  3,244,176,905  3,244,176,905
—B-AF -—E-N\F
2019 2018
ARMT ARTT
RMB RMB
BREAXRMEBERF Basic and diluted earnings per
share 0.40 0.30

BREABNEEBRMETRNEL
HESEXFARM—2 -

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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NEEE" 16. FIXED ASSETS
BFARAK
33 Hitl - NBR®E
Interests in Other property, plant and equipment
leasehold BRABF HeEE#"
land held for Buildings held  Other fixed it #it
own use  for own use assets Sub-total Total
ARPEAL ARTEAT ARTEART ARMEAT ARMEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
2% Cost
T-%-N\$-A-H At 1 January 2018 3973 9,706 21,937 31,643 35,616
NE Additions 22 93 1,974 2,067 2,089
HE Disposals (57) (126) (772) (898) (955)
EEibES Reclassifications - 497 (497) - -
LRED Exchange difference 1 (1 (34) (45) (46)
FZE-N\5+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2018 3937 10,159 22,608 32,767 36,704
SUBKTHNAE Adjustment for change
in accounting policy (3,937) - (9) 9) (3,946)
FoE-AE-A—B(ES)  At1 January 2019 (Restated) - 10,159 22,599 32,758 3,758
WM BAR/LEEEA  Acuisition of subsidiaries/businesses - 468 657 1125 1125
NE Additions - 17 922 1,039 1,039
e Disposals - (177) (2,196) 2373) 2373
EEibES Reclassifications - 127 (233) (106) (106)
LRER Exchange difference - (6) (15) 21 21
F-E-nE+ZA=1+-A At 31 December 2019 - 10,688 21,734 32,422 32,422
ZUFARAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
F-%-N\$-A—-H At 1 January 2018 720 3,369 11,078 14,447 15,167
REEHIH Charge for the year 86 386 1,159 1,545 1,631
HEKE Written back on disposals 9) (34) (594) (628) (637)
BRIAZRESR Impairment loss recognised - 496 465 961 961
LREH Exchange difference (1) (12) (37) (49) (50)
F-5-\E+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2018 796 4,205 12,071 16,276 17,072
SUBERNNFE Adjustment for change in
accounting policy (796) - (1) (1) (797)
F-F-NE-R-H(E]) At 1 January 2019 (Restated) - 4,205 12,070 16,275 16,275
AEERA Charge for the year - 398 1,154 1,552 1,552
HERE Written back on disposals - (53) (1,732) (1,785) (1,785)
EBAZRESR Impairment loss recognised - 300 400 700 700
ERibES Reclassifications - 0] (105) (106) (106)
LREH Exchange difference - (6) (26) (32) (32)
F-5-NE+-RA=1-H At 31 December 2019 - 4,843 11,761 16,604 16,604
kEsE Net book values
F-5-NE+-fA=1-H At 31 December 2019 - 5,845 9,973 15,818 15,818
F-5-\F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2018 314 5,954 10,537 16,491 19,632
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+R.BEEHE = (&)

TER ARESHE  AKHBR
FERMETEE 5 RAE DS
R AW ASHTEERHELRE
R fa) AT RE s (=) /O A 25 fR B LA RLE
SHMAARMI00B L T(ZF—N
FARMIGIATTT) ° LHFRSH
Al EEH I iRE RN ERDE
RAITE -

18

B ERBRI  MRIAE R~ &
VR FERELR  ERES
HITREE - RIEX LG~
AMAIKRE SIS T R~KEE -

HBEER T BBERERTE
Mleziks  HEDLEE  KMAK&
wERAE -

NERRGABABEEZEE A
F_E-N\F+-_A=+—BZIKHA
BERAARMSHEF L °

16.

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

During the year, as a result of efficiency enhancement,
certain breweries were determined to be closed down
and certain aged assets were determined as obsolete.
Consequently the Group has recognised an impairment loss
of RMB700 million (2018: RMB961 million), after considering
any possible benefit receivable during the disposal process.
The recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their
fair value less costs of disposal.

Except for the above, if other impairment indicators exist
on the cash-generating units, management have conducted
an impairment review and based on these assessments, the
resulting recoverable amounts were higher than the carrying
amount of the assets belong to.

Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress,
plant and machinery, leasehold improvements, furniture and
equipment and motor vehicles.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance
leases of the Group as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB8 million.
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& E &= (%) 16. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
HBEIR MNERE
Construction  Plant and Hith &it
in progress ~ machinery Others Total
ARMERAT ARPBEAT ARTBEAT ARTBAT
RMB million  RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million
B A Cost
F_E-NF-F—H At 1 January 2018 1,104 19,789 1,044 21,937
NE Additions 1,739 176 59 1,974
k= Disposals (1) (667) (104) (772)
BEFDE Reclassifications (1,924) 1,352 75 (497)
LRED Exchange difference 4 (38) - (34)
FZF-NF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 922 20,612 1,074 22,608
L2UTRRTNNIFE Adjustment for change
in accounting policy - - 9 )
FE-NF-A—R(E%) At 1 January 2019 (Restated) 922 20,612 1,065 22,599
WK EAR, %A Acquisition of subsidiaries/
businesses 1 637 19 657
NE Additions 686 205 31 922
HE Disposals - (2,083) (113) (2,196)
kS Reclassifications (972) 685 54 (233)
LHRED Exchange difference 2 7 - (15)
FZE-NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 639 20,039 1,056 21,734
2itMBREE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
F-F-NE-F—H At 1 January 2018 2 10,333 743 11,078
AEEHIH Charge for the year - 1,079 80 1,159
HEKD Written back on disposals (1) (504) (89) (594)
EWIAZBES R Impairment loss recognised - 457 8 465
LRER Exchange difference - (37) - (37)
FZE-A$+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 1 11,328 742 12,071
2URRLHNIHE Adjustment for change in
accounting policy - - (1 M
T-Z2-AE—F-B(E%) At 1 January 2019 (Restated) 1 11,328 74 12,070
AFEEHIH Charge for the year - 1,065 89 1,154
HERE Written back on disposals M (1,634) 97) (1,732)
EWI\ZAES R Impairment loss recognised 2 386 12 400
BHOE Reclassifications - (102) 3) (105)
LRER Exchange difference - (25) 0 (26)
F-E-NE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 2 11,018 741 11,761
WK% E Net book values
FTZZT-NE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 637 9,021 315 9,973
FZE-N\F+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 921 9,284 332 10,537
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+t. ERARE>

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

—EF—hF
2019
ARTERET
RMB million
HEB B/ T N & Interests in leasehold land held for own use 3,354
% F Buildings 190
H Aty Others 51
3,595
—E—hF
2019
ARTERAT
RMB million

ERANFE=NRIE Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

FEEBRAMN i Interests in leasehold land held for

own use 92
% F Buildings 24
HAty Others 7
123

TE-NFHENERANETAA
RM1228 AT - Mk ELT,
WHERNEANERANRTAART
337EATT e

—NWEFEMNHEEMGEME AR
NEREETRAARTIMELT °

$%l$ﬂ%@?ﬂﬂ’ﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁ’]iiﬁ&

Additions to the right-of-use assets during 2019 were
RMB122 million and acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses to
the right-of-use assets were RMB337 million.

The total cash outflow for both lease liabilities and short-
term leases in 2019 was RMB141 million.

The Group leases various interests in leasehold land held for
own use, buildings and others. Rental contracts for buildings
and others are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 14
years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
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tI\.EE

18. GOODWILL
ARTALTT
RMB million
A Cost
FZE2-N\F—H—H As at 1 January 2018 8,318
LR ZE R Exchange difference 72
FZE2-—NF+ZA=T—HRK As at 31 December 2018 and
—ET-N¥—HA—H 1 January 2019 8,390
W BB Al 55 Acquisition of subsidiaries/
businesses 940
LH Z 20 Exchange difference 35
T E-NF+_A=1+—H As at 31 December 2019 9,365
K m= & Carrying values
FT_ZE-NF+-_A=+—8 As at 31 December 2019 9,365
T-_E-\F+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2018 8,390

BEKEE IEZNSR-ERA
(fcqul) - I ARERH N HITHEE
M XENDNEEZD EME
ZEEERE e LT HBEPREZSD
EME:

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
cash generating units (“CGU"), each of which represent
the operating segments identified by the Group for the
purpose of segment reporting in geographical perspective.
A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

—EB-AEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

AEMBAXT ARMEATT

RMB million RMB million

KX Eastern region 3,280 2,320
X Central region 843 838
g X Southern region 5,242 5,232

CGUZ AT IR B & 21 Th¥% {2 A M E 1T
HEET - ZFUHEHZXARE
EEEBRBY s AFHMSMEME
HjZ%ﬁﬁ“ﬂ_lﬁ//wE E’%‘@ﬂ@%ﬁz
e REXRAW TR IR A
WK ERE8T% (ZF—\45F:8.9%)
ZEIIUEREERRES|IBITE

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on a value in use calculation. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
key assumptions including expected revenue growth rates
stated below and a discount rate of 8.7% (2018: 8.9%) per
annum.
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+I\.EE &) 18. GOODWILL (Continued)

EHAFHEMSHEZ
it N R R
Expected revenue growth rate
beyond the five years’
financial budget

(%)
—F-AF —E-N\EF
2019 2018
KX Eastern region 2% 2%
X Central region 2%-3% 2%-3%
A X Southern region 2%-3% 2%-3%
FERENEGBEIEITILSHE A reasonably possible change in a key assumption would
CGURI AT Y Bl & 2T ik Z X T H K| not cause the recoverable amount to fall below the carrying
B amount of the respective CGU.
Th . Bt HEF 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
A ERN
##  Trademarks it
Brand names rights Total

ARTEAT ARMBERAT ARTEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million

B A Cost
T-Z-N\¥-A—H At 1 January 2018 473 - 473
LRZE Exchange difference 3) - 3)
FZE-A\$+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 and
kR=F-N%¥-A—8 1 January 2019 470 - 470
WM ERE % Acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses - 308 308
LRZEE Exchange difference 1) - 1)
FT-E-NF+-_A=1t—H At 31 December 2019 469 308 777
RitHERAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
F-E-N\E-H—H At 1 January 2018 326 - 326
KEERE Charge for the year 23 - 23
LRER Exchange difference 3) - 3)
FZF-A\$+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 and
R=E-N%¥—-A—H 1 January 2019 346 - 346
KEERE Charge for the year 21 28 49
LRZE Exchange difference 2 - )
F-E-nF+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2019 365 28 393
K2 E Net book values
T-E-NF+ZA=1t—H At 31 December 2019 104 280 384
F-E-\F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 124 - 124
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Th. BT R A=) 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
ENEHABENEN mEBEEFERKR The trademarks rights for the exclusive use of the Heineken®
By ~ &8 R A 2 R R AT brand owned by the Heineken Group at a favourable term
EREEERZMHTUAETREAE for certain period in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau N
ZAREFIA EEREDIZTS were recognised at its fair value at the date of acquisition -
FHEITERFMAEL EZEITH and are subsequently amortised on straight line over their 5
i o estimated useful live of 7.5 years according to licensing 5
agreement. =
o
o
T+ UM EITEBHET i 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH N
ANEtGZARESNEME ™ OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
—g-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
ARMEART ARTEAT -
RMB million RMB million B
FERH ETRG - Listed equity shares in Chinese ;
NANE Mainland, at fair value 9 9 o
5
RN ENRANEETSRT The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are %
AWM METE © determined with reference to quoted market bid prices. 5
- IS R 21. PREPAYMENTS
—EB-AEF —E-N\F
2019 2018 -
ARTEAT ARTEAT 5
RMB million RMB million 3
T SL @ E %= 21]4€ 5 I Deposit payment for purchase of g
fixed assets 113 240 =
tIER 22. STOCKS s
—E-AF —E-NEF
2019 2018
ARMBEAT ARMEATT
RMB million RMB million g
W
R At Raw materials 669 676 -
SRR B E MR Consumables and packing materials 3,709 3,571 z
£ @ Work-in-progress 236 242 E
1 BX Finished goods 1,404 890 2
6,018 5,379 B
g
3
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Z+Z. R 5 K H At B Uk FR 5

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—EF—hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARTBEART ARMEATT
RMB million RMB million
R E =7 R PR Trade receivables from third parties 349 457
MU E AR EHE M EAF  Trade receivables from fellow
R 5K subsidiaries 26 25
N = Provision for doubtful debts (46) (39)
329 443
EIRqEE R Value-added tax recoverable 195 173
oA 3 I Prepayments 205 173
2k e Deposits paid 20 9
o Ry U mk 1 (B £ Other receivables (Note 1) 249 108
MU — B4R A B FK I Amount due from a holding company
(B £2) (Note 2) 1 -
MU ARIEHEMENT  Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
FRI (B HE2) (Note 2) 1 -
1,000 906
B E Note:
1. H fth B 450 I K H B 4E M Heineken & 1. Other receivables included the consideration refundable of RMB139
B R IR & A A RT1398 77 7T (Kt million (Note 298B) from Heineken Group.
EZFA(L) e
2. Rz — (8] 4% AR 2% B) R R R W R &R B 2. Amount due from a holding company and amounts due from fellow
BARRIMATHA - £ B KA subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AEH—RETEFATZETH:

The Group normally trades with its customers under the
following credit terms:

cash upon delivery; or

() SBINHR: K (@)
it open credit from 30 to 90 days

() Z+EATRBK (b)
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1A S K H 4t B UR R0 (&) 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
FREERRAZAHIM[NIKRE
EHARBAREEANRBEATR S K

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables from
third parties and fellow subsidiaries as at the balance sheet

2B AT T date by invoice date: )
ol
=t B —E— )\ .
2019 2018 §
ARBEARE ARTEAT -
RMB million RMB million S
REH The Group :
0-30X 0-30 days 34 78
31-60K 31-60 days 40 68
61-90°X 61-90 days 25 41
>90K >90 days 230 256 o
329 443 -
St
RENKFT 2 REFEBNNEHS Impairment on trade receivables is using the expected loss 3
MEDETHENKRREANNEF rates, which are based on credit assessments on each aging e
ZEIITE  HREWEFREER category of customers and adjusted for forward-looking 2
2 R GR I BE 70 2 BT RE 1 7 RHE information affecting the ability of the customers to settle i
E o the trade receivables. E
H At SR I < R E Th k124 A Impairment on other receivables is measured as either
HMiERsHmkeBMmEET st 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
E-ONTEVSHBIAEESHIE loss, depending on whether there has been a significant
RIETTREIE N o increase in credit risk since the initial recognition. b
:
BEEBEERHTZIMN  ANEHAT Based on the assessments performed by management, the N
SEBMRA S REMN PRI R fair value of the Group's trade and other receivables at %
MESHKEEMESE - balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding %
carrying amount. 5
=
FkER 2T MOVEMENT IN THE PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL 5
DEBTS &
— s —E-N\E
2019 2018
ARMBEAT ARTEATT T
RMB million RMB million 2
T—HA—H As at 1 January 39 35 l-;f
U ey Bt fB A &), b 5 Acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses 3 - E
B2 BESH Impairment losses recognised 19 80 >
H AW E T 2 £ %0 Amounts written off as uncollectible (15) (76) 3
F+=-—A=1+—H As at 31 December 46 39 g
2
a
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ZtR.R 5 K HAth N A R0 24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—EF—hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARTBEART ARMEATT
RMB million RMB million
NEHE=ZHARBIKEK Trade payables to third parties 2,710 2,339
MR AR SEFKE AR Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries
R 5 K K 3 1
2,713 2,340
AR s (£ Contract liabilities (Note 1) 7,427 7168
i 2 7% A Accruals 2,667 2,374
B W% & (B E2) Deposit received (Note 2) 4,412 3,891
E A RS 3R Other payables 1,801 1,830
MR R% 2 B 0L (FTE3) Amounts due to holding companies
(Note 3) 40 33
N ARIERAMEZANST  Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
I E3) (Note 3) 1 1
19,061 17,637
B S Notes:
1. BEARMIMBTT(ZE-—NF: A 1. Included receipt in advance on sales of RMB941 million (2018:
EM6528 7 7t) ;M R Im Kk A R RMB652 million) and liabilities on promotion and marketing expenses
6,486 B 7L (ZZE—\F : ARM6,516 of RMB6,486 million (2018: RMB6,516 million).

B TL) KR RS ARG o

2. FMEZRESERLBENENHE 2. Amounts mainly included deposits received for consumables and
iz e - packing materials.
3. MAERABIRIMRE AR EHANEA 3. Amounts due to holding companies and fellow subsidiaries were
AR ALKA - 28R IF®E - unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
TEEBRAZEABREINNNGTR The following is an aging analysis of trade payables as at
SR 2 KL DT T the balance sheet date by invoice date:
—F-NF —E-N\EF
2019 2018
ARTEART ARMEAT
RMB million RMB million
0-30K 0-30 days 2,452 1,963
31-60K 31-60 days 110 132
61-90K 61-90 days 13 176
>90K >90 days 138 69
2,713 2,340
AERHTEEENR S R HM NN The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables as at
FOARANMBESHKEEES - balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.
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ZHEBE R 25. LOANS
Z8-nF “Z-N\&
2019 2018 !
RHRR KERR BERE  KERX -
Short-term  Long-term it Shortterm  Long-term &t &
loans loans Total loans loans Total S
ARMEARL ARAERT ARTEAT ARTEAT ARTEAT ARMAAT .
RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million %
BAE DA Finance leases = 2 = 3 9 12 h
TRARITHR Unsecured bank loans 511 - 511 701 - 701
= 511 704 9 713 [
—E-hEF —E-N\F ol
2019 2018 =
AREMBEAT ARMEATT =
RMB million RMB million z
Fi BT LY &R Finance leases 2
—FN Within 1 year - 3 2
—FULFERFER After 1 year, but within 2 years = 3 %
RENEZERFR After 2 years, but within 5 years = 6 %
RITHEM Bank Loans
—F R Within 1 year 511 701 E—
511 713

REFABUABEDIRARTAEM 2
FRER BEHREEARITRA
W B (HIBORD EFE ARBITM
TE 2R F RIE -

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and the
lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China
respectively.

IDNVNYIAOD ILVHOLHOD ELE M I

RERAZEERZEIGFNEREE
H1.45%ZF3.70% (ZF—)\F : §F
1.18% £2.68%) T % o

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating
rate borrowings range from mainly 1.45% to 3.70% (2018:
from 1.18% to 2.68%) per annum.
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION

FRBIEB IR~ R ARz ED The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities
NS recognised during the year is as follows:
HE BERHEMENZR
Impairment, provision
% and other temporary &it
Tax losses differences Total
“E2-NE -F-\f& ZB-NE -T-\& ZB-NE -T-)\%
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ARTERR AETEAT ARTEAL ARTMEAT ARMBEAT ARTEAT
RMB million  RMB million RMB million  RMB million RMB million  RMB million
% B A = Deferred taxation assets
T-A-H At 1 January 165 101 2,261 2,160 2,426 2,261
WA B AR,/ % Acquisition of subsidiaries/
businesses 1 - 116 - 17 -
ESaRa&R(HB)/  (Charged)/Credited to
itA consolidated profit and
loss account (116) 64 105 101 (1) 165
TT-A=1+-H At 31 December 50 165 2,482 2,261 2,532 2,426

BERIM AT ARSI DS
TE A MR R BIIRFR B AT EBR
AMESTIRERFIA T-T—H
FH+-—A=+—H KEHAKRHIA
Zﬁ%%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁs,%ﬁﬁﬁ(:
E-NF:ARMP2R21EHL)
K%ﬁxb%mTEw%ﬁ%ﬁ
SRKRMNIFEHRKANE - the;m
BRETFTEFNEBEZABINZHRS
SIMAARM3254F AL (ZF—
F£:ARM2,738BFT) °

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At
31 December 2019, the Group has unrecognised tax losses
of RMB3,346 million (2018: RMB2,921 million) which are
uncertain as to whether they can be utilised to set off
against future taxable income. Out of this amount, the
unrecognised tax loss of RMB3,254 million (2018: RMB2,738
million) will expire within 5 years.
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=508 FE B IR (%) 26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
LTHREEZERFAREKFRHIA The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in
2B ER AR A KB D R T FE W the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during
2D the year are as follows:
RABAE2M
NREHR
Withholding
MEF A tax on
Accelerated tax  undistributed ait
depreciation profits Total
ARPAAT ARPEART ARMAAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million
F-Z-\5—-F—H At 1 January 2018 131 124 255
EGEMERNK Charged to consolidated profit and
loss account 123 18 141
LRIPE Exchange rate adjustment (8) 1 3
FTZF-NF+ZA=+—HRE At 31 December 2018 and
F-NE—A—H 1 January 2019 246 153 399
e ”'J MELeE,/ 1% Acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses 156 - 156
ERARBRNRK Charged to consolidated profit and loss
account 52 58 110
LERPE Exchange rate adjustment 8 5 13
T-Z-NF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2019 462 216 678

REFEPLARKXMEEMN - i‘ﬂi‘rﬁﬁ
SHRENPEMEARTE ZFEEN
F-A—BRERROFEME M
AR B0 AE ML o 356 XE B A K 2 B A
AITE R LB R E AR B
NEREME -

e EAMIER S AR

F_FE-—AE+=-A=+—8  Efb
jF/}u, J\ J\ ;%E,E@U\j]@ﬁq&(%ﬁ
R ATFNEN A RT1,0338 70 (=
—NFE:ARMILA46EFT)  BF
B EZE RPN RLFE BTN
AT SEFE A0 o

27.

Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for undistributed profits to the
extent that declarations of dividends are anticipated in the
foreseeable future.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, other non-current liabilities
included government grants of RMB1,033 million (2018:
RMB1,416 million) recognised as deferred revenue. The
government grants mainly represent subsidies granted by
PRC governmental authorities towards the purchases of
leasehold land.
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TR A 28. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-NE —E-N\F
2019 2018
K #E HiE R 8 E [
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
Bk ARTEAR BAR ARMEATRL
million  RMB million million RMB million
EEATRERERA Issued and fully paid
T-A—-H As at 1 January 3,244 14,090 3,244 14,090
Tt-A=+—-H As at 31 December 3,244 14,090 3,244 14,090
HhEESRERERMIE 29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT
B ZEEHIZAETRE A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
—F-NEF —N\F
2019 2018
ARMBAERT ARMHEATT
RMB million RMB million
5 750 A1 g ) Profit before taxation 2,202 1,532
R Adjustments for:
LRSS (W) Exchange loss/(gain) 4 (13)
B WA Interest income (109) (115)
B X Interest expenses 65 52
& B TE R 7S Net gain on disposal of
fixed assets (161) (94)
HERIEERN LM Profit on disposal of interests
N % P15 a7 in leasehold land held for own use (6) -
EHIAZEERTHME  Impairment loss recognised on fixed
=Rz assets 700 961
BN 2 FHBES R Impairment loss recognised on
stocks 352 340
1A Depreciation 1,675 1,631
H T & = P 5E Amortisation of other intangible
assets 49 23
BN+ BD Government grants recognised (42) (44)
ExRe TR IALE  Operating cash inflows before working
N&m capital changes 4,729 4,273
2 ED Changes in stocks (849) 107
RS REMNU I 2 Changes in trade and other
Ty receivables 606 227
RSN EM NI 2 Changes in trade and other payables
B 318 208
ZEMFIzA® Cash generated from operations 4,804 4,815

O JE (=) B R A 8 / China

Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



HEARNERERKIE®

Z WHHELRbE

S5 W 95 4 4 I
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)

B ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESSES

I B 2% RAE
Provisional
fair value
AETmBRLTT
RMB million
THMAMG RS RAG: The assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the dates of acquisition:
Ehalc Fixed assets 1,125
AR~ Right-of-use assets 337
A TR~ Other intangible assets 308
125 JE B 1R e Deferred taxation assets 117
H bR = Other assets 261
N& RBITETT Cash and bank balances 256
R 5 K H B I Trade and other payables (795)
HE MG Lease liabilities (29)
H bt fi Other liabilities (31)
1% JE F I 4 A Deferred taxation liabilities (156)
1,393
WHNFEZEE Goodwill on acquisition 940
2,333
AT oA = AT Discharged by:
& Cash 2,472
N IR 3 AN Balance of consideration refundable (139)
2,333
WHMEAR WEzRER Analysis of the net outflow of cash and
MeSERHRHIW cash equivalents in respect of acquisition
of subsidiaries/businesses undertaking
BRI e R 0N Cash consideration paid (2,472)
W EINe RRITERF Cash and bank balances acquired 256
(2,216)
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mMe&ERERM T
WM B =l ()

Z-NFHEAZTAR A&EH
ﬁHemeken IH&Z)”’]T‘E%L‘TE’]
=B/ BIENFE) B ALE
BRAE ﬁ%%hb@ﬁ@@
Bl -ENEHE(LEEBRAF
DERBTHBERAR - EHRE
CHI)BERAR - EHBRECER)
BRAR  MEAFBERLR (S
MIZNHED - BAEXNANEE
ol B ﬁn%ﬁﬁnF&EH
EMNKBAEMBHTIAE - T=
E-NEF+-A=t+—H X"
WRIEE I8 M2,882B AT (B T
ARM2,4728B 7 7T) o BMNIEIAED
BEREANNEZARERERE
AR EHBRNERERN AR
M139B A LE - LA E FIRAT 30
ARM233BEFTITERREE -
SHABHEDENRZ SRR - FE
W HE+=A /It 2 5| Rk
BEMSKRBBEANERMNERLD
AR GH—F PRGN -

AW m=Em IR EmEHNARD
940B AL JYARAEF AT R I %~
LT & F B N Rt B Es e

BWWBZEARRER  EAFER
ELIAARTLIBOEFTEA
RM1458 T T ARFEE @ o

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESSES
(Continued)

On 29 April 2019, the Group acquired from Heineken
Group the entire equity interest of seven companies, namely
Heineken (China) Management Services Co., Ltd., Heineken
Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Heineken (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
Heineken Brewery (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., Heineken Brewery
(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd., Heineken Brewery (Hainan) Co., Ltd.,
and Heineken Hong Kong Limited (collectively “Heineken
China”). Total cash consideration being the agreed enterprise
value of HK$2,355 million and as adjusted by the agreed
price adjustment items. The initial provisional consideration
of HK$2,882 million (equivalent to RMB2,472 million) was
paid as at 31 December 2019. While the price adjustment
items and final consideration had not been agreed as at
the reporting date, the subsequent provisional consideration
of RMB2,333 million after deducting the balance of
consideration refundable for RMB139 million was applied
for the calculation of provisional goodwill. The Group will
closely monitor the status of the transaction and may further
adjust the provisional amounts within the measurement
period of twelve months following the acquisition date, if
there are any new information obtained about the facts and
circumstances related to the acquisition.

Provisional goodwill arising from the acquisition was
amounting to RMB940 million, which is attributable to the
profitability and the synergies expected to arise from the
acquired businesses.

Turnover of RMB1,139 million and net profit of RMB145
million was contributed by Heineken China since the date
of acquisition to the end of the reporting period.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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SHMESHERERMIE (W 29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)
A MEFIFEZ2RHFATE C  RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ﬁ
i
BEHRR KRR HEAK ait %
Short-term loans  Long-term loans  Lease liabilities Total S
ARGERT ~ ARBERT  ARMEAT  ARMESRT N
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million 8
F-%2-\5-A—H At 1 January 2018 2,383 1,087 - 3,470
Jen e Cash flows (2,434) (428) - (2,862)
LS Foreign exchange movement 51 4 - 92 S
RABAR Finance leases inception - 13 - 13
TERAE M Z T Non-cash movements 704 (704) - - .
F-E-\E+-B=+—H  Asat 31 December 2018 704 9 - 713 £
LUBETHRE Adjustment for change in =
accounting policy 3) 9) 116 104 g
F-E-NE-A—H(EF)) Asat 1 January 2019 (Restated) 701 - 116 817 o)
neng Cash flows (241) - (79) (319 o
PERNRREDNERE Classified as cash flows in %
investing activities e
- WK ERE /L% (BB - Acquisition of 2
K eaeRkile subsidiaries/businesses
) (net of cash and cash B
equivalents acquired) - - 29 29
SNCE ) Foreign exchange movement 51 - ) 49
VP E s SR Non-cash movements - - 149 149
FZE-NEFZA=+—H  At31 December 2019 511 - 214 725
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=+. &8 30. COMMITMENTS
—®B-nE - NF
2019 2018
ARMEAT ARMBATT
RMB million RMB million
THEERHATHRMREE Capital commitments outstanding on
ERFTTZRAFAMENAT acquisition of fixed assets at the
balance sheet date are as follows:
EENERAKE Contracted but not provided for 1,363 1,704

ZH-ERXEXRS

H XRARSHEWEARI(BTARFZ A
READ)#HTZRHETHRAKE
BIXT4E - HEEAMIHREE - K
REEMEREARTREZRS N
RN AEHHITTIZEMER

RERS:

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
Note. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following material related party

transactions:

—F—hF —E-NF
2019 2018
ARMEAT ARMBATT
RMB million RMB million
BXTHARREZIRS Receipt of services from
— B2 B A (i —) A holding company (Note 1) 131 112
FRREHAZHWEAF Fellow subsidiaries 3 -
KERAaE (HHED) Related companies (Note 2) 36 -
M T3 AE4EERmEt Sales of goods to
NAEH ZHERF] Fellow subsidiaries 79 102
BRGNP Purchase of goods from
KECAA (K ED) Related companies (Note 2) 37 -
TR REzHAOEH Lease payments to
FRREHAZHWEAF Fellow subsidiaries 27 25
kRETH QA ZFBUWA  Interest income from
— Rl & A 7] A holding company 22 -
— B RFREHACKHE A fellow subsidiary
A7 4 9
BT - Notes:

1. THRS 2 — EERAGRE A 1.
AR TIRA - HFERAFAEOEE

Por

2. Heineken Holding N.V. & &7 A &) © 2.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

Heineken Holding N.V. and its subsidiaries.

Administrative service is provided by a holding company, of which
costs are identifiable and are allocated on a fair and equitable basis.



o5 B W 55 4R W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v

EH-BEAXER S (&)

R

(42)

F_E2-N\F+-—A=+—H8 U=z
MO ENYHERMBBERITERE
BEAEARKESEAERITROER
NAFERARMBIGIEAT  T-F
—NE+-_A=Z=+-—BHL%ER

o
N

SHMPEREERZES KKz
R /ER

AR SR H R & Oy P B BT AT A ) RO A
E4EBE T - MEARBEHEZ K
ReBEPEELBHEHA#TZIRS
S AEHTERE LS IERS
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EEAR BREHEIQAREHAIN
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REHZzMEREERRK - 51%F
KRBT ZRP(BERE®E M

R%,/ RBITFER KK 27 HKF
BITBAER— R F ST -
AEBEINR - BLERA £ XA
RZREXFEANMETAREER
sk o

FTEEEBEARZHMH

AEHAMEERDIEESFMHREA
NEIBEEAR BXRFMATEH
EMFH/EMEL - AFERREX
NTBREFROAUZSFHFREAIN
TEEBARZHME(CE-N\F:
7o) e

31.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents or
pledged bank deposits included deposits of RMB161 million
made by the Group to China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co.,
Ltd. No such deposits was made as at 31 December 2019.

TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES WITH OTHER STATE-
CONTROLLED ENTITIES IN CHINESE MAINLAND

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under CRC which is controlled by the Chinese State
government. Apart from the transactions with CRC group,
the Group also conducts businesses with other state-
controlled entities. The directors are of the opinion that
those entities other than the CRC group do not have the
power to govern or participate in the financial and operating
policies of the Group. The transactions including sales
and purchases of goods and services and bank deposits
and corresponding interest income, with these entities are
conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
The Group believes that it has provided, at the best of its
knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of related
party transactions as summarised above.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The Group regards the directors and the five highest
paid employees are key management personnel and
the respective compensation is set out in Note 10 to
consolidated financial statement. There was no remuneration
paid for key management personnel other than directors or
the five highest paid employees during the year (2018: Nil).

—ZT—NF FIR / Annual Report 2019
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SHLBEFAERREEEDD 32.

R

A BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2019

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY

—F—hF —E-NF
2019 2018
ARTEART ARMEAT
RMB million RMB million
Ik B BT = Non-current assets
[ 7E &~ Fixed assets
- HAapll - M2 K& - Other property, plant and
equipment 1 2
B AN E = Right-of-use assets 2 -
FH B R 2N &= Interests in subsidiaries 16,745 16,378
16,748 16,380
i Bh B = Current assets
R 5 K EAth 57U R I Trade and other receivables 2 2
MERBITERF Cash and bank balances 38 10
40 12
ik R R A Current liabilities
R 5 K& EH Ay BRI Trade and other payables (1,386) (863)
52 HA BT 3K Short term loans (511) (701)
HEMAR Lease liabilities ) -
(1.899) (1,564)
B LR E Net current liabilities (1,859) (1,552)
IS8 e i R Total assets less current liabilities 14,889 14,828
BARfE& Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 14,090 14,090
i & Reserves 799 738
14,889 14,828
M E Note:

FoFE-hE+—_A=1+—0 BHREMN
N EENEARRRLAET,4888 7
THEEFHARD,3338HT) A EEITF -
1% F F S HIBOR+0.6% 11 8 R B AT )34 o (F=
E-N\E+ZA=+—0 RIREMENFK
MEEEREAR TR ARMI0EFTAL
I REFRAZ%BITER—FRNALE - &
NEMS84E L (HEFHARMSI12ELT)
RTEA - 32 F FEHIBOR+0.6% 11 B K b
Hik )

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other payables included loans from a
subsidiary of approximately HK$1,488 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,333 million), which are unsecured, interest-bearing at HIBOR+0.6%
per annum, and repayable on demand. (As at 31 December 2018, trade and
other payables included loans from subsidiaries of RMB300 million, which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.35% per annum and repayable within
one year, and approximately HK$584 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB512 million), which are unsecured, interest-bearing at HIBOR+0.6% per
annum, and repayable on demand.)

f&i 5 JIAN YI
ZE #E Director

R E 7= LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN
ZE FEDirector
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St BFGERREERER (&) 32. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Z AATZHEETDH B RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BE-F—-hh&+=-A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2019 T
PR 5 1 R b it %) Z
Fiis iR 5
Shares held i
LRfE%E  for restricted REET g
Exchange incentive Retained &it -
reserve award scheme profits Total
ARPEAIT ARMEART ARMBAT ARMEATR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
T-F-\5-A-H At 1 January 2018 (3,218) (19) 3,748 511
[Rz25 Exchange differences o
on translation 684 - - 684 =
R A Profit for the year - - 62 62 -
RE Dividend - - (519) (519) -
"% Transfer - 19 (19) - %
F-E-NFEF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 %
kZF-NE-H—H and 1 January 2019 (2,534) - 3,272 738 é
LRER Exchange difference =
on translation 346 - - 346
KEERF Profit for the year - - 202 202 o
Es Dividend - - (487) (487)
FZE-AE+=B=+—H At31 December 2019 (2,188) . 2,987 799 5
E
RARBIAIEDIIRTREZHEEZNA Reserves of the Company available for distribution to -
RMI8eBE AL (—FE—/\F: AR the shareholders amounted to RMB986 million (2018: S
1,2298 7 7T) ° RMB1,229 million). g
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BHABRESHARET T
EEFVEENREL  SETBA
EXREHEMBORTRRERTHE
ENAEBYRERETIBHEFS

NEERNE o ME E R & B A
SR —_F_FTFE—FTREZ2ETR
HELHER —ENNEZMW HE
REGAEWSIMEMEREB - 3
AUSE R S B AR B2 WM EF 4 H
ERIEFEESEH A T2 AR
SEHEE—_FT—NF+_A=1+—
BIEFEZREWVSIRER MK ER
ERFE - AEFABHELRREE
WARHNEMSZMHEITE
1A o

SR ESRAEMS RS

EI5MEFBIBAMFTE 2R B WS
REERESEL T _E_FTF=A
—THHiLE -

33.

34,

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in early 2020,
provincial and municipal governments implemented various
prevention and emergency measures, such as a partial
lockdown policy and extending the holiday period of Chinese
New Year, in order to mitigate the threat of spreading the
epidemic across the country. It is anticipated that the above
epidemic situation would have certain negative impact on
the production and sales of the Group in the first quarter
of 2020. As at the date on which this set of consolidated
financial statements were authorised for issue, the outbreak
of COVID-19 is a non-adjusting post balance sheet event
and does not result in any material adjustments to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The Group will continue
to monitor the development of the epidemic and perform
further assessment of its financial impact.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 115
to 184 were approved by the board of directors on 20
March 2020.

48 E (32 8%) B PR 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

F-Z—-hE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019

REaal

Percentage of capital

BRTERRRA/IREEX AEENS ALTRE WELARA

WELH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable Held by the Held by ¥EU%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group ~ Company subsidiaries Principal activities
FRELLEH ML
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
LEERREERAA 42,800 400 EHRABIZT 100.0 100.0 - RAERK
LEER
China Resources Snow Breweries 42,800,400 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
FrhERMEREK L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
o LRERRAMD)ERREAT AR1,079,323,267.277 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBERES-H
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB1,079,323,267.27 Manufacturing and distribution
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd of beer products
v LEERRAEEH)ERXEAT  ARTA57925017% 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
RMB245,792,501 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LERBE(EH)ARAT 31,200,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 #EMHEREFR
China Resources Snowflake Brewery US$31,200,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jilin) Co., Ltd. of beer products
O LEERRABRE)ERAF AE 260,000,000 100.0 - 1000 FIERMEERTE"R
RMB260,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AHEREE(ZR)ERAF AR T438,1475007 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB438,147,500 Manufacturing and distribution
(Anhui) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o HERBRAEEDERAR ARM778,4144007 100.0 - 1000 HIEMHEREFR
China Resources Snow Brewery RMB778,414,400 Manufacturing and distribution
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o AHERBRELT)ARAR 118,504,683% T 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
US$118,504,683 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
O LHERRE(RE) RN 159,030,076.09% T 100.0 - 1000 7 HEE>m
US$159,030,076.09 Distribution of beer products
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F-Z—-NAF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019

REaal

Percentage of capital

BRTERRRA/IREEX AEENS ALTRE WELARA

WELH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable Held by the Held by ¥EU%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group ~ Company subsidiaries Principal activities
FHREAMEREL(S)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
o HERBR(RR)ERAT A& 322,000,000 100.0 - 1000 FIERMBERE"R
China Resources Snow Brewery RMB322,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Liuan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
O LEERBRELR)BRAR 21,000,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 #ERMHEREFR
US$21,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AEERRE(R)BERAA 55,850,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
US$55,850,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LHEERE(KE) AR 32,797 8695 T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBERES R
China Resources Snow Brewery US$32,797,869 Manufacturing and distribution
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. of beer products
O HERRAECID)ARAR AR M1425,880,4007 100.0 - 1000 HERMHEREFR
RMB425,880,400 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
* AEERRE(ER)BRAF AR 95,000,000 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB95,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Fuyang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
“ AEEERE(ERI)BRAT 29,166,116.38% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HIERHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries US$29,166,116.38 Manufacturing and distribution
(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
O LEERBREOIN)ERAR 114,000,000% T 100.0 - 1000 #EMHEREF R
China Resources Snow Breweries US$114,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jiangsu) Limited of beer products
o LEERRAGMERAR A& 587,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBERES R
RMB587,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
oo LRERRECRM BB L 55,800,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 FIERMBERE"R
China Resources Snow Breweries US$55,800,000 Manufacturing and distribution

(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd.

458 H (32 A%) B R 2 7] / China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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F-Z—-hE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019

WELR

Subsidiaries

RAESH
Percentage of capital
BROERREA/EMEX AEANE ALARKE WELAKE
Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable Held by the Held by XEWLE
registered capital to the Group ~ Company subsidiaries Principal activities

*%

*x

*x

*x

*x

*%

*%

*x

*x

FHREMMERKL(S)

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)

LHEERBHR)ARRA
China Resources Snow Brewery
(Gansu) Co., Ltd.

LHEERE(TL)ARAA

LHERREMR)ERLAA

LREERECEN) BRRALR

LHERRE(TE) AR AH

REESHXERBEER AR
Tianjin Binhai New Area Snow
Breweries Co., Ltd.

LREERE(FX)ERAT
China Resources Snow Brewery
(Yinyan) Co., Ltd.

LHEERE(TR)BRAR
China Resources Snow Brewery
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.

AR M220,769,5007T 100.0 - 1000 FIEMHEEEE" R
RMB220,769,500 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
58,020,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMEERE-R
1S$58,020,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
88,710,000% T 100.0 - 1000 FIERMBERE"R
US$88,710,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
A K 282,040,0007T 95.73 - 95.73 HIERMHEEE "R
RMB282,040,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
AR 285,000,000 100.0 - 1000 HIEMEERE-R
RMB285,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
AE180,000,0007 100.0 - 1000 FIEMBERE"R
RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
A K 400,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 FIEMHEEEE" R
RMB400,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
30,000,000 ¢ 100.0 - 1000 HIEMEERE-R
US$30,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
AE20,103,3887C 100.0 - 1000 FIERMBERE"R
RMB20,103,388 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
26,666,667% T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMEESRES R
US$26,666,667 Manufacturing and distribution

of beer products
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F-Z—-NAF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019

REaal

Percentage of capital

BRTERRRA/IREEX AEENS ALTRE WELARA

WELH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable Held by the Held by ¥EU%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group ~ Company subsidiaries Principal activities
FHREAMEREL(S)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
v RHERBRE(RE) ERAT 44,250,000% T 100.0 - 1000 FIERMBERE"R
China Resources Snow Brewery US$44,250,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. of beer products
O LEERBE(TRNT)ERAT AR 21,000,000 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBEEES R
China Resources Snow Brewery RMB21,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Hulunbeier) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o LEERRAKZ)ERAF 21,100,000 75 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBEEES R
China Resources Snow Brewery US$21,100,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Yilan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o HERBAEGM)ERAT AR 17,680,000 100.0 - 1000 FIERNBERE"R
China Resources Snow Brewery RMB17,680,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Guizhou) Co., Ltd. of beer products
“ ERBE(EE)HEBRAT A& 10,000,000 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBEEES R
RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
v ERERE(ZE)ERAH 74,771,153% ¢ 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBESRES R
US§74,771,153 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
» EERG(LB)ERAF 6,000,000% T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBERE"R
US$6,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
w ERBE(LB)ERARF A& 50,000,0007 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBEEES R
RMB500,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
w EREBE(§E)ERAF 125,000,000% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBESRES R
US$125,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
w EEBE(TMERAR 50,000,000% ¢ 100.0 - 1000 HIEMBEEES S
US$50,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

of beer products
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FZEHE A A v
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

FZE—-F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019

Pz

Notes:

—  BFRUN 2EBIAEMEBLARAFBELEERIT AR M ERNBINAERALGHE~AERT MO ZHE LB FE -
1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the
above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which materially affect the results or assets of the Group.

—. BBEEIREIN BRRAZEIBELREERMENE MK LFFEMS

2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

=. ERERMIMKL AR HEXERANTFEEZHALBER(NE) -

3. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company
(if any).

* aR W

* Equity Joint Venture

** SN Bl

*x Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

“E-1F ZF-X & CZE-t& C—FT-)\& ZB-AF
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ARTEAL ARTEAL ARTEART ARTEAT ARMEARL
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million
ZRLE Consolidated results
ElE Turnover 106,872 28,694 29,732 31,867 33,190
BN EER(5H)  Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders (4,118) 629 1175 977 1,312
FREABF /(TH)  Basic earnings/(losses) per share RMB(1.56) RMB0.22 RMBO.36 RMB0.30 RMB0.40
BRERE Dividend per share
el Interim - - RMB0.07 RMB0.09 RMB0.120
5 5 Special HK$12.30 - - - -
(RMB10.08)
RE Final - RMB0.08 RMB0.07 RMB0.03 RMB0.045
HK$12.30 RMBO0.08 RMBO.14 RMBO0.12 RMBO0.165
(RMB10.08)
GEAERGRE Consolidated balance sheet
B & R 7~ Fixed assets 21,389 20,900 20,449 19,632 15,818
& AR = Right-of-use assets - - - - 3,595
HE Goodwil 8,326 8,422 8,318 8,390 9,365
H R R > Other intangible assets 194 171 147 124 384
KRR Long term investments 10 9 9 9 9
AT I Prepayments 158 89 81 240 13
BB IR = Deferred taxation assets 1,655 2,011 2,261 2,426 2,532
mA NG AE Net current liabilities (7.714) (9,777) (9,809) (9,920) (10,081)
nezH Employment of capital 24,018 21,825 21,456 20,901 21,735
R Share capital 5,941 14,090 14,090 14,090 14,090
E& Reserves 4,115 3,511 4,331 4,758 5,580
R & Shareholders’ funds 10,056 17,601 18,421 18,848 19,670
FRHARENE Non-controlling interests 9,264 66 64 62 57
KELH Long term loans 3,839 2,953 1,087 9 =
MR AR Lease liabilities - - - - 124
1 JE B M A 5 Deferred taxation liabilities 258 271 255 399 678
Hib K H R Other non-current liabilities 601 934 1,629 1,583 1,206
BEzfi%e Capital employed 24,018 21,825 21,456 20,901 21,735
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WITES

Executive Director
B Jian i

EREATERNTES

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
=28  Hou Xiaohai

BERMSERKTES

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

EH  Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
EHITES

Non-executive Directors

LM Lai Ni Hium, Frank

Rudolf Gijsbert Servaas van den Brink
(FZFE—NFHA=FHKZT)
(appointed on 29 April 2019)

i AR 4L Tuen-Muk Lai Shu
(F=E—NFELAT—HKZE)
(appointed on 11 July 2019)

WMyERTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

# AT  Houang Tai Ninh

ZR¥E L Ka Cheung, Eric
MHEE  Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
FREE  Bernard Charnwut Chan
FAMAE  Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

2 ] Bt R
CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEHH
Company Secretary
FEFF  Lai Po Sing, Tomakin

B e m

Auditor

FEBKESITINESF

ol 211 I

JE 2 A0 Y 2 SE K Z 20
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

EMBBELREIEMS

Registered Office and Principal Place of Business
EAEBFE B E265 4 HKNEIE

39/F, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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B Bt & STk

INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

AWmEFH
Announcement of Annual Results
2020F3A20H
20 March 2020

EERMBARBERENF RSB Z & 5RE

Last Day of Dealings in Shares with Entitlement
to Final Dividend

20205 5H25H

25 May 2020

EEHERMIFBIEFS

Closure of Register Period
WEBNEERFEAFALH T2 EREZRERAN
202045 818H £ 2020 5H22H
(AERMRBEEN)

To determine the identity of members

who are entitled to attend and vote at the

annual general meeting:

18 May 2020 to 22 May 2020

(both days inclusive)

MERERZBERNZ RERKRE ZNF -
2020%5H28H

To ascertain the members’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend:

28 May 2020

KEIRE B4R A

Payment of Final Dividend
2020F6 A12B kBl /e

On or about 12 June 2020

Big 43 & i &

Share Registrar
BEREBRAA
BEBERKNEFRISSS

& 0541

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

BREREL

Depositary

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 30170

College Station

Tx 77842-3170

BEKXS

Stock Codes
HEABEBRARSM: 00291
Z18 1291 HK

BEIE 4L 1 0291.HK
ADRfX 5 : CRHKY
CUSIP: 16940R109
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00291
Bloomberg: 291 HK
Reuters: 0291.HK

ADR symbol: CRHKY
CUSIP: 16940R109

REEXE

Investor Relations
B8 HE : ir@cre.com.hk
Email : ir@cre.com.hk
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FR LA EDIE26S5 LB EINME
BiE : 852-2827-1028 {£H : 852-2598-8453
Rt www.crbeer.com.hk EBHF : info@cre.com.hk

39/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: 852-2827-1028 Fax: 852-2598-8453
Website: www.crbeer.com.hk Email: info@cre.com.hk
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